
 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 1 
 

 

MILPITAS CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 

455 EAST CALAVERAS BLVD,  MILPITAS,  CA 
6:00 P.M.  (CLOSED SESSION)  ●  7 :00  P.M.  (PUBLIC BUSINESS)  

 
 

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS 
 

 I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL by the Mayor (6:00 p.m.) 
 

II. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Pursuant to California Government Code §54956.9(b), (c)  
City of Milpitas as Plaintiff or Defendant 

 
2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 
 Pursuant to California Government Code §54957.6, City Negotiator: Carmen Valdez  

Employee Groups:  Milpitas Employees Association (MEA), Mid-Management/Confidential 
(UPEC), Milpitas Professional and Technical Group (ProTech), Milpitas Police Officers Association 
(MPOA), International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) 

 Under Negotiation: Wages, Hours, Benefits, and Working Conditions 
 

 III. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Report on action taken in Closed Session, if required pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54957.1, including the vote or abstention of each member present 

 
 IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (7:00 p.m.) 
 
 V. INVOCATION (Councilmember Giordano) 
 
 VI. APPROVAL OF COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – January 15, 2013 
 
 VII. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS – COUNCIL CALENDARS – February 2013 
 
 VIII. PRESENTATIONS 

 Proclaiming Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – January 21, 2013 
 Proclaiming Black History Month – February 2013 
 Presenting the 2013 Artist of Year Award to Patty Jensen, Jensen School for the Performing Arts, 

and certificates of commendation to nominees Joe Santoro and Carla Moss  
 

 IX. PUBLIC FORUM 
 

Members of the audience are invited to address the Council on any subject not on tonight’s agenda.  Speakers must 
come to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the Clerk's record, and limit their remarks to three 
minutes.  As an unagendized item, no response is required from City staff or the Council and no action can be taken; 
however, the Council may instruct the City Manager to agendize the item for a future meeting. 

 
 X. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 XI. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 XII. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 2 
 

 XIII. CONSENT CALENDAR (Items with asterisks*) 
 

Consent calendar items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one motion.  There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the City Council, member of the audience, or staff 
requests the Council to remove an item from or be added to the consent calendar.  Any person desiring to speak on 
any item on the consent calendar should ask to have that item removed from the consent calendar.  If removed, this 
item will be discussed in the order in which it appears on the agenda. 

 
 XIV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 1. Accept the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Component Unit Financial 
Statements, and Other Related Annual Audited Reports for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2012 (Staff Contact:  Emma Karlen, 408-586-3145) 

 
 2. Approve Recommendation for the 2013 Annual Commissioners’ Recognition Event (Staff 

Contact:  Dale Flunoy, 408-586-3228) 
 

 3. Continue Discussion of Policy on Reimbursement to Councilmembers for Events (Staff 
Contact:  Michael Ogaz, 408-586-3040) 

 
 4. Receive Report from City Council Fire Department Budget Task Force (Contacts:  Vice 

Mayor Polanski, Councilmember Gomez, and City Manager Tom Williams, 408-586-3050) 
 
* 5. Receive the December 2012 and January 2013 Odor Control Reports (Staff Contact:  

Kathleen Phalen, 408-586-3345) 
 

 XV. REPORTS OF MAYOR  
 

* 6. Consider Mayor’s Recommendation for Appointment of Planning Commission Alternate 
(Contact:  Mayor Esteves, 408-586-3029) 
 

* 7. Consider Mayor’s Recommendations for Appointments and Reappointments to Six 
Milpitas Commissions (Contact:  Mayor Esteves, 408-586-3029) 
 

 XVI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 8. Receive Financial Status Report for the Six Months Ended December 31, 2012 (Staff 
Contact:  Emma Karlen, 586-3145) 

 
* 9. Receive City of Milpitas Investment Portfolio Status Report for the Quarter Ended 

December 31, 2012 (Staff Contact:  Emma Karlen, 408-586-3145) 
 

* 10. Approve Ben Gross Tribute Event Planned for February 23, 2013 and Direct Staff to 
Research the Dedication of a City Park Called the Ben Gross Memorial Park (Staff 
Contact:  Dale Flunoy, 408-586-3228) 
 

* 11. Authorize the Acceptance of a Grant for the Senior Nutrition Program (Staff Contact:  
Renee Lorentzen, 408-586-3409) 
 

 XVII. RESOLUTIONS 
 

* 12. Adopt a Resolution Annexing Certain Real Property into Community Facilities District No. 
2005-1; Authorize the Execution of a Subdivision Improvement Agreement; Approve the 
Final Map (Tract # 10139), and Improvement Plans (2-1163) for 1201 South Main Street /  
SORA Milpitas, LLC for Project No. 2718 (Staff Contact:  Keyvan Irannejad, 408-586-
3244) 

 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 3 
 

* 13. Adopt a Resolution Designating National Meter and Automation as the Sole Source 
Provider for Badger Meters and Approve the Purchase of Assorted Badger Water Meters 
for $70,092.76 (Staff Contact:  Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 
 

 XVIII. CONTRACTS 
 

* 14. Authorize Continued Employment of a Temporary Contractual Building Inspector Position 
for Lyon Apartments (Staff Contact:  Keyvan Irannejad, 408-586-3244) 
 

* 15. Authorize a Temporary Building Inspector Position for Coyote Creek Condominiums (Staff 
Contact:  Keyvan Irannejad, 408-586-3244) 
 

* 16. Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Consultant Services Agreement with RMC 
Water and Environment, Inc. for Utility Engineering Support (Staff Contact:  Kathleen 
Phalen, 408-586-3345) 
 

* 17. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Contract with TerraCare 
Associates to Add Two Additional Parks to the City of Milpitas Parks Maintenance Services 
(Staff Contact:  Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 
 

* 18. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 4 to the Contract with Universal 
Building Services for Additional Janitorial Services for City Buildings (Staff Contact:  
Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 

 
* 19. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Composer Jason McChristian for 

the Milpitas Community Concert Band Original Composition and Accept a Grant for the 
Band (Staff Contact:  Renee Lorentzen, 408-586-3409) 
 

 XIX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2013 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
 
 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE OPEN GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE 

 
Government’s duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.   

Commissions, boards, and other agencies of the City exist to conduct the people’s business.  This ordinance 
assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and the City operations are open to the people’s review. 

For more information on your rights under the Open Government Ordinance or to report a violation, 
contact the City Attorney’s office at Milpitas City Hall, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA  95035 

e-mail:  mogaz@ci.milpitas.ca.gov / Fax:  408-586-3056 / Phone:  408-586-3040 
 

The Open Government Ordinance is codified in the Milpitas Municipal Code as Title I Chapter 310 and is 
available online at the City’s website www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov by selecting the Milpitas Municipal Code link. 

 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the City Council after initial distribution of the  
agenda packet are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office at Milpitas City Hall, 3rd floor  

455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas and on the City website. 
 

All City Council agendas and related materials can be viewed online here:  
www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov/government/council/agenda_minutes.asp (select meeting date) 

 
APPLY TO BECOME A CITY COMMISSIONER !  

Current vacancies exist on the:  
 

Arts Commission (alternate member) 
Public Art Committee (Alliance for the Arts member) 

Community Advisory Commission (alternates) 
Economic Development Commission (alternate) 

Library Advisory Commission (alternate) 
 

Commission application forms are available online at www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov or at Milpitas City Hall. 
Contact the City Clerk’s office (408-586-3003) for more information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

If you need assistance, per the Americans with Disabilities Act, for any City of Milpitas public meeting, call the City 
Clerk at (408) 586-3001 or send an e-mail to mlavelle@ci.milpitas.ca.gov prior to the meeting.  You may request a 
larger font agenda or arrange for mobility assistance.  For hearing assistance, headsets are available in the 
Council Chambers for all meetings. 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 5 
 

 
 XIV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 1. Accept the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Component Unit Financial 
Statements, and Other Related Annual Audited Reports for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2012 (Staff Contact:  Emma Karlen, 408-586-3145) 
 
Background:  The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Milpitas, 
Single Audit Report, Agreed Upon Procedures Report on Compliance with the Appropriations 
Limit Increment and the Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are submitted to the City Council. 
 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Milpitas 
The CAFR presents the operations and financial activity of all the City’s various funds, including 
the General Fund.  It includes an unqualified audit opinion from Maze & Associates, the City’s 
external auditors that the financial statements present fairly the results of operations for the year 
ended June 30, 2012, in conformance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  
It is also noted in the audit opinion that due to the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, the 
State has ordered the return of certain assets to the Successor Agency.  The City has complied 
with certain aspects of the State’s order and transferred applicable assets to the Housing 
Successor, but the City contends that the remaining transactions undertaken were legally placed 
with the Economic Development Corporation at the time of the transfer.  The City’s position on 
these matters is not a position of settled law and there is considerable legal uncertainty regarding 
these matters. 
 
Single Audit Report 
The Single Audit is required by the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 for state 
and local governments and non-profit organizations that receive Federal Awards.   The report did 
not disclose any material weaknesses or significant deficiencies on the internal control over the 
major federal award programs.   
 
Agreed Upon Procedures Report on Compliance with the Appropriations Limit Increment 
This report shows the auditor applied specific procedures to validate the City’s Appropriations 
Limit calculations. 
 
Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications 
Under generally accepted auditing standards, the auditors are encouraged to report certain matters 
regarding the City’s internal control structure.  The City’s auditors have provided such a report in 
their Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications (“Management Letter”) 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012.  This report includes management response to the auditor’s 
recommendations on monitoring expenditures of the Economic Development Corporation and 
ensuring compliance with the dissolution laws, payroll personnel pay review, Sports Center cash 
collections, Council approval for contracts in excess of $20,000, establish blanket purchase orders 
for frequently used vendors, reviewing payroll charges to federal grant programs, and 
implementing automatic session locks on computers. It should be noted that the auditors do not 
view any of their comments as material weaknesses or significant deficiencies on the City’s 
internal control structure.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. There is no fiscal impact for the recommended action. 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and 
other related Annual Audited Reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

 
 2. Approve Recommendation for the 2013 Annual Commissioners’ Recognition Event (Staff 

Contact:  Dale Flunoy, 408-586-3228) 
 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 6 
 

Background:  The City of Milpitas recognizes its Commissioners in April at the annual 
Commissioners’ Recognition Event, which celebrates the volunteerism of City Commissioners 
and Committee Members and their accomplishments.  Many positive comments were received 
from Commissioners for last year’s recognition event, which was held April 17, 2012 at the City 
Council meeting. Commissioners were served light refreshments and presented a certificate. 
 
Prior to last year, Commissioner Recognition Events have included a catered luncheon or brunch.  
At every Commissioners’ Recognition Event, the Mayor and City Councilmembers have thanked 
Commissioners for their volunteer service and acknowledged their service with certificates and 
small tokens of appreciation (portfolios, business card holders, etc.). For the last four years, the 
gifts were foregone in lieu of making a contribution to the Milpitas Food Pantry, the Veterans 
Memorial Sign and the Veterans Memorial Bench. In May of 2012 at a City Council meeting, a 
budget of $8,000.00 was approved from the City Council’s discretionary funds. Typically, this 
event is paid for using those funds. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Funds of $8,000 are included in the City Council’s budget used to fund the 
Commissioners’ Recognition Event. The cost of the recommended 2013 Recognition would not 
exceed approved funds for the event, as determined by the City Council.  A catered luncheon 
would cost approximately $12-$17 per person (inclusive of food, beverages, decorations and 
certificates).  Luncheon would be held at the Milpitas Community Center, which seats 300 people 
and can accommodate Commissioners and their guests. Recognition at a City Council meeting 
would cost approximately $5 - $7 per person (inclusive of light appetizers, beverages and 
certificates). 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the 2013 Commissioners’ Recognition event as a catered luncheon 
to be held on Saturday, April 13, 2013 at the Milpitas Community Center.  

 
 3. Continue Discussion of Policy on Reimbursement to Councilmembers for Events (Staff 

Contact:  Michael Ogaz, 408-586-3040) 
 
Background:  At the December 18, 2012 Council meeting, there was discussion concerning the 
appropriate scope of reimbursement to the Mayor and Council for expenditures related to civic 
functions. Councilmember Gomez requested the City Attorney provide additional information 
regarding the possibility of Councilpersons maintenance of an Office Holder or similar account 
that could cover this type of expenditure.  This matter was considered and the City Attorney’s 
Office issued a written opinion on it in 2007 (copy of the memo is included in the Council agenda 
packet). The short answer is that Office Holder accounts are not allowed for local officials of 
general law cities, but such expenses might be allowed from campaign accounts if related to a 
political, legislative or governmental purpose.  The City Attorney’s office contacted the FPPC to 
determine whether this is still consistent with the agency’s regulations and FPPC staff confirmed 
that it is. 
 
The current City Council Handbook provision regarding Reimbursement for City Functions only 
allows them for “functions which honor City employees, school district employees and other 
officials for their service and achievements.”  Vice Mayor Polanski has proposed modifications to 
that policy and also addresses other broader reimbursement policies.  A copy of her proposal is 
included in the agenda packet. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Cost of reimbursements allowed under policy. 
 
Recommendation:  Provide staff direction regarding amendments to the reimbursement 
provisions of the City Council Handbook. 

 
 4. Receive Report from City Council Fire Department Budget Task Force (Contacts:  Vice 

Mayor Polanski, Councilmember Gomez, and City Manager Tom Williams, 408-586-3050) 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 7 
 

Background:  At the City Council meeting of January 15, 2013, Council ordered layoff notices 
to eliminate four firefighter positions as a result of economic conditions.  Significant budget over 
runs specifically related to overtime usage is projected to be $1.5 million over the authorized 
budget amount for the Fire Department.  At this same meeting, Council directed an ad hoc 
Council Task Force to consider alternatives to the layoffs. That task force, consisting of two City 
Councilmembers, met twice.  These publicly noticed meetings included discussions with fire 
union personnel and comments from two members of the public.  The second meeting was held 
on January 29, 2013 in an effort to expedite possible solutions for Council consideration, prior to 
the effective date of the layoffs scheduled February 18, 2013. 
 
Issues raised and discussed at the ad hoc task force meetings resulted in four areas for evaluation 
and consideration in order to prevent firefighter layoffs: 
 
1. Consider accepting a $1.8 million Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 

(SAFER) grant.  This grant is intended to pay the cost of six firefighters for two years. There 
are pros and cons associated with acceptance of the grant that will be discussed in detail at 
the City Council meeting.  It should be noted that the grant proceeds are approximately 
$360,000 short of the two year cost of hiring to staffing levels of 60.  The IAFF claims that a 
staff level of 60, the issue of runaway overtime will be controlled and save the City $1.2 
million annually. 

 
2. Cost Recovery expenditures over the budgeted amount for overtime for FY 2012-13 (IAFF 

Goal $450,000) / (City use of $600,000 of reserves). 
Under this scenario, the City would shift $600,000 from reserves and IAFF Local 1699 
would be responsible for saving $450,000 from other areas of their budget.  IAFF 
requested time through February 1 to provide a proposal for savings. 

 
3. Cease the Overtime Burn Rate 
 Eliminate the $180,000 overtime paid per month.  To achieve this, City management 

requested the IAFF Local 1699 agree to the mandated minimum staffing required in their 
current contract. 

 
4. Schedule for Repayment of Reserves  
 If $600,000 in reserves is used, the ad hoc task force requested a repayment from the Fire 

Department budget.  Staff analyzed this objective and recommends a six-year payback to 
the reserves at $100,000 per annum commencing with the FY 2013-14 budget. 

 
Fiscal Impact:  Potential $1.2 million in savings to the General Fund.  
 
Recommendation:  Discuss alternatives and obtain agreement with IAFF local 1699 on the 
repayment of reserves and lifting the minimum staffing mandate.  Consider acceptance of the 
SAFER Grant if there is no demonstrated risk to the City and the above is achieved.   
 

* 5. Receive the December 2012 and January 2013 Odor Control Reports (Staff Contact:  
Kathleen Phalen, 408-586-3345) 
 
Background:  From November 19, 2012 through January 21, 2013, the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) received thirty-three odor complaints originating in Milpitas.  
Twenty-five complaints identified a garbage-related odor, two identified a sewage-related odor, 
and six did not identify an odor source.  As of the last Council update, the City’s odor reporting 
website has received twenty-five reported complaints.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  Receive the December 2012 and January 2013 odor reports. 

 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 8 
 

 XV. REPORTS OF MAYOR  
 

* 6. Consider Mayor’s Recommendation for Appointment of Planning Commission Alternate 
(Contact:  Mayor Esteves, 408-586-3029) 
 
Background:  Mayor Esteves recommends resident Demetress Morris to serve as the Alternate 
member to the Planning Commission to a term that will expire in December 2015.  All Planning 
Commissioners are required to be registered voters and Ms. Morris’ voter registration status was 
confirmed. A copy of her Commission application is included in the Council agenda packet, 
along with others not recommended for appointment at this time.  
 
Recommendation: Receive Mayor’s recommendation and move to appoint Demetress Morris as 
the Alternate member of Milpitas Planning Commission to a term to expire in December 2015. 
 

* 7. Consider Mayor’s Recommendations for Appointments and Reappointments to Seven 
Milpitas Commissions (Contact:  Mayor Esteves, 408-586-3029) 
 
Background:  Mayor Esteves recommends the following residents be appointed or re-appointed 
to Milpitas Commissions as follows: 
 
Community Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Eva Ferguson (Alternate No. 1) as a regular member to a term to expire in January 2015. 
Appoint Oscar Leon (Alternate No. 3) as a regular member to a term to expire in January 2015. 
Appoint Marsha Tran (Alternate No. 4) as Alternate No. 1 to a term to expire in January 2015. 
Newly appoint Ray Maglalang as Alternate No. 2 to a term to expire in January 2015. 
 
Economic Development Commission: 
Appoint Sumeet Ahuja (Alternate No. 1) as a regular member representing Retail to a term to 
expire in April 2015. 
Newly appoint B. Michael Howard as a regular member representing Hotels to a term to expire in 
April 2015. 

 
Library Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Marie Pham (Alternate No. 1) as a regular member to a term to expire in June 2013. 
Appoint Hellie Matteo (Alternate No. 2) as a regular member to a term to expire in June 2013. 

 
Recycling and Source Reduction Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Kashmir Gill (Alternate No. 1) as a regular member to a term to expire in October 2015. 
Appoint Madan Arora (Alternate No. 2) as Alternate No. 1 to a term to expire in October 2013. 
Newly appoint Eddie Inamdar as Alternate No. 2 to a term to expire in October 2014. 

 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint Albert Alcorn as a regular member to a term to expire in January 2015. 
Reappoint Kurt Bohan as a regular member to a term to expire in January 2015. 
Reappoint Ernesto Bautista as Alternate No. 1 to a term to expire in January 2015. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Newly Appoint Peter Chang as Alternate No. 2 to a term to expire in September 2013. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Newly appoint Ferdinand Luis, Jr. as Alternate No. 2 to a term to expire February 2016. 
 
Copies of Commission applications are included in the agenda packet for those being newly 
recommended to serve on a City Commission.  

 
Recommendations:  Receive Mayor’s recommendations and move to approve appointments and 
reappointments to seven Milpitas Commissions. 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 9 
 

 
 XVI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 8. Receive Financial Status Report for the Six Months Ended December 31, 2012 (Staff 
Contact:  Emma Karlen, 408-586-3145) 
 
Background:  As of December 31, 2012, the General Fund received approximately $22.2 million 
in total revenue.  This amount is $2.18 million more than the revenues received for the same 
period in FY 2011-12 primarily due to increased sales tax revenue, increased building and fire 
permit and plan check revenue, increased reimbursement from the Great Mall for a third police 
officer, and increased Transient Occupancy Tax revenue (TOT).  Staff anticipated most of the 
increases and had incorporated the revenue increase in the General Fund FY 2012-13 budget 
projection. Nevertheless, based on trend analysis and updated information received to date, some 
of the revenue categories have been revised to exceed budget while certain revenue categories 
have been revised to be below budget.  Overall, staff expected the General Fund revenues to be 
about $485,000 above budget. 
 
Sales tax revenue is anticipated to exceed budget by about $584,000 or 3%.  The increase was 
due to increased sales generated from the apparel stores, office equipment, electronic equipment, 
restaurants, and auto sales economic segments. Transient Occupancy tax revenue (“TOT”) is 
expected to exceed budget by about $496,000 or 8.9%. Building and Fire permit and plan check 
fees were up $734,000 compared to the budget due to increased development activities. 
 
Revenues that experienced shortfalls compared to the budget are property tax revenues, fines and 
forfeitures, and charges for services.  Property tax revenue for FY 2012-13 is based on assessed 
valuations established as of January 2012.  The recent improvement in home prices and real estate 
values has not been reflected in the assessed valuations in January 2012. Excluding the 
distribution from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund due to dissolution of the 
Redevelopment Agency, property tax is projected to be $1.36 million below budget.  Fines and 
forfeitures are revised to be $110,000 below budget. Fines and forfeitures are typically not easy 
to predict and is not a major source of revenue for the City.  The decrease in charges to services is 
related to private job revenues.  Although development activities increased over last year but the 
private job revenues generated by consultants were over estimated by $265,000.  Since some of 
the private job services are provided by consultants, the utilization of consultants will also be 
reduced accordingly and thus saving the City’s contractual service costs.  
 
Overall, City departments’ expenditures for the first six months were on track with the budget at 
about 49.7%.  As of December 31, 2012, personnel costs exceeded budget by about 2.3% while 
non-personnel costs were under budget by about 9.8%.  It should be noted the expenditures for 
several departments exceeded 50% for the first six months.  Some of the reasons for over 
expenditures are related to timing of the expenditures such as insurance premium and software 
licenses that need to be paid at the beginning of the year and the costs will even out by the end of 
the fiscal year.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  Receive the City’s financial status report for the six months ended December 
31, 2012. 

 
* 9. Receive City of Milpitas Investment Portfolio Status Report for the Quarter Ended 

December 31, 2012 (Staff Contact:  Emma Karlen, 408-586-3145) 
 
Background:  In compliance with the State of California Government Code and the City’s 
Investment policy, the City of Milpitas Investment Report for the quarter ended December 31, 
2012 is submitted for Council review and acceptance.   
 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 10 
 

The Portfolio Summary Report included in the Council’s packet provides a summary of the 
City’s investments by type.  It lists the par value, market value, book value, percentage of 
portfolio, term, days to maturity and the equivalent yields for each type of investment.  The 
Portfolio Details Report provides the same information for each individual investment in the 
City's portfolio as of December 31, 2012. 
 
As of December 31, 2012, the principal cost and market value of the City’s investment portfolio 
was $148,021,946 and $148,727,872 respectively. When market interest rates increase after an 
investment is purchased, the market value of that investment decreases.  Conversely, when 
market interest rates decline after an investment is purchased, the market value of that investment 
increases.  If the investments are not sold prior to the maturity date, there is no market risk.  
Therefore, in accordance with the City’s investment policy, all investments are held until maturity 
to ensure the return of all invested principal. 
 
The City’s effective rate of return for the period ended December 31, 2012 was 0.66%. The 
comparative benchmarks for the same period were 0.33% for LAIF (Local Agency Investment 
Fund) and 0.26% for the 12-month average yield of the 2-year Treasury Note.  The weighted 
average maturity of the portfolio was 427 days. 
 
The investment portfolio is in compliance with the City’s investment policy.  A combination of 
securities maturing, new revenues, and tax receipts will adequately cover the anticipated cash 
flow needs for the next six months.  Cash flow requirements are continually monitored and are 
considered paramount in the selection of maturity dates of securities.  
 
The market values of the securities were provided by BNY Mellon, the safekeeping bank of the 
City’s securities.  All the securities owned by the City are held in the trust department of BNY 
Mellon under the terms of a custody agreement. 
 
Three charts are included with the agenda packet that show investment by maturity levels, 
comparison of the City’s portfolio yields to other benchmark yields as well as a trend of the type 
of securities in the City’s portfolio, weighted average maturity and average yield. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Receive the investment report for the quarter ended December 31, 2012. 

 
* 10. Approve Ben Gross Tribute Event Planned for February 23, 2013 and Direct Staff to 

Research the Dedication of a City Park Called the Ben Gross Memorial Park (Staff 
Contact:  Dale Flunoy, 408-586-3228) 
 
Background:  At the October 2, 2012 Council meeting, Councilmembers directed the City 
Manager and staff to work with resident Debra Lax on a celebration to honor the former Milpitas 
1960’s Mayor Ben Gross for his service to the City.  
 
An appropriate celebration to honor Mr. Gross’ work in the City of Milpitas and the Sunnyhills 
area is scheduled with a small celebratory event on February 23, 2013 at 12:00 p.m. The event 
will be held in the Barbara Lee Senior Center honoring the recently deceased former Mayor with 
speeches, entertainment and light refreshments. This event is budgeted at $1,500. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $1,500 from City Council community promotions budget. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the planned Ben Gross tribute event in an amount not to exceed 
$1,500 and direct staff to research a possible park dedication in his honor at a city park yet to be 
determined.  
 

* 11. Authorize the Acceptance of a Grant for the Senior Nutrition Program (Staff Contact:  
Renee Lorentzen, 408-586-3409) 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 11 
 

 
Background:  Milpitas Recreation Services applied for a grant from the Walmart Foundation to 
obtain funds for additional meals for the Senior Nutrition Program at the Barbara Lee Senior 
Center. The grant was approved and awarded to Recreation Services in the amount of $1,000 
which will feed approximately 215 additional meals to seniors through June 2013. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  The increase in the Senior Nutrition program budget in the amount of 
$1,000 will be offset by the grant revenue. 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the Walmart Foundation grant in the amount of $1,000 and increase 
Recreation Division budget by $1,000 for the Senior Nutrition Program.  

 
 XVII. RESOLUTIONS 
 

* 12. Adopt a Resolution Annexing Certain Real Property into Community Facilities District No. 
2005-1; Authorize the Execution of a Subdivision Improvement Agreement; Approve the 
Final Map (Tract # 10139), and Improvement Plans (2-1163) for 1201 South Main Street / 
SORA Milpitas, LLC for Project No. 2718  (Staff Contact:  Keyvan Irannejad, 408-586-
3244) 

 
Background:  On November 1, 2011, the City Council approved the Site Development Permit, 
Tentative Map, and Conditional Use Permit for the Abel and Main Street Apartments, 200 units 
located at 1201 South Main Street.  The development has on-site private utilities (potable water, 
sanitary sewer, storm drain, etc.).  The public improvements are South Abel Street and South 
Main Street frontage improvements (City utility connections, portion of Sewer 11D, traffic signal, 
medians, curb and gutter, sidewalk, paving, landscaping, etc.).   
 
SORA Milpitas, LLC (the owner of Tract 10139) is required to annex the subject property into 
the Community Facilities District 2005-1 (CFD 2005-1) as a condition of the tentative map 
approved by the Council on November 1, 2011.  Resolution No. 7521 adopted by City Council on 
May 17, 2005, forming the CFD 2005-1, authorizes the City to annex properties to CFD 2005-1, 
which will be assessed only for eligible public services, without further public hearing or formal 
election upon receipt of written consent from the owners.  SORA Milpitas, LLC has given 
consent and approval that this property be annexed to CFD 2005-1.  SORA Milpitas, LLC has 
also agreed that such consent and approval constitutes election to annex to CFD 2005-1 and 
approval of the authorization for the levy of the special tax on the subject properties. 
 
The developer has also submitted the final map and public improvement plans, and has executed 
the subdivision improvement agreement for the project.  The public improvement plans and final 
map are available for review in the office of the City Engineer.  Staff has reviewed the documents 
and finds they satisfy the City’s requirements for this project.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.    
 
Recommendations:  
1. Adopt a resolution annexing properties known as SORA Milpitas, LLC into Community 

Facility District 2005-1. 
2. Approve and authorize the execution of a subdivision improvement agreement. 
3. Approve the final map (Tract 10139) and public improvement plans (2-1163). 
 

* 13. Adopt a Resolution Designating National Meter and Automation as Sole Source Provider 
for Badger Meters and Approve the Purchase of Assorted Badger Water Meters for 
$70,092.76 (Staff Contact:  Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 
 
Background:  On May 15, 2007, pursuant to Municipal Code section I-2-3.13, Standardization, 
the City Council approved Badger meters as the standard brand of water meter for the City of 
Milpitas and, per Municipal Code Section I-2-5.03-4, approved the National Meter and 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 12 
 

Automation as the sole source distributor for Badger water meters.  The sole source designation 
was good for five years and expired in May 2012.  Staff requests that the sole source designation 
for National Meter and Automation be reinstated for another five years as there are currently no 
other providers for Badger meters in California.  The proposed purchase will allow staff to 
complete customer orders and restock the supplies that have been depleted during the first half of 
FY 2012-13.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. The purchase is a programmed expense approved in the FY 2012-13 
budget for Utility Maintenance. 
 
Recommendations: 
1. Adopt a resolution designating National Meter and Automation as the sole source provider 

for Badger water meters in the City of Milpitas.  
2. Approve the purchase of assorted Badger water meters from National Meter and Automation 

for the not-to-exceed amount of $70,092.76. 
 

 XVIII. CONTRACTS 
 

* 14. Authorize Continued Employment of a Temporary Contractual Building Inspector Position 
for Lyon Apartments (Staff Contact:  Keyvan Irannejad, 408-586-3244) 
 
Background:  Lyon Communities developer requested to extend employment of a dedicated full 
time building inspector for its Lyon Milpitas Apartments project to provide continuous and 
uninterrupted inspection service for the remaining duration of construction.  This service was 
provided to the developer since December 1, 2011 by the City building department, and proved to 
be beneficial to both sides. It allows the City to continue to provide a high level of customer 
service by considerably reducing the number of re-inspections, streamlining and maintaining 
construction schedules and minimizing the number of construction revisions.  Existing workload 
does not allow the staff to provide a dedicated building inspector from current staff to the project 
and necessitates extending employment of a temporary inspector on a contractual basis at the 
annual cost of $140,640.  Previously, the developer paid the full cost of the inspection service for 
fourteen months, which included the dedicated building inspector’s salary and administrative fee. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Recommendations:   
1. Approve the Lyon Apartments developer’s request to continue employment of a temporary 

dedicated building inspector. 
2. Approve budget appropriation of $70,320, less the administrative fee, into the Building and 

Safety Department’s budget for five months until July 31, 2013. 
 

* 15. Authorize a Temporary Building Inspector Position for Coyote Creek Condominiums (Staff 
Contact:  Keyvan Irannejad, 408-586-3244) 
 
Background:  Due to the current peak workload, The Resmark Companies is requesting a 
dedicated full time building inspector for construction of Coyote Creek condominiums and 
townhomes project to provide continuous and uninterrupted inspection service for the duration of 
construction.  Such service was provided earlier by the City of Milpitas to other major projects 
and proved to be beneficial to both sides.  It allows the City to provide high level of quality 
customer service by considerably reducing the number of re-inspections, streamlining and 
maintaining construction schedules, and minimizing the number of construction revisions.  
Present workload does not allow the department to provide a dedicated building inspector from 
our current staff to the project and necessitates hiring a temporary inspector at the annual cost of 
$140,640.  The developer will pay the full cost of the inspection service, which includes salary 
for the dedicated building inspector and administrative fee. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  The developer will pay the full cost of the inspection service. 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 13 
 

 
Recommendation:   
1. Approve and authorize Coyote Creek condominium and townhouse developer’s request for 

the employment of a temporary building inspector.  
2. Approve budget appropriation of $46,880, less the administrative fee, into the Building and 

Safety Department’s budget for remaining four months of Fiscal Year 2012-13. 
 
* 16. Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Consultant Services Agreement with RMC 

Water and Environment, Inc. for Utility Engineering Support (Staff Contact:  Kathleen 
Phalen, 408-586-3345) 
 
Background:  Due to heavy work load, the Utility Engineering section seeks approval to backfill 
a staff vacancy with consultant support.  RMC Water and Environment, Inc. can provide a 
qualified utility engineer to provide these services.  Staff recommends entering into an $88,000 
consultant agreement with RMC.  The cost will be fully offset by staff vacancy savings. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  Funds are available in the Utility Engineering budget. 
 
Recommendation:  Authorize the City Manager to execute the consultant agreement with RMC 
Water and Environment, Inc. for utility engineering support. 
 

* 17. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Contract with TerraCare 
Associates to Add Two Additional Parks to the City of Milpitas Parks Maintenance Services 
(Staff Contact:  Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 
 
Background:  On June 6, 2012, the City entered into a contract with TerraCare Associates to 
provide maintenance services for twenty-eight City parks at a total annual cost of $1,326,155. 
 
City staff recommends expanding the maintenance services to include the newly constructed 
Alviso Adobe Park located at the historic Alviso Adobe, and Cerano Park that is part of the 
Cerano high density housing located along Murphy Ranch Road. Both parks were part of the 
original RFP No. 1197 “City of Milpitas Parks Maintenance Service” and are anticipated to open 
to the public in the spring of 2013.  The annual cost for the additional maintenance services for 
these two new City parks is $89,460 per quotes from TerraCare (included in the agenda packet), 
which is reasonable for the level of the work specified in the contract.  Maintenance costs for the 
two new parks would be funded through the Community Facilities District (CFD 2005-1) Fund.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  There are sufficient funds in Community Facility District (CFD) 2005-1 
budget for the maintenance services. 
 
Recommendation:  Authorize the City Manager to execute amendment No. 1 to the contract with 
TerraCare Associates to add two new parks to the City of Milpitas Parks Maintenance services 
contract for the not-to-exceed annual amount of $89,460. 
 

* 18. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 4 to the Contract with Universal 
Building Services for Additional Janitorial Services for City Buildings (Staff Contact:  
Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 
 
Background:  On September 21, 2010, the City entered into a contract with Universal Building 
Services to provide janitorial services for City Hall, Sports Center, Library Parking Garage, 1st 
Floor Fire Administration Building, and the Police Substation and Raceway. The total annual cost 
for these services was $196,889. 
 
City staff recommends expanding the janitorial service contract to include the new Senior Center, 
Community Center, Jose Higuera Adobe Building, Fire Department modular buildings, Public 
Works buildings, and the Police Department building.  The monthly cost of this expanded service 
is $24,487 and covers the period from March 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013.  This action is needed due 



 

February 5, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 14 
 

to the special assignment of several Facilities Maintenance staff to Streets Maintenance.  The cost 
will be offset by a reduction of the costs of contract services in Streets Maintenance.  The contract 
is intended only as a bridge until the additional services will be bid out and a new contract put in 
place before June 30, 2013.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  Sufficient funds are available in the Public Works Facilities Maintenance 
budget to fund the work under this amendment.  
 
Recommendation:  Approve Amendment No. 4 to the contract with Universal Building Services 
for additional janitorial services for the not-to-exceed amount of $97,948, through June 30, 2013. 
 

* 19. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Composer Jason McChristian for 
the Milpitas Community Concert Band Original Composition and Accept a Grant for the 
Band (Staff Contact:  Renee Lorentzen, 408-586-3409) 
 
Background:  The Milpitas Recreation Services Division and the Milpitas Community Concert 
Band would like to commission an original music piece to be played at the Band’s 20th 
Anniversary Gala Concert on June 7, 2013.  The Milpitas Community Concert Band Conductor 
approached local composer Jason McChristian to compose an original musical work for the 
Milpitas Community Concert Band.  The piece is required to be 3½ minutes in duration and will 
be at a cost of $525. 
 
The Milpitas Recreation Services Division applied for a grant from the Milpitas Parks and 
Recreation Foundation, a local 501(c)3, to pay for the cost of contracting the original piece of 
music by Jason McChristian for the Milpitas Community Concert Band’s 20th Anniversary Gala 
Concert.  The grant also included a request for funds to replace damaged band instruments. The 
grant was approved and awarded to Recreation Services in the amount of $809.  
 
Fiscal Impact:   None.  The increase of Recreation Division budget in the amount of $809.00 
will be offset by the grant revenue. 
 
Recommendations:  
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with composer Jason McChristian in an 

amount not to exceed $525.  
2. Accept the Milpitas Parks and Recreation Foundation grant in the amount of $809 and 

increase the Recreation Division budget in the amount of $809 for the Milpitas Community 
Concert Band Program.  

 
 XIX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2013 AT 7:00 P.M. 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council, meeting 

jointly with Public Financing Authority  

Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. City Clerk Lavelle noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano, Gomez and 
Montano  

 
ABSENT:   None 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:05 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Mr. Patel and three youth from the BAPS Temple in Milpitas offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of December 18, 2012 City Council meeting, as submitted 
  
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for December 2012 and January 

2013, as amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams noted the Economic Development Commission meeting scheduled 
for January 11 was canceled.  The Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission was re-scheduled 
from Monday, January 14 to Thursday, January 17 at 7:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATIONS Mayor Esteves commended four Milpitas residents who were 2012 Santa Clara County 

Emergency Volunteers of the Year:  Joseph Weinstein, Kristen Valus, Leo Martinez, and Josh 
Azaveda.  

 
 Next, Mayor Esteves presented Neighborhood Beautification awards for 2012 to many resident 

homeowners and business owners. A brief reception was held in the lobby following the awards.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, spoke to the City council regarding sewer rates.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  2 

 Vice Mayor Polanski commented in response to him, acknowledging an e-mail sent to him, which 
she quoted from. 

 
 Alvin White, Milpitas, addressed the Council with his belief that his vehicle was “stolen” while it 

was actually towed after Christmas by a service directed by Milpitas Police Department.  
 
 George Lund, 50 year resident of Milpitas, was unhappy about the lien issued against his property, 

due to comments from his neighbors to City staff, and other issues related to his home.  He felt he 
had been threatened by the City. 

 
Frank DeSmidt, representing Milpitas Rotary Club, was Chair of the Gene Schwab City employee 
annual awards luncheon which all were invited to attend on Monday, January 28 at the Beverly 
Heritage Hotel. 

 
Carol Kassab, CEO of the Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, announced a “State of the State” 
luncheon with local elected officials in the state capitol, was scheduled for Wednesday, January 30 
in Fremont, with more information on the Chamber’s website. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Mayor Esteves congratulated a new business, King Wah restaurant opened at 1235 East Calaveras 

Blvd. with Cantonese Dim Sum food offered.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 

City Manager Williams requested that the City Council hear public hearing agenda items No. 2 
and 3 in reverse order and the Councilmembers agreed. 

 
    Motion/Second:                 Councilmember Gomez/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended 
 
 The City Manager noted that regarding agenda item no. 11 (fee waiver request), the correct 

amount to be waived was $6,653.20.  He requested the Council - acting as the Board of the Public 
Financing Authority - simply add agenda item no. PFA2. (adopt two Resolutions) to the consent 
calendar.  

 
 Councilmember Giordano requested to remove Item No. 6 (Commission appointments) for 

discussion  
 
 Mayor Esteves had several questions of staff on the Commissioners Recognition (agenda item No. 

10) and then asked to remove this from consent.  
 
 Motion/Second:         Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES: 5   
   NOES:  0  
 

* 5. Appointment Council 
member to Two Committees  

1. Received the Mayor’s recommendations for appointments.  
2. Adopted Resolution No. 8223 approving the appointment of Councilmember Montano 
as the alternate member from Milpitas to the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC), which is retroactively effective on January 10, 2013. 
3. Approved the appointment of Councilmember Montano as a regular member, and 
Mayor Esteves as the alternate, to the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Coyote Flood 
Protection and Watershed Advisory Committee.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  3 

  
* 7. Walk-a-thon Donation Approved allocation of $250 from the City Council unallocated community promotions 

budget as a donation to Curtner Elementary School for annual Walk-A-Thon fundraiser. 
  
*11. Waive Fees for Relay for 
Life annual event in June  

Approved the request for fee waiver and in-kind donations of equipment, supplies, facility 
use and staffing totaling $6,903.20 for the annual American Cancer Society’s Relay for 
Life event at the Milpitas Sports Center held June 21-23, 2013. 

  
*12. Report of Sale of Truck  Received staff report on the sale of a Lift All Bucket Truck fir $6,999. 
  
*13. 6th Amendment to Hopkins 
& Carley contract  

Approved the Sixth Amendment to the contract for legal services between the City of 
Milpitas and the law firm of Hopkins & Carley, and approve transfer of contract amount 
from contingency reserve to City Attorney budget. 

  
*14. Contract with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc.  

1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a contract for Annual Tree Maintenance 
Service by piggybacking the City of Sunnyvale contract with West Coast Arborist, Inc. 
for the annual not-to-exceed amount of $170,000. 
2. Authorized the City Manager to approve annual increases per the contract terms 
without further action by City Council. 

  
*15. Agreement with McQuay 
Int’l for Chiller Maintenance  

1.  Approved an Assured Maintenance Agreement with McQuay International for 
maintenance of the chillers in the Police/Public Works building for the annual not-to-
exceed amount of $10,952. 
2.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*16. Approve Coop. Purchase 
for technical equipment  

Authorized the purchase of 16 mobile computers and eight modems through the use of a 
Cooperative Procurement Contract, for use by the Milpitas Fire Department.  

  
*17. Authorize CRW Payment  Authorized payment of the annual CRW Systems, Inc. technical support and software 

maintenance services for the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000. 
  
*18. Authorize Payment to 
Preston Pipeline  

1. Received a report of Dempsey Road water main emergency repair work from the Public 
Works Director.  
2. Approved a budget appropriation from the Water Fund in the amount of $55,000.  
Authorize staff to pay Preston Pipeline for the emergency repair of the Dempsey Road 
water main in an amount not to exceed $55,000. 

  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  
1.  Weed Abatement Program  Fire Marshal Albert Zamora explained actions taken to date for the weed abatement 

program, including Resolution No. 8212 adopted last month.  This evening was the 
opportunity to hear from any property owners who might object to clearing of weeds on 
their properties.  Also, the Fire Marshal introduced Mr. Ray Moreno, from the County of 
Santa Clara Agriculture office, who was present to answer questions about the program. 
 
Next, the Mayor opened the public hearing and heard no testimony.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 8218 authorizing the City Manager to direct the Santa 
Clara County Agricultural Commissioner to abate weeds declared to be a public nuisance, 
to keep an account of the costs, and to embody such account in a report and assessment 
list to the City Council  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  4 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 

  
2.  Actions related to Los 
Coches Residential 
Development Project  

Planner Tiffany Brown spoke on the new residential proposed at 31 Los Coches, in the 
Town Center Zoning District, with a zone change from industrial to residential at the 
former corporate buildings.  She reviewed the Planning Commission meeting where it 
recommended, on 3-2 vote, that the Council approve the project. The Commission had 
some discussion on appropriateness of residential next to a railroad yard and crossings. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked an assortment of questions regarding the project’s location to transit,  
Town Center zoning and the low density proposed, links to shopping, schools and other 
facilities  for residents to walk to. 
 
Councilmember Montano answered the Mayor on one issue:  it was two miles from the 
site to the BART station at Great Mall.  
 
Councilmember Giordano said the conversion of industrial to residential was the question 
for this site, in an under-utilized part of town.  That’s why the overlay was put on it.  She 
felt housing made sense in the neighborhood.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski addressed concerns about schools, mitigation for BART when it 
comes through, noise and vibration studies, soundwalls, and the necessary lighting on the 
walking path under 237overcrossing.  
 
Councilmember Gomez inquired about the ideal commercial use of the site, as it had been 
vacant more than ten years.  He asked further about what schools children living there 
would attend, and recreation, including parks, to be available. 
 
Councilmember Montano asked about the trail, height of soundwall, needed widening of 
Calaveras Blvd., and other concerns about water, lack of commercial, and the “fortress” 
like feel to the project design.  
 
Mayor Esteves asked the developer if the company made any contributions to Council 
members’ campaign accounts, and the reply was no.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited the applicant to the podium, so representative Andy Byde from 
Braddock and Logan gave background of his company and the project.  He then went on 
to answer some of previous questions raised by City Councilmembers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments.  
 
Freeman Jenkins, Church pastor in Milpitas, said there was not enough parking in the area 
now.  He mentioned Hammond St. and limited parking for apartments. 
 
Planning Director Steve McHarris told the City Council that the speaker was likely   
addressing another proposed project in a different area of the City.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said with 3,500 more housing units coming in next few 
years so he did not understand why more was needed. This would bring more traffic, more 
use of city services, difficult access for public safety, and marginalized the right to vote on 
utility rate increases. Building the project would be detrimental. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, said there were bike lanes on Milpitas Blvd. With access 
to trails and bus stops, this development would be transit friendly. There houses were 
large, however, at more than 2500 ft for single family homes. So residents were less likely 
to use public transit.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  5 

 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8219 approving the Vesting Major Tentative Map, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Site Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit 
for the Los Coches residential project located at 31 Los Coches Street  
 
Mayor Esteves commented favorably on the style of homes, and positive impacts of this 
new proposed residential neighborhood.  His only concern remaining was the school that 
children would attend from this location.  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Montano)  

  
3. General Plan Amendments  Senior Planner Sheldon Ah Sing presented the explanation for the request to adopt some 

new policies to include in the Land Use Element and the Circulation Element in the 
approved City of Milpitas General Plan.  The Circulation Element was requested to be 
amended in part to qualify for grant funds available for the Complete Streets Program.  
 
Councilmember Giordano noticed the Planning Commission had approved this 
recommendation and she asked staff if it was a unanimous vote, and staff affirmed it was.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski referred to a letter from Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, 
seeking some additional requested projects to be listed in the Circulation Element. She 
asked how those could be included and what would those affect.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked if there areas of the City excluded in the recommended 
action. Staff explained that upon a review of the specific areas in the Resolution, one 
could find that information. The City Manager replied to her, that the City Council could 
have a study session on this subject, if desired.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that a previous subcommittee discussed the Complete Streets 
Plan and was ready to vote on this, since it was first brought up last August. 
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments  
 
Guy Haas, Fallen Leaf Drive resident, asked for one typographical correction in the  
Circulation element. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone Ave, wanted to see the connection from Yellowstone to 
Curtis included in the plan. That project was not on the list in the Circulation Element as 
drafted.  So, the City could not even request funds from the larger regional transportation 
agencies.  He requests that the four specific projects (in letter) be added onto the list for 
the regional groups to consider for future funding.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, felt that if the business/housing mix was changing, then 
the City should add on some plan for transportation and put it into the Resolution, to move 
people around the City better and to get money for projects.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  6 

 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that 237 was a state highway and Council could not make 
recommendations for changes on that road way (only comments).  She wanted to look at 
the projects on Sunnyhills list, the circulation around new BART station. The Vice Mayor 
recommended including this one in the Circulation element.  
 
Councilmember Gomez suggested the Council could have a study session on jobs/housing 
relation, with the benefits of amending the General Plan.  He asked the City Manager for 
the limit on amendments per year and Mr. Williams replied four times per year maximum. 
 
Councilmember Giordano replied on items in the Sunnyhills list and agreed with No. 4 
(circulation around the BART station).  She asked for support to consider item no.1 
(crossing over Yosemite) as she agreed with Mr. Rob Means, and that it could at least be 
considered for funding in the future.  
 
Mayor Esteves felt there was a need for lots of options for circulation. He did not believe 
the Sunnyhills No. 1 item was feasible economically.   
 
Councilmember Giordano moved to adopt the Resolution, and to a add items no. 1 and no. 
4 from the Sunnyhills letter. Vice Mayor Polanski seconded the motion, and would also 
want the circulation around the BART station and other projects that might come up 
through research (i.e. not limiting) to be included, as appropriate.  
 
This could include connectors at local streets, connecting streets, add arterials to local 
roadways and collector streets, staff suggested. 
 
Councilmember Gomez would like a presentation at another time, expressed to the City 
Manager.  He supported a study session on the Land Use Element.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked whether trails were included in the Circulation Element 
and Mr. Williams replied, yes.  
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8220 approving the General Plan Amendment No. 
GP12-005, for the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as recommended by the Milpitas 
Planning Commission including recommendations No. 1 (railroad crossing connecting 
Yosemite Drive and Curtis Avenue) and No. 4 (circulator around the BART station) from 
the January 9, 2013 letter submitted by the Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, and 
including a broad approach to inclusion of street improvements in the Circulation Element  
(as per comments by Vice Mayor Polanski)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Esteves)  
 
Mayor Esteves said he opposed including Sunnyhills recommendation no. 1. 

  
4.  Update of Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee  

Planning Director Steve McHarris explained the desired update of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan Development Impact Fee, adopted in 2008. This same item was approved by 
the City Council on December 18, 2012, with a 30-days urgency resolution. At this 
meeting, Council was requested to adopt another resolution again for next 30 days, up to 
the date when the permanent impact fee (adopted by Resolution in December) would take 
effect to update the Transit Area Development Impact Fees charged to developers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing to receive testimony and heard none.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  7 

(1) Motion:  to  close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt urgent Resolution No. 8221 extending the revised fee schedule for 
the Transit Area Development Impact Fee effective for 30 days (requiring a 4/5 minimum 
vote for approval)  
 
Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0  

  
JOINT PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
PFA1.  Call to Order/Roll Call A joint meeting was called to order by Mayor Esteves at the very start and all Public 

Financing Authority members were present.  
  
* PFA2.  Resolutions This item was added to the consent calendar.   

 
Adopted Resolution No. 8222 and Resolution No. PFA 15 authorizing the investment of 
monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund, updating the signatures of current officials.  

  
PFA3.  Authority Adjourn   
  
REPORTS  Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
6. Commission Appointments  Councilmember Giordano requested to separate the votes on the Planning Commission 

appointments from all the others.  
 
(1) Motion:  to appoint all the Mayor’s recommended Commission appointments, with the 
exception of the Planning Commission: 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Christine Sanchez as a regular member to a term that will expire in August 2013.   
Appoint Chris Lee as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in August 2014. 
Newly appoint Kristal Caidoy as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in Aug. 2013. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission: 
Reappoint Melba Holliday to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
Reappoint Moo Jin Choi as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Reappoint Brenda Su as the student non-voting member to a term to expire in Sept. 2014. 
 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint William Lam to a term that will expire in January 2015. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Reappoint Denny Weisgerber to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Dana Arbaugh to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Bruce Choy to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Arthur Ebright to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint David Grundstrom to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Mel Hinshaw to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Liliana Ramos as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in February 2016. 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  8 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(2) Motion:  to re-appoint Gurdev “Dave” Sandhu and Rajeev Madnawat for another term 
of three years to the Milpitas Planning Commission (terms expire December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(3) Motion:  to appoint Garry Barbadillo (current Alternate Member) to a three-year term 
as a voting member of the Milpitas Planning Commission (term expires December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Montano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  4 
                                                      NOES:  1 (Giordano  
 
Councilmember Montano reported there was a vacancy on the Library Advisory 
Commission since she was elected to the Council. She requested the Mayor to move up 
the Alternate Members on that one Commission, at the next Council meeting.  

  
NEW BUSINESS Three items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
8.   Consider Fire Department  
Temporary Reduction in Force 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a presentation to explain current costs including 
overtime expenses, with a request to reduce staff and brown out one engine at the Milpitas 
Fire Department.  The reduction would involve 10 members (4 firefighter layoffs and 
others bumped) to save approximately $315,000 through the end of the fiscal year. This 
was recommended as a temporary strategy.   The Chief said he would meet with San Jose 
and Fremont Fire Chiefs about mutual aid implementation.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked for details on how the numbers impacted the department 
and the City, if approved. He acknowledged there could be a need to add to the Fire 
Department in the future with all the new developments, and he sought to understand 
impacts of the proposal.  He’d looked at this issue in the past with Councilmember 
Giordano, and it was an issue for the City for a long time. Perhaps a Task Force could be 
formed to study how to deal with the overtime costs, long term.  
 
Councilmember Giordano remarked on high overtime costs versus the budget. She termed 
the Chief’s a “viable option” as presented. 
 
Councilmember Polanski inquired if this approach has worked in other jurisdictions and 
the Chief replied yes.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked the amount over budget and the Chief replied 6%. She 
agreed with Mr. Gomez to have a Task Force to deal with problem.  
 
Mayor Esteves noted they needed to find a more permanent solution.  He was not 
supportive of adding more money into the budget to solve this, as there was a need to find 
ways to pay for the level of service, while spending only what City had.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited speakers on the issue.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said the Council was not responsible approving more 
projects.  The City gave more time off as people worked at the City longer and that was 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  9 

no good.  He asked if there was any plan where firefighters would come back in an 
emergency situation to provide service. 
 
City Manager Williams responded to the public that each new housing unit built in 
Milpitas must join an established Community Facilities District to pay its fair share of 
costs for city services. 
 
Denny Weisgerber, Casper Street resident, commented on the 23% vacancy rate and it 
was due to many factors.  He felt that cutting out a complete fire company, with only 
minimum station crew was not proper.  
 
Mia Bradway Winter, Milpitas resident, told Council they had a responsibility to protect 
residents.  Staffing had been in place since 1980. Taking out one rig meant a 20% 
reduction of service while they needed that to protect the community.   
 
Steve King, IAFF local 1699 President, remarked on a recent structure fire and the lack of 
response by the neighboring Fire Departments in San Jose and Fremont.  Those 
relationships never met needs of the contract, so staffing levels not sufficient.  
 
Leif Juliassen, 15 years with Milpitas Fire, said with minimum staffing there were 15 on 
duty each day.  In the last ten years, staffing reduction was requested by the City.  Then, 
the overtime budget was cut in this current budget when full staffing not realized. 
 
Brian Stelling, Fire Captain with nearly 20 years with Milpitas, requested that City 
Council dip into reserves to pay for current overtime costs.  It was not realistic to have 
neighbors help more, when they’ve been cutting, too.  
 
Courtney Anderson, just six months with Milpitas Fire, had four children and always 
wanted to be a firefighter. He could not understand how he just got here and now he 
would get laid off.  It was not right for him and his family.  
 
Heather Fisher, born and raised in Milpitas and a new firefighter, said this was her dream 
job in her hometown.  She feared hearing her parents’ address over the radio, and the need 
to be with them if nobody was coming.  
 
Jerrell Hardy, a new Milpitas firefighter, left his previous career to come to Milpitas Fire 
Department.  Their purpose was to serve and protect the people of Milpitas.   
 
Jaime Garcia, Fire Prevention division employee, looked at all the new projects and 
structures.  He referred to previous City budgets for Fire. Overtime budgets had been 
reduced from $1.5 million to $464,000 while giving up positions which he termed “really 
unfair” when concessions were given. 
 
Isaac Lorenzano, Milpitas firefighter, had family here in Milpitas.  He urged Council to 
think about how to deal with this issue before making a decision. 
 
James Queenan, a lifelong resident with parents who live here, said when giving up 
positions, there would be overtime necessary.  That was what Council agreed to.  He 
referred to longer response times and effect on citizens.  It was a union busting tactic.  
 
Kristen Valice, resident and disaster worker and a SAFE Team leader who cared very 
much about any reduction in service, especially with Dixon Landing closed.  The recent 
flooding was a problem there.  
 
Yvonne Matagulay, 25 year Milpitas firefighter, asked to look at the real numbers.  When 
she was first hired, there was more staff than today with less than 20 per platoon.   
 
Eric, a Milpitas firefighter/paramedic, wanted to let Council know Fremont could not let 
firefighters run medical calls in Milpitas. He termed this action disrespectful.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  10

 
Councilmember Gomez asked Chief Sturdivant if this matter was something he could 
manage and the Chief responded yes, temporarily. Mr. Gomez proposed a Council Task 
Force with a list of responsibilities to solve the financial issue.  
 
Councilmember Giordano was in favor of going forward with the temporary solution. 
Maybe having a task force was a good idea, too.   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski questioned Chief Sturdivant: was one life worth this cut?  She was 
concerned for neighbors and friends, with the increase in residents in new housing, and 
the time for response.  She did not support the current recommendation and does support 
Mr. Gomez’ idea of having a Council task force, to come back within 60 days. 
 
Mayor Esteves noted this subject was not a new thing, rather it was an ongoing issue, and 
asked everybody for solutions.  
 
Councilmember Gomez shared the same reservations as the Vice Mayor, and it made him 
nervous. Barring other solutions, he did not know what else to do.  He did not want to pull 
from reserves, and would like to be on the Task Force if formed 
  
Councilmember Montano was surprised at the ongoing issue of fire overtime costs and 
she had been concerned about abuses.  She would go with what the Chief recommended.  
 
Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8224 to approve a temporary reduction in force of the 
Milpitas Fire Department staffing  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Polanski) 
 
Motion:  to establish a Task Force of two Councilmembers to address the issue of Fire 
Department overtime costs and to report back immediately to City Council, with potential 
recommendations including for a long term solution  
 
Motion/Second:           Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Mayor Esteves asked for volunteers from the Council to serve on the Task Force and 
Councilmember Gomez and Vice Mayor Polanski offered, so the Mayor appointed those 
two to serve on the Task Force.  
 
All other agenda items were then continued and the meeting adjourned. 

  
9.  CAFR for FY 2011-12 This matter was not heard, and so was continued to the next Council meeting.  
  
10. Commissioners Recognition 
Event  

This item was removed from consent calendar.  However, it was not discussed and was 
continued to the next Council meeting.   

  
BID/CONTRACTS Four items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
DEMANDS Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 12:09 AM on Wed. morning, January 16, 2013.  

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council, meeting 

jointly with Public Financing Authority  

Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. City Clerk Lavelle noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano, Gomez and 
Montano  

 
ABSENT:   None 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:05 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Mr. Patel and three youth from the BAPS Temple in Milpitas offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of December 18, 2012 City Council meeting, as submitted 
  
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for December 2012 and January 

2013, as amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams noted the Economic Development Commission meeting scheduled 
for January 11 was canceled.  The Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission was re-scheduled 
from Monday, January 14 to Thursday, January 17 at 7:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATIONS Mayor Esteves commended four Milpitas residents who were 2012 Santa Clara County 

Emergency Volunteers of the Year:  Joseph Weinstein, Kristen Valus, Leo Martinez, and Josh 
Azaveda.  

 
 Next, Mayor Esteves presented Neighborhood Beautification awards for 2012 to many resident 

homeowners and business owners. A brief reception was held in the lobby following the awards.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, spoke to the City council regarding sewer rates.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  2 

 Vice Mayor Polanski commented in response to him, acknowledging an e-mail sent to him, which 
she quoted from. 

 
 Alvin White, Milpitas, addressed the Council with his belief that his vehicle was “stolen” while it 

was actually towed after Christmas by a service directed by Milpitas Police Department.  
 
 George Lund, 50 year resident of Milpitas, was unhappy about the lien issued against his property, 

due to comments from his neighbors to City staff, and other issues related to his home.  He felt he 
had been threatened by the City. 

 
Frank DeSmidt, representing Milpitas Rotary Club, was Chair of the Gene Schwab City employee 
annual awards luncheon which all were invited to attend on Monday, January 28 at the Beverly 
Heritage Hotel. 

 
Carol Kassab, CEO of the Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, announced a “State of the State” 
luncheon with local elected officials in the state capitol, was scheduled for Wednesday, January 30 
in Fremont, with more information on the Chamber’s website. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Mayor Esteves congratulated a new business, King Wah restaurant opened at 1235 East Calaveras 

Blvd. with Cantonese Dim Sum food offered.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 

City Manager Williams requested that the City Council hear public hearing agenda items No. 2 
and 3 in reverse order and the Councilmembers agreed. 

 
    Motion/Second:                 Councilmember Gomez/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended 
 
 The City Manager noted that regarding agenda item no. 11 (fee waiver request), the correct 

amount to be waived was $6,653.20.  He requested the Council - acting as the Board of the Public 
Financing Authority - simply add agenda item no. PFA2. (adopt two Resolutions) to the consent 
calendar.  

 
 Councilmember Giordano requested to remove Item No. 6 (Commission appointments) for 

discussion  
 
 Mayor Esteves had several questions of staff on the Commissioners Recognition (agenda item No. 

10) and then asked to remove this from consent.  
 
 Motion/Second:         Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES: 5   
   NOES:  0  
 

* 5. Appointment Council 
member to Two Committees  

1. Received the Mayor’s recommendations for appointments.  
2. Adopted Resolution No. 8223 approving the appointment of Councilmember Montano 
as the alternate member from Milpitas to the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC), which is retroactively effective on January 10, 2013. 
3. Approved the appointment of Councilmember Montano as a regular member, and 
Mayor Esteves as the alternate, to the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Coyote Flood 
Protection and Watershed Advisory Committee.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  3 

  
* 7. Walk-a-thon Donation Approved allocation of $250 from the City Council unallocated community promotions 

budget as a donation to Curtner Elementary School for annual Walk-A-Thon fundraiser. 
  
*11. Waive Fees for Relay for 
Life annual event in June  

Approved the request for fee waiver and in-kind donations of equipment, supplies, facility 
use and staffing totaling $6,903.20 for the annual American Cancer Society’s Relay for 
Life event at the Milpitas Sports Center held June 21-23, 2013. 

  
*12. Report of Sale of Truck  Received staff report on the sale of a Lift All Bucket Truck fir $6,999. 
  
*13. 6th Amendment to Hopkins 
& Carley contract  

Approved the Sixth Amendment to the contract for legal services between the City of 
Milpitas and the law firm of Hopkins & Carley, and approve transfer of contract amount 
from contingency reserve to City Attorney budget. 

  
*14. Contract with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc.  

1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a contract for Annual Tree Maintenance 
Service by piggybacking the City of Sunnyvale contract with West Coast Arborist, Inc. 
for the annual not-to-exceed amount of $170,000. 
2. Authorized the City Manager to approve annual increases per the contract terms 
without further action by City Council. 

  
*15. Agreement with McQuay 
Int’l for Chiller Maintenance  

1.  Approved an Assured Maintenance Agreement with McQuay International for 
maintenance of the chillers in the Police/Public Works building for the annual not-to-
exceed amount of $10,952. 
2.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*16. Approve Coop. Purchase 
for technical equipment  

Authorized the purchase of 16 mobile computers and eight modems through the use of a 
Cooperative Procurement Contract, for use by the Milpitas Fire Department.  

  
*17. Authorize CRW Payment  Authorized payment of the annual CRW Systems, Inc. technical support and software 

maintenance services for the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000. 
  
*18. Authorize Payment to 
Preston Pipeline  

1. Received a report of Dempsey Road water main emergency repair work from the Public 
Works Director.  
2. Approved a budget appropriation from the Water Fund in the amount of $55,000.  
Authorize staff to pay Preston Pipeline for the emergency repair of the Dempsey Road 
water main in an amount not to exceed $55,000. 

  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  
1.  Weed Abatement Program  Fire Marshal Albert Zamora explained actions taken to date for the weed abatement 

program, including Resolution No. 8212 adopted last month.  This evening was the 
opportunity to hear from any property owners who might object to clearing of weeds on 
their properties.  Also, the Fire Marshal introduced Mr. Ray Moreno, from the County of 
Santa Clara Agriculture office, who was present to answer questions about the program. 
 
Next, the Mayor opened the public hearing and heard no testimony.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 8218 authorizing the City Manager to direct the Santa 
Clara County Agricultural Commissioner to abate weeds declared to be a public nuisance, 
to keep an account of the costs, and to embody such account in a report and assessment 
list to the City Council  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  4 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 

  
2.  Actions related to Los 
Coches Residential 
Development Project  

Planner Tiffany Brown spoke on the new residential proposed at 31 Los Coches, in the 
Town Center Zoning District, with a zone change from industrial to residential at the 
former corporate buildings.  She reviewed the Planning Commission meeting where it 
recommended, on 3-2 vote, that the Council approve the project. The Commission had 
some discussion on appropriateness of residential next to a railroad yard and crossings. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked an assortment of questions regarding the project’s location to transit,  
Town Center zoning and the low density proposed, links to shopping, schools and other 
facilities  for residents to walk to. 
 
Councilmember Montano answered the Mayor on one issue:  it was two miles from the 
site to the BART station at Great Mall.  
 
Councilmember Giordano said the conversion of industrial to residential was the question 
for this site, in an under-utilized part of town.  That’s why the overlay was put on it.  She 
felt housing made sense in the neighborhood.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski addressed concerns about schools, mitigation for BART when it 
comes through, noise and vibration studies, soundwalls, and the necessary lighting on the 
walking path under 237overcrossing.  
 
Councilmember Gomez inquired about the ideal commercial use of the site, as it had been 
vacant more than ten years.  He asked further about what schools children living there 
would attend, and recreation, including parks, to be available. 
 
Councilmember Montano asked about the trail, height of soundwall, needed widening of 
Calaveras Blvd., and other concerns about water, lack of commercial, and the “fortress” 
like feel to the project design.  
 
Mayor Esteves asked the developer if the company made any contributions to Council 
members’ campaign accounts, and the reply was no.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited the applicant to the podium, so representative Andy Byde from 
Braddock and Logan gave background of his company and the project.  He then went on 
to answer some of previous questions raised by City Councilmembers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments.  
 
Freeman Jenkins, Church pastor in Milpitas, said there was not enough parking in the area 
now.  He mentioned Hammond St. and limited parking for apartments. 
 
Planning Director Steve McHarris told the City Council that the speaker was likely   
addressing another proposed project in a different area of the City.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said with 3,500 more housing units coming in next few 
years so he did not understand why more was needed. This would bring more traffic, more 
use of city services, difficult access for public safety, and marginalized the right to vote on 
utility rate increases. Building the project would be detrimental. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, said there were bike lanes on Milpitas Blvd. With access 
to trails and bus stops, this development would be transit friendly. There houses were 
large, however, at more than 2500 ft for single family homes. So residents were less likely 
to use public transit.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  5 

 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8219 approving the Vesting Major Tentative Map, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Site Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit 
for the Los Coches residential project located at 31 Los Coches Street  
 
Mayor Esteves commented favorably on the style of homes, and positive impacts of this 
new proposed residential neighborhood.  His only concern remaining was the school that 
children would attend from this location.  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Montano)  

  
3. General Plan Amendments  Senior Planner Sheldon Ah Sing presented the explanation for the request to adopt some 

new policies to include in the Land Use Element and the Circulation Element in the 
approved City of Milpitas General Plan.  The Circulation Element was requested to be 
amended in part to qualify for grant funds available for the Complete Streets Program.  
 
Councilmember Giordano noticed the Planning Commission had approved this 
recommendation and she asked staff if it was a unanimous vote, and staff affirmed it was.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski referred to a letter from Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, 
seeking some additional requested projects to be listed in the Circulation Element. She 
asked how those could be included and what would those affect.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked if there areas of the City excluded in the recommended 
action. Staff explained that upon a review of the specific areas in the Resolution, one 
could find that information. The City Manager replied to her, that the City Council could 
have a study session on this subject, if desired.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that a previous subcommittee discussed the Complete Streets 
Plan and was ready to vote on this, since it was first brought up last August. 
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments  
 
Guy Haas, Fallen Leaf Drive resident, asked for one typographical correction in the  
Circulation element. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone Ave, wanted to see the connection from Yellowstone to 
Curtis included in the plan. That project was not on the list in the Circulation Element as 
drafted.  So, the City could not even request funds from the larger regional transportation 
agencies.  He requests that the four specific projects (in letter) be added onto the list for 
the regional groups to consider for future funding.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, felt that if the business/housing mix was changing, then 
the City should add on some plan for transportation and put it into the Resolution, to move 
people around the City better and to get money for projects.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  6 

 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that 237 was a state highway and Council could not make 
recommendations for changes on that road way (only comments).  She wanted to look at 
the projects on Sunnyhills list, the circulation around new BART station. The Vice Mayor 
recommended including this one in the Circulation element.  
 
Councilmember Gomez suggested the Council could have a study session on jobs/housing 
relation, with the benefits of amending the General Plan.  He asked the City Manager for 
the limit on amendments per year and Mr. Williams replied four times per year maximum. 
 
Councilmember Giordano replied on items in the Sunnyhills list and agreed with No. 4 
(circulation around the BART station).  She asked for support to consider item no.1 
(crossing over Yosemite) as she agreed with Mr. Rob Means, and that it could at least be 
considered for funding in the future.  
 
Mayor Esteves felt there was a need for lots of options for circulation. He did not believe 
the Sunnyhills No. 1 item was feasible economically.   
 
Councilmember Giordano moved to adopt the Resolution, and to a add items no. 1 and no. 
4 from the Sunnyhills letter. Vice Mayor Polanski seconded the motion, and would also 
want the circulation around the BART station and other projects that might come up 
through research (i.e. not limiting) to be included, as appropriate.  
 
This could include connectors at local streets, connecting streets, add arterials to local 
roadways and collector streets, staff suggested. 
 
Councilmember Gomez would like a presentation at another time, expressed to the City 
Manager.  He supported a study session on the Land Use Element.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked whether trails were included in the Circulation Element 
and Mr. Williams replied, yes.  
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8220 approving the General Plan Amendment No. 
GP12-005, for the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as recommended by the Milpitas 
Planning Commission including recommendations No. 1 (railroad crossing connecting 
Yosemite Drive and Curtis Avenue) and No. 4 (circulator around the BART station) from 
the January 9, 2013 letter submitted by the Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, and 
including a broad approach to inclusion of street improvements in the Circulation Element  
(as per comments by Vice Mayor Polanski)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Esteves)  
 
Mayor Esteves said he opposed including Sunnyhills recommendation no. 1. 

  
4.  Update of Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee  

Planning Director Steve McHarris explained the desired update of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan Development Impact Fee, adopted in 2008. This same item was approved by 
the City Council on December 18, 2012, with a 30-days urgency resolution. At this 
meeting, Council was requested to adopt another resolution again for next 30 days, up to 
the date when the permanent impact fee (adopted by Resolution in December) would take 
effect to update the Transit Area Development Impact Fees charged to developers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing to receive testimony and heard none.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  7 

(1) Motion:  to  close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt urgent Resolution No. 8221 extending the revised fee schedule for 
the Transit Area Development Impact Fee effective for 30 days (requiring a 4/5 minimum 
vote for approval)  
 
Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0  

  
JOINT PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
PFA1.  Call to Order/Roll Call A joint meeting was called to order by Mayor Esteves at the very start and all Public 

Financing Authority members were present.  
  
* PFA2.  Resolutions This item was added to the consent calendar.   

 
Adopted Resolution No. 8222 and Resolution No. PFA 15 authorizing the investment of 
monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund, updating the signatures of current officials.  

  
PFA3.  Authority Adjourn   
  
REPORTS  Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
6. Commission Appointments  Councilmember Giordano requested to separate the votes on the Planning Commission 

appointments from all the others.  
 
(1) Motion:  to appoint all the Mayor’s recommended Commission appointments, with the 
exception of the Planning Commission: 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Christine Sanchez as a regular member to a term that will expire in August 2013.   
Appoint Chris Lee as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in August 2014. 
Newly appoint Kristal Caidoy as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in Aug. 2013. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission: 
Reappoint Melba Holliday to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
Reappoint Moo Jin Choi as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Reappoint Brenda Su as the student non-voting member to a term to expire in Sept. 2014. 
 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint William Lam to a term that will expire in January 2015. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Reappoint Denny Weisgerber to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Dana Arbaugh to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Bruce Choy to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Arthur Ebright to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint David Grundstrom to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Mel Hinshaw to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Liliana Ramos as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in February 2016. 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  8 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(2) Motion:  to re-appoint Gurdev “Dave” Sandhu and Rajeev Madnawat for another term 
of three years to the Milpitas Planning Commission (terms expire December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(3) Motion:  to appoint Garry Barbadillo (current Alternate Member) to a three-year term 
as a voting member of the Milpitas Planning Commission (term expires December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Montano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  4 
                                                      NOES:  1 (Giordano  
 
Councilmember Montano reported there was a vacancy on the Library Advisory 
Commission since she was elected to the Council. She requested the Mayor to move up 
the Alternate Members on that one Commission, at the next Council meeting.  

  
NEW BUSINESS Three items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
8.   Consider Fire Department  
Temporary Reduction in Force 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a presentation to explain current costs including 
overtime expenses, with a request to reduce staff and brown out one engine at the Milpitas 
Fire Department.  The reduction would involve 10 members (4 firefighter layoffs and 
others bumped) to save approximately $315,000 through the end of the fiscal year. This 
was recommended as a temporary strategy.   The Chief said he would meet with San Jose 
and Fremont Fire Chiefs about mutual aid implementation.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked for details on how the numbers impacted the department 
and the City, if approved. He acknowledged there could be a need to add to the Fire 
Department in the future with all the new developments, and he sought to understand 
impacts of the proposal.  He’d looked at this issue in the past with Councilmember 
Giordano, and it was an issue for the City for a long time. Perhaps a Task Force could be 
formed to study how to deal with the overtime costs, long term.  
 
Councilmember Giordano remarked on high overtime costs versus the budget. She termed 
the Chief’s a “viable option” as presented. 
 
Councilmember Polanski inquired if this approach has worked in other jurisdictions and 
the Chief replied yes.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked the amount over budget and the Chief replied 6%. She 
agreed with Mr. Gomez to have a Task Force to deal with problem.  
 
Mayor Esteves noted they needed to find a more permanent solution.  He was not 
supportive of adding more money into the budget to solve this, as there was a need to find 
ways to pay for the level of service, while spending only what City had.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited speakers on the issue.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said the Council was not responsible approving more 
projects.  The City gave more time off as people worked at the City longer and that was 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  9 

no good.  He asked if there was any plan where firefighters would come back in an 
emergency situation to provide service. 
 
City Manager Williams responded to the public that each new housing unit built in 
Milpitas must join an established Community Facilities District to pay its fair share of 
costs for city services. 
 
Denny Weisgerber, Casper Street resident, commented on the 23% vacancy rate and it 
was due to many factors.  He felt that cutting out a complete fire company, with only 
minimum station crew was not proper.  
 
Mia Bradway Winter, Milpitas resident, told Council they had a responsibility to protect 
residents.  Staffing had been in place since 1980. Taking out one rig meant a 20% 
reduction of service while they needed that to protect the community.   
 
Steve King, IAFF local 1699 President, remarked on a recent structure fire and the lack of 
response by the neighboring Fire Departments in San Jose and Fremont.  Those 
relationships never met needs of the contract, so staffing levels not sufficient.  
 
Leif Juliassen, 15 years with Milpitas Fire, said with minimum staffing there were 15 on 
duty each day.  In the last ten years, staffing reduction was requested by the City.  Then, 
the overtime budget was cut in this current budget when full staffing not realized. 
 
Brian Stelling, Fire Captain with nearly 20 years with Milpitas, requested that City 
Council dip into reserves to pay for current overtime costs.  It was not realistic to have 
neighbors help more, when they’ve been cutting, too.  
 
Courtney Anderson, just six months with Milpitas Fire, had four children and always 
wanted to be a firefighter. He could not understand how he just got here and now he 
would get laid off.  It was not right for him and his family.  
 
Heather Fisher, born and raised in Milpitas and a new firefighter, said this was her dream 
job in her hometown.  She feared hearing her parents’ address over the radio, and the need 
to be with them if nobody was coming.  
 
Jerrell Hardy, a new Milpitas firefighter, left his previous career to come to Milpitas Fire 
Department.  Their purpose was to serve and protect the people of Milpitas.   
 
Jaime Garcia, Fire Prevention division employee, looked at all the new projects and 
structures.  He referred to previous City budgets for Fire. Overtime budgets had been 
reduced from $1.5 million to $464,000 while giving up positions which he termed “really 
unfair” when concessions were given. 
 
Isaac Lorenzano, Milpitas firefighter, had family here in Milpitas.  He urged Council to 
think about how to deal with this issue before making a decision. 
 
James Queenan, a lifelong resident with parents who live here, said when giving up 
positions, there would be overtime necessary.  That was what Council agreed to.  He 
referred to longer response times and effect on citizens.  It was a union busting tactic.  
 
Kristen Valice, resident and disaster worker and a SAFE Team leader who cared very 
much about any reduction in service, especially with Dixon Landing closed.  The recent 
flooding was a problem there.  
 
Yvonne Matagulay, 25 year Milpitas firefighter, asked to look at the real numbers.  When 
she was first hired, there was more staff than today with less than 20 per platoon.   
 
Eric, a Milpitas firefighter/paramedic, wanted to let Council know Fremont could not let 
firefighters run medical calls in Milpitas. He termed this action disrespectful.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  10

 
Councilmember Gomez asked Chief Sturdivant if this matter was something he could 
manage and the Chief responded yes, temporarily. Mr. Gomez proposed a Council Task 
Force with a list of responsibilities to solve the financial issue.  
 
Councilmember Giordano was in favor of going forward with the temporary solution. 
Maybe having a task force was a good idea, too.   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski questioned Chief Sturdivant: was one life worth this cut?  She was 
concerned for neighbors and friends, with the increase in residents in new housing, and 
the time for response.  She did not support the current recommendation and does support 
Mr. Gomez’ idea of having a Council task force, to come back within 60 days. 
 
Mayor Esteves noted this subject was not a new thing, rather it was an ongoing issue, and 
asked everybody for solutions.  
 
Councilmember Gomez shared the same reservations as the Vice Mayor, and it made him 
nervous. Barring other solutions, he did not know what else to do.  He did not want to pull 
from reserves, and would like to be on the Task Force if formed 
  
Councilmember Montano was surprised at the ongoing issue of fire overtime costs and 
she had been concerned about abuses.  She would go with what the Chief recommended.  
 
Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8224 to approve a temporary reduction in force of the 
Milpitas Fire Department staffing  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Polanski) 
 
Motion:  to establish a Task Force of two Councilmembers to address the issue of Fire 
Department overtime costs and to report back immediately to City Council, with potential 
recommendations including for a long term solution  
 
Motion/Second:           Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Mayor Esteves asked for volunteers from the Council to serve on the Task Force and 
Councilmember Gomez and Vice Mayor Polanski offered, so the Mayor appointed those 
two to serve on the Task Force.  
 
All other agenda items were then continued and the meeting adjourned. 

  
9.  CAFR for FY 2011-12 This matter was not heard, and so was continued to the next Council meeting.  
  
10. Commissioners Recognition 
Event  

This item was removed from consent calendar.  However, it was not discussed and was 
continued to the next Council meeting.   

  
BID/CONTRACTS Four items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
DEMANDS Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 12:09 AM on Wed. morning, January 16, 2013.  

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council, meeting 

jointly with Public Financing Authority  

Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. City Clerk Lavelle noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano, Gomez and 
Montano  

 
ABSENT:   None 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:05 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Mr. Patel and three youth from the BAPS Temple in Milpitas offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of December 18, 2012 City Council meeting, as submitted 
  
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for December 2012 and January 

2013, as amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams noted the Economic Development Commission meeting scheduled 
for January 11 was canceled.  The Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission was re-scheduled 
from Monday, January 14 to Thursday, January 17 at 7:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATIONS Mayor Esteves commended four Milpitas residents who were 2012 Santa Clara County 

Emergency Volunteers of the Year:  Joseph Weinstein, Kristen Valus, Leo Martinez, and Josh 
Azaveda.  

 
 Next, Mayor Esteves presented Neighborhood Beautification awards for 2012 to many resident 

homeowners and business owners. A brief reception was held in the lobby following the awards.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, spoke to the City council regarding sewer rates.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  2 

 Vice Mayor Polanski commented in response to him, acknowledging an e-mail sent to him, which 
she quoted from. 

 
 Alvin White, Milpitas, addressed the Council with his belief that his vehicle was “stolen” while it 

was actually towed after Christmas by a service directed by Milpitas Police Department.  
 
 George Lund, 50 year resident of Milpitas, was unhappy about the lien issued against his property, 

due to comments from his neighbors to City staff, and other issues related to his home.  He felt he 
had been threatened by the City. 

 
Frank DeSmidt, representing Milpitas Rotary Club, was Chair of the Gene Schwab City employee 
annual awards luncheon which all were invited to attend on Monday, January 28 at the Beverly 
Heritage Hotel. 

 
Carol Kassab, CEO of the Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, announced a “State of the State” 
luncheon with local elected officials in the state capitol, was scheduled for Wednesday, January 30 
in Fremont, with more information on the Chamber’s website. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Mayor Esteves congratulated a new business, King Wah restaurant opened at 1235 East Calaveras 

Blvd. with Cantonese Dim Sum food offered.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 

City Manager Williams requested that the City Council hear public hearing agenda items No. 2 
and 3 in reverse order and the Councilmembers agreed. 

 
    Motion/Second:                 Councilmember Gomez/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended 
 
 The City Manager noted that regarding agenda item no. 11 (fee waiver request), the correct 

amount to be waived was $6,653.20.  He requested the Council - acting as the Board of the Public 
Financing Authority - simply add agenda item no. PFA2. (adopt two Resolutions) to the consent 
calendar.  

 
 Councilmember Giordano requested to remove Item No. 6 (Commission appointments) for 

discussion  
 
 Mayor Esteves had several questions of staff on the Commissioners Recognition (agenda item No. 

10) and then asked to remove this from consent.  
 
 Motion/Second:         Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES: 5   
   NOES:  0  
 

* 5. Appointment Council 
member to Two Committees  

1. Received the Mayor’s recommendations for appointments.  
2. Adopted Resolution No. 8223 approving the appointment of Councilmember Montano 
as the alternate member from Milpitas to the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC), which is retroactively effective on January 10, 2013. 
3. Approved the appointment of Councilmember Montano as a regular member, and 
Mayor Esteves as the alternate, to the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Coyote Flood 
Protection and Watershed Advisory Committee.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  3 

  
* 7. Walk-a-thon Donation Approved allocation of $250 from the City Council unallocated community promotions 

budget as a donation to Curtner Elementary School for annual Walk-A-Thon fundraiser. 
  
*11. Waive Fees for Relay for 
Life annual event in June  

Approved the request for fee waiver and in-kind donations of equipment, supplies, facility 
use and staffing totaling $6,903.20 for the annual American Cancer Society’s Relay for 
Life event at the Milpitas Sports Center held June 21-23, 2013. 

  
*12. Report of Sale of Truck  Received staff report on the sale of a Lift All Bucket Truck fir $6,999. 
  
*13. 6th Amendment to Hopkins 
& Carley contract  

Approved the Sixth Amendment to the contract for legal services between the City of 
Milpitas and the law firm of Hopkins & Carley, and approve transfer of contract amount 
from contingency reserve to City Attorney budget. 

  
*14. Contract with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc.  

1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a contract for Annual Tree Maintenance 
Service by piggybacking the City of Sunnyvale contract with West Coast Arborist, Inc. 
for the annual not-to-exceed amount of $170,000. 
2. Authorized the City Manager to approve annual increases per the contract terms 
without further action by City Council. 

  
*15. Agreement with McQuay 
Int’l for Chiller Maintenance  

1.  Approved an Assured Maintenance Agreement with McQuay International for 
maintenance of the chillers in the Police/Public Works building for the annual not-to-
exceed amount of $10,952. 
2.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*16. Approve Coop. Purchase 
for technical equipment  

Authorized the purchase of 16 mobile computers and eight modems through the use of a 
Cooperative Procurement Contract, for use by the Milpitas Fire Department.  

  
*17. Authorize CRW Payment  Authorized payment of the annual CRW Systems, Inc. technical support and software 

maintenance services for the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000. 
  
*18. Authorize Payment to 
Preston Pipeline  

1. Received a report of Dempsey Road water main emergency repair work from the Public 
Works Director.  
2. Approved a budget appropriation from the Water Fund in the amount of $55,000.  
Authorize staff to pay Preston Pipeline for the emergency repair of the Dempsey Road 
water main in an amount not to exceed $55,000. 

  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  
1.  Weed Abatement Program  Fire Marshal Albert Zamora explained actions taken to date for the weed abatement 

program, including Resolution No. 8212 adopted last month.  This evening was the 
opportunity to hear from any property owners who might object to clearing of weeds on 
their properties.  Also, the Fire Marshal introduced Mr. Ray Moreno, from the County of 
Santa Clara Agriculture office, who was present to answer questions about the program. 
 
Next, the Mayor opened the public hearing and heard no testimony.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 8218 authorizing the City Manager to direct the Santa 
Clara County Agricultural Commissioner to abate weeds declared to be a public nuisance, 
to keep an account of the costs, and to embody such account in a report and assessment 
list to the City Council  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  4 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 

  
2.  Actions related to Los 
Coches Residential 
Development Project  

Planner Tiffany Brown spoke on the new residential proposed at 31 Los Coches, in the 
Town Center Zoning District, with a zone change from industrial to residential at the 
former corporate buildings.  She reviewed the Planning Commission meeting where it 
recommended, on 3-2 vote, that the Council approve the project. The Commission had 
some discussion on appropriateness of residential next to a railroad yard and crossings. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked an assortment of questions regarding the project’s location to transit,  
Town Center zoning and the low density proposed, links to shopping, schools and other 
facilities  for residents to walk to. 
 
Councilmember Montano answered the Mayor on one issue:  it was two miles from the 
site to the BART station at Great Mall.  
 
Councilmember Giordano said the conversion of industrial to residential was the question 
for this site, in an under-utilized part of town.  That’s why the overlay was put on it.  She 
felt housing made sense in the neighborhood.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski addressed concerns about schools, mitigation for BART when it 
comes through, noise and vibration studies, soundwalls, and the necessary lighting on the 
walking path under 237overcrossing.  
 
Councilmember Gomez inquired about the ideal commercial use of the site, as it had been 
vacant more than ten years.  He asked further about what schools children living there 
would attend, and recreation, including parks, to be available. 
 
Councilmember Montano asked about the trail, height of soundwall, needed widening of 
Calaveras Blvd., and other concerns about water, lack of commercial, and the “fortress” 
like feel to the project design.  
 
Mayor Esteves asked the developer if the company made any contributions to Council 
members’ campaign accounts, and the reply was no.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited the applicant to the podium, so representative Andy Byde from 
Braddock and Logan gave background of his company and the project.  He then went on 
to answer some of previous questions raised by City Councilmembers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments.  
 
Freeman Jenkins, Church pastor in Milpitas, said there was not enough parking in the area 
now.  He mentioned Hammond St. and limited parking for apartments. 
 
Planning Director Steve McHarris told the City Council that the speaker was likely   
addressing another proposed project in a different area of the City.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said with 3,500 more housing units coming in next few 
years so he did not understand why more was needed. This would bring more traffic, more 
use of city services, difficult access for public safety, and marginalized the right to vote on 
utility rate increases. Building the project would be detrimental. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, said there were bike lanes on Milpitas Blvd. With access 
to trails and bus stops, this development would be transit friendly. There houses were 
large, however, at more than 2500 ft for single family homes. So residents were less likely 
to use public transit.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  5 

 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8219 approving the Vesting Major Tentative Map, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Site Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit 
for the Los Coches residential project located at 31 Los Coches Street  
 
Mayor Esteves commented favorably on the style of homes, and positive impacts of this 
new proposed residential neighborhood.  His only concern remaining was the school that 
children would attend from this location.  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Montano)  

  
3. General Plan Amendments  Senior Planner Sheldon Ah Sing presented the explanation for the request to adopt some 

new policies to include in the Land Use Element and the Circulation Element in the 
approved City of Milpitas General Plan.  The Circulation Element was requested to be 
amended in part to qualify for grant funds available for the Complete Streets Program.  
 
Councilmember Giordano noticed the Planning Commission had approved this 
recommendation and she asked staff if it was a unanimous vote, and staff affirmed it was.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski referred to a letter from Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, 
seeking some additional requested projects to be listed in the Circulation Element. She 
asked how those could be included and what would those affect.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked if there areas of the City excluded in the recommended 
action. Staff explained that upon a review of the specific areas in the Resolution, one 
could find that information. The City Manager replied to her, that the City Council could 
have a study session on this subject, if desired.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that a previous subcommittee discussed the Complete Streets 
Plan and was ready to vote on this, since it was first brought up last August. 
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments  
 
Guy Haas, Fallen Leaf Drive resident, asked for one typographical correction in the  
Circulation element. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone Ave, wanted to see the connection from Yellowstone to 
Curtis included in the plan. That project was not on the list in the Circulation Element as 
drafted.  So, the City could not even request funds from the larger regional transportation 
agencies.  He requests that the four specific projects (in letter) be added onto the list for 
the regional groups to consider for future funding.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, felt that if the business/housing mix was changing, then 
the City should add on some plan for transportation and put it into the Resolution, to move 
people around the City better and to get money for projects.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  6 

 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that 237 was a state highway and Council could not make 
recommendations for changes on that road way (only comments).  She wanted to look at 
the projects on Sunnyhills list, the circulation around new BART station. The Vice Mayor 
recommended including this one in the Circulation element.  
 
Councilmember Gomez suggested the Council could have a study session on jobs/housing 
relation, with the benefits of amending the General Plan.  He asked the City Manager for 
the limit on amendments per year and Mr. Williams replied four times per year maximum. 
 
Councilmember Giordano replied on items in the Sunnyhills list and agreed with No. 4 
(circulation around the BART station).  She asked for support to consider item no.1 
(crossing over Yosemite) as she agreed with Mr. Rob Means, and that it could at least be 
considered for funding in the future.  
 
Mayor Esteves felt there was a need for lots of options for circulation. He did not believe 
the Sunnyhills No. 1 item was feasible economically.   
 
Councilmember Giordano moved to adopt the Resolution, and to a add items no. 1 and no. 
4 from the Sunnyhills letter. Vice Mayor Polanski seconded the motion, and would also 
want the circulation around the BART station and other projects that might come up 
through research (i.e. not limiting) to be included, as appropriate.  
 
This could include connectors at local streets, connecting streets, add arterials to local 
roadways and collector streets, staff suggested. 
 
Councilmember Gomez would like a presentation at another time, expressed to the City 
Manager.  He supported a study session on the Land Use Element.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked whether trails were included in the Circulation Element 
and Mr. Williams replied, yes.  
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8220 approving the General Plan Amendment No. 
GP12-005, for the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as recommended by the Milpitas 
Planning Commission including recommendations No. 1 (railroad crossing connecting 
Yosemite Drive and Curtis Avenue) and No. 4 (circulator around the BART station) from 
the January 9, 2013 letter submitted by the Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, and 
including a broad approach to inclusion of street improvements in the Circulation Element  
(as per comments by Vice Mayor Polanski)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Esteves)  
 
Mayor Esteves said he opposed including Sunnyhills recommendation no. 1. 

  
4.  Update of Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee  

Planning Director Steve McHarris explained the desired update of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan Development Impact Fee, adopted in 2008. This same item was approved by 
the City Council on December 18, 2012, with a 30-days urgency resolution. At this 
meeting, Council was requested to adopt another resolution again for next 30 days, up to 
the date when the permanent impact fee (adopted by Resolution in December) would take 
effect to update the Transit Area Development Impact Fees charged to developers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing to receive testimony and heard none.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  7 

(1) Motion:  to  close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt urgent Resolution No. 8221 extending the revised fee schedule for 
the Transit Area Development Impact Fee effective for 30 days (requiring a 4/5 minimum 
vote for approval)  
 
Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0  

  
JOINT PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
PFA1.  Call to Order/Roll Call A joint meeting was called to order by Mayor Esteves at the very start and all Public 

Financing Authority members were present.  
  
* PFA2.  Resolutions This item was added to the consent calendar.   

 
Adopted Resolution No. 8222 and Resolution No. PFA 15 authorizing the investment of 
monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund, updating the signatures of current officials.  

  
PFA3.  Authority Adjourn   
  
REPORTS  Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
6. Commission Appointments  Councilmember Giordano requested to separate the votes on the Planning Commission 

appointments from all the others.  
 
(1) Motion:  to appoint all the Mayor’s recommended Commission appointments, with the 
exception of the Planning Commission: 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Christine Sanchez as a regular member to a term that will expire in August 2013.   
Appoint Chris Lee as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in August 2014. 
Newly appoint Kristal Caidoy as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in Aug. 2013. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission: 
Reappoint Melba Holliday to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
Reappoint Moo Jin Choi as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Reappoint Brenda Su as the student non-voting member to a term to expire in Sept. 2014. 
 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint William Lam to a term that will expire in January 2015. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Reappoint Denny Weisgerber to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Dana Arbaugh to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Bruce Choy to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Arthur Ebright to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint David Grundstrom to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Mel Hinshaw to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Liliana Ramos as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in February 2016. 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  8 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(2) Motion:  to re-appoint Gurdev “Dave” Sandhu and Rajeev Madnawat for another term 
of three years to the Milpitas Planning Commission (terms expire December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(3) Motion:  to appoint Garry Barbadillo (current Alternate Member) to a three-year term 
as a voting member of the Milpitas Planning Commission (term expires December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Montano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  4 
                                                      NOES:  1 (Giordano  
 
Councilmember Montano reported there was a vacancy on the Library Advisory 
Commission since she was elected to the Council. She requested the Mayor to move up 
the Alternate Members on that one Commission, at the next Council meeting.  

  
NEW BUSINESS Three items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
8.   Consider Fire Department  
Temporary Reduction in Force 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a presentation to explain current costs including 
overtime expenses, with a request to reduce staff and brown out one engine at the Milpitas 
Fire Department.  The reduction would involve 10 members (4 firefighter layoffs and 
others bumped) to save approximately $315,000 through the end of the fiscal year. This 
was recommended as a temporary strategy.   The Chief said he would meet with San Jose 
and Fremont Fire Chiefs about mutual aid implementation.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked for details on how the numbers impacted the department 
and the City, if approved. He acknowledged there could be a need to add to the Fire 
Department in the future with all the new developments, and he sought to understand 
impacts of the proposal.  He’d looked at this issue in the past with Councilmember 
Giordano, and it was an issue for the City for a long time. Perhaps a Task Force could be 
formed to study how to deal with the overtime costs, long term.  
 
Councilmember Giordano remarked on high overtime costs versus the budget. She termed 
the Chief’s a “viable option” as presented. 
 
Councilmember Polanski inquired if this approach has worked in other jurisdictions and 
the Chief replied yes.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked the amount over budget and the Chief replied 6%. She 
agreed with Mr. Gomez to have a Task Force to deal with problem.  
 
Mayor Esteves noted they needed to find a more permanent solution.  He was not 
supportive of adding more money into the budget to solve this, as there was a need to find 
ways to pay for the level of service, while spending only what City had.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited speakers on the issue.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said the Council was not responsible approving more 
projects.  The City gave more time off as people worked at the City longer and that was 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  9 

no good.  He asked if there was any plan where firefighters would come back in an 
emergency situation to provide service. 
 
City Manager Williams responded to the public that each new housing unit built in 
Milpitas must join an established Community Facilities District to pay its fair share of 
costs for city services. 
 
Denny Weisgerber, Casper Street resident, commented on the 23% vacancy rate and it 
was due to many factors.  He felt that cutting out a complete fire company, with only 
minimum station crew was not proper.  
 
Mia Bradway Winter, Milpitas resident, told Council they had a responsibility to protect 
residents.  Staffing had been in place since 1980. Taking out one rig meant a 20% 
reduction of service while they needed that to protect the community.   
 
Steve King, IAFF local 1699 President, remarked on a recent structure fire and the lack of 
response by the neighboring Fire Departments in San Jose and Fremont.  Those 
relationships never met needs of the contract, so staffing levels not sufficient.  
 
Leif Juliassen, 15 years with Milpitas Fire, said with minimum staffing there were 15 on 
duty each day.  In the last ten years, staffing reduction was requested by the City.  Then, 
the overtime budget was cut in this current budget when full staffing not realized. 
 
Brian Stelling, Fire Captain with nearly 20 years with Milpitas, requested that City 
Council dip into reserves to pay for current overtime costs.  It was not realistic to have 
neighbors help more, when they’ve been cutting, too.  
 
Courtney Anderson, just six months with Milpitas Fire, had four children and always 
wanted to be a firefighter. He could not understand how he just got here and now he 
would get laid off.  It was not right for him and his family.  
 
Heather Fisher, born and raised in Milpitas and a new firefighter, said this was her dream 
job in her hometown.  She feared hearing her parents’ address over the radio, and the need 
to be with them if nobody was coming.  
 
Jerrell Hardy, a new Milpitas firefighter, left his previous career to come to Milpitas Fire 
Department.  Their purpose was to serve and protect the people of Milpitas.   
 
Jaime Garcia, Fire Prevention division employee, looked at all the new projects and 
structures.  He referred to previous City budgets for Fire. Overtime budgets had been 
reduced from $1.5 million to $464,000 while giving up positions which he termed “really 
unfair” when concessions were given. 
 
Isaac Lorenzano, Milpitas firefighter, had family here in Milpitas.  He urged Council to 
think about how to deal with this issue before making a decision. 
 
James Queenan, a lifelong resident with parents who live here, said when giving up 
positions, there would be overtime necessary.  That was what Council agreed to.  He 
referred to longer response times and effect on citizens.  It was a union busting tactic.  
 
Kristen Valice, resident and disaster worker and a SAFE Team leader who cared very 
much about any reduction in service, especially with Dixon Landing closed.  The recent 
flooding was a problem there.  
 
Yvonne Matagulay, 25 year Milpitas firefighter, asked to look at the real numbers.  When 
she was first hired, there was more staff than today with less than 20 per platoon.   
 
Eric, a Milpitas firefighter/paramedic, wanted to let Council know Fremont could not let 
firefighters run medical calls in Milpitas. He termed this action disrespectful.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  10

 
Councilmember Gomez asked Chief Sturdivant if this matter was something he could 
manage and the Chief responded yes, temporarily. Mr. Gomez proposed a Council Task 
Force with a list of responsibilities to solve the financial issue.  
 
Councilmember Giordano was in favor of going forward with the temporary solution. 
Maybe having a task force was a good idea, too.   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski questioned Chief Sturdivant: was one life worth this cut?  She was 
concerned for neighbors and friends, with the increase in residents in new housing, and 
the time for response.  She did not support the current recommendation and does support 
Mr. Gomez’ idea of having a Council task force, to come back within 60 days. 
 
Mayor Esteves noted this subject was not a new thing, rather it was an ongoing issue, and 
asked everybody for solutions.  
 
Councilmember Gomez shared the same reservations as the Vice Mayor, and it made him 
nervous. Barring other solutions, he did not know what else to do.  He did not want to pull 
from reserves, and would like to be on the Task Force if formed 
  
Councilmember Montano was surprised at the ongoing issue of fire overtime costs and 
she had been concerned about abuses.  She would go with what the Chief recommended.  
 
Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8224 to approve a temporary reduction in force of the 
Milpitas Fire Department staffing  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Polanski) 
 
Motion:  to establish a Task Force of two Councilmembers to address the issue of Fire 
Department overtime costs and to report back immediately to City Council, with potential 
recommendations including for a long term solution  
 
Motion/Second:           Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Mayor Esteves asked for volunteers from the Council to serve on the Task Force and 
Councilmember Gomez and Vice Mayor Polanski offered, so the Mayor appointed those 
two to serve on the Task Force.  
 
All other agenda items were then continued and the meeting adjourned. 

  
9.  CAFR for FY 2011-12 This matter was not heard, and so was continued to the next Council meeting.  
  
10. Commissioners Recognition 
Event  

This item was removed from consent calendar.  However, it was not discussed and was 
continued to the next Council meeting.   

  
BID/CONTRACTS Four items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
DEMANDS Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 12:09 AM on Wed. morning, January 16, 2013.  

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council, meeting 

jointly with Public Financing Authority  

Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. City Clerk Lavelle noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano, Gomez and 
Montano  

 
ABSENT:   None 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:05 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Mr. Patel and three youth from the BAPS Temple in Milpitas offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of December 18, 2012 City Council meeting, as submitted 
  
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for December 2012 and January 

2013, as amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams noted the Economic Development Commission meeting scheduled 
for January 11 was canceled.  The Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission was re-scheduled 
from Monday, January 14 to Thursday, January 17 at 7:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATIONS Mayor Esteves commended four Milpitas residents who were 2012 Santa Clara County 

Emergency Volunteers of the Year:  Joseph Weinstein, Kristen Valus, Leo Martinez, and Josh 
Azaveda.  

 
 Next, Mayor Esteves presented Neighborhood Beautification awards for 2012 to many resident 

homeowners and business owners. A brief reception was held in the lobby following the awards.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, spoke to the City council regarding sewer rates.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  2 

 Vice Mayor Polanski commented in response to him, acknowledging an e-mail sent to him, which 
she quoted from. 

 
 Alvin White, Milpitas, addressed the Council with his belief that his vehicle was “stolen” while it 

was actually towed after Christmas by a service directed by Milpitas Police Department.  
 
 George Lund, 50 year resident of Milpitas, was unhappy about the lien issued against his property, 

due to comments from his neighbors to City staff, and other issues related to his home.  He felt he 
had been threatened by the City. 

 
Frank DeSmidt, representing Milpitas Rotary Club, was Chair of the Gene Schwab City employee 
annual awards luncheon which all were invited to attend on Monday, January 28 at the Beverly 
Heritage Hotel. 

 
Carol Kassab, CEO of the Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, announced a “State of the State” 
luncheon with local elected officials in the state capitol, was scheduled for Wednesday, January 30 
in Fremont, with more information on the Chamber’s website. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Mayor Esteves congratulated a new business, King Wah restaurant opened at 1235 East Calaveras 

Blvd. with Cantonese Dim Sum food offered.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 

City Manager Williams requested that the City Council hear public hearing agenda items No. 2 
and 3 in reverse order and the Councilmembers agreed. 

 
    Motion/Second:                 Councilmember Gomez/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended 
 
 The City Manager noted that regarding agenda item no. 11 (fee waiver request), the correct 

amount to be waived was $6,653.20.  He requested the Council - acting as the Board of the Public 
Financing Authority - simply add agenda item no. PFA2. (adopt two Resolutions) to the consent 
calendar.  

 
 Councilmember Giordano requested to remove Item No. 6 (Commission appointments) for 

discussion  
 
 Mayor Esteves had several questions of staff on the Commissioners Recognition (agenda item No. 

10) and then asked to remove this from consent.  
 
 Motion/Second:         Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES: 5   
   NOES:  0  
 

* 5. Appointment Council 
member to Two Committees  

1. Received the Mayor’s recommendations for appointments.  
2. Adopted Resolution No. 8223 approving the appointment of Councilmember Montano 
as the alternate member from Milpitas to the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC), which is retroactively effective on January 10, 2013. 
3. Approved the appointment of Councilmember Montano as a regular member, and 
Mayor Esteves as the alternate, to the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Coyote Flood 
Protection and Watershed Advisory Committee.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  3 

  
* 7. Walk-a-thon Donation Approved allocation of $250 from the City Council unallocated community promotions 

budget as a donation to Curtner Elementary School for annual Walk-A-Thon fundraiser. 
  
*11. Waive Fees for Relay for 
Life annual event in June  

Approved the request for fee waiver and in-kind donations of equipment, supplies, facility 
use and staffing totaling $6,903.20 for the annual American Cancer Society’s Relay for 
Life event at the Milpitas Sports Center held June 21-23, 2013. 

  
*12. Report of Sale of Truck  Received staff report on the sale of a Lift All Bucket Truck fir $6,999. 
  
*13. 6th Amendment to Hopkins 
& Carley contract  

Approved the Sixth Amendment to the contract for legal services between the City of 
Milpitas and the law firm of Hopkins & Carley, and approve transfer of contract amount 
from contingency reserve to City Attorney budget. 

  
*14. Contract with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc.  

1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a contract for Annual Tree Maintenance 
Service by piggybacking the City of Sunnyvale contract with West Coast Arborist, Inc. 
for the annual not-to-exceed amount of $170,000. 
2. Authorized the City Manager to approve annual increases per the contract terms 
without further action by City Council. 

  
*15. Agreement with McQuay 
Int’l for Chiller Maintenance  

1.  Approved an Assured Maintenance Agreement with McQuay International for 
maintenance of the chillers in the Police/Public Works building for the annual not-to-
exceed amount of $10,952. 
2.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*16. Approve Coop. Purchase 
for technical equipment  

Authorized the purchase of 16 mobile computers and eight modems through the use of a 
Cooperative Procurement Contract, for use by the Milpitas Fire Department.  

  
*17. Authorize CRW Payment  Authorized payment of the annual CRW Systems, Inc. technical support and software 

maintenance services for the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000. 
  
*18. Authorize Payment to 
Preston Pipeline  

1. Received a report of Dempsey Road water main emergency repair work from the Public 
Works Director.  
2. Approved a budget appropriation from the Water Fund in the amount of $55,000.  
Authorize staff to pay Preston Pipeline for the emergency repair of the Dempsey Road 
water main in an amount not to exceed $55,000. 

  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  
1.  Weed Abatement Program  Fire Marshal Albert Zamora explained actions taken to date for the weed abatement 

program, including Resolution No. 8212 adopted last month.  This evening was the 
opportunity to hear from any property owners who might object to clearing of weeds on 
their properties.  Also, the Fire Marshal introduced Mr. Ray Moreno, from the County of 
Santa Clara Agriculture office, who was present to answer questions about the program. 
 
Next, the Mayor opened the public hearing and heard no testimony.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 8218 authorizing the City Manager to direct the Santa 
Clara County Agricultural Commissioner to abate weeds declared to be a public nuisance, 
to keep an account of the costs, and to embody such account in a report and assessment 
list to the City Council  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  4 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 

  
2.  Actions related to Los 
Coches Residential 
Development Project  

Planner Tiffany Brown spoke on the new residential proposed at 31 Los Coches, in the 
Town Center Zoning District, with a zone change from industrial to residential at the 
former corporate buildings.  She reviewed the Planning Commission meeting where it 
recommended, on 3-2 vote, that the Council approve the project. The Commission had 
some discussion on appropriateness of residential next to a railroad yard and crossings. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked an assortment of questions regarding the project’s location to transit,  
Town Center zoning and the low density proposed, links to shopping, schools and other 
facilities  for residents to walk to. 
 
Councilmember Montano answered the Mayor on one issue:  it was two miles from the 
site to the BART station at Great Mall.  
 
Councilmember Giordano said the conversion of industrial to residential was the question 
for this site, in an under-utilized part of town.  That’s why the overlay was put on it.  She 
felt housing made sense in the neighborhood.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski addressed concerns about schools, mitigation for BART when it 
comes through, noise and vibration studies, soundwalls, and the necessary lighting on the 
walking path under 237overcrossing.  
 
Councilmember Gomez inquired about the ideal commercial use of the site, as it had been 
vacant more than ten years.  He asked further about what schools children living there 
would attend, and recreation, including parks, to be available. 
 
Councilmember Montano asked about the trail, height of soundwall, needed widening of 
Calaveras Blvd., and other concerns about water, lack of commercial, and the “fortress” 
like feel to the project design.  
 
Mayor Esteves asked the developer if the company made any contributions to Council 
members’ campaign accounts, and the reply was no.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited the applicant to the podium, so representative Andy Byde from 
Braddock and Logan gave background of his company and the project.  He then went on 
to answer some of previous questions raised by City Councilmembers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments.  
 
Freeman Jenkins, Church pastor in Milpitas, said there was not enough parking in the area 
now.  He mentioned Hammond St. and limited parking for apartments. 
 
Planning Director Steve McHarris told the City Council that the speaker was likely   
addressing another proposed project in a different area of the City.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said with 3,500 more housing units coming in next few 
years so he did not understand why more was needed. This would bring more traffic, more 
use of city services, difficult access for public safety, and marginalized the right to vote on 
utility rate increases. Building the project would be detrimental. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, said there were bike lanes on Milpitas Blvd. With access 
to trails and bus stops, this development would be transit friendly. There houses were 
large, however, at more than 2500 ft for single family homes. So residents were less likely 
to use public transit.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  5 

 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8219 approving the Vesting Major Tentative Map, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Site Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit 
for the Los Coches residential project located at 31 Los Coches Street  
 
Mayor Esteves commented favorably on the style of homes, and positive impacts of this 
new proposed residential neighborhood.  His only concern remaining was the school that 
children would attend from this location.  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Montano)  

  
3. General Plan Amendments  Senior Planner Sheldon Ah Sing presented the explanation for the request to adopt some 

new policies to include in the Land Use Element and the Circulation Element in the 
approved City of Milpitas General Plan.  The Circulation Element was requested to be 
amended in part to qualify for grant funds available for the Complete Streets Program.  
 
Councilmember Giordano noticed the Planning Commission had approved this 
recommendation and she asked staff if it was a unanimous vote, and staff affirmed it was.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski referred to a letter from Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, 
seeking some additional requested projects to be listed in the Circulation Element. She 
asked how those could be included and what would those affect.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked if there areas of the City excluded in the recommended 
action. Staff explained that upon a review of the specific areas in the Resolution, one 
could find that information. The City Manager replied to her, that the City Council could 
have a study session on this subject, if desired.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that a previous subcommittee discussed the Complete Streets 
Plan and was ready to vote on this, since it was first brought up last August. 
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments  
 
Guy Haas, Fallen Leaf Drive resident, asked for one typographical correction in the  
Circulation element. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone Ave, wanted to see the connection from Yellowstone to 
Curtis included in the plan. That project was not on the list in the Circulation Element as 
drafted.  So, the City could not even request funds from the larger regional transportation 
agencies.  He requests that the four specific projects (in letter) be added onto the list for 
the regional groups to consider for future funding.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, felt that if the business/housing mix was changing, then 
the City should add on some plan for transportation and put it into the Resolution, to move 
people around the City better and to get money for projects.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  6 

 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that 237 was a state highway and Council could not make 
recommendations for changes on that road way (only comments).  She wanted to look at 
the projects on Sunnyhills list, the circulation around new BART station. The Vice Mayor 
recommended including this one in the Circulation element.  
 
Councilmember Gomez suggested the Council could have a study session on jobs/housing 
relation, with the benefits of amending the General Plan.  He asked the City Manager for 
the limit on amendments per year and Mr. Williams replied four times per year maximum. 
 
Councilmember Giordano replied on items in the Sunnyhills list and agreed with No. 4 
(circulation around the BART station).  She asked for support to consider item no.1 
(crossing over Yosemite) as she agreed with Mr. Rob Means, and that it could at least be 
considered for funding in the future.  
 
Mayor Esteves felt there was a need for lots of options for circulation. He did not believe 
the Sunnyhills No. 1 item was feasible economically.   
 
Councilmember Giordano moved to adopt the Resolution, and to a add items no. 1 and no. 
4 from the Sunnyhills letter. Vice Mayor Polanski seconded the motion, and would also 
want the circulation around the BART station and other projects that might come up 
through research (i.e. not limiting) to be included, as appropriate.  
 
This could include connectors at local streets, connecting streets, add arterials to local 
roadways and collector streets, staff suggested. 
 
Councilmember Gomez would like a presentation at another time, expressed to the City 
Manager.  He supported a study session on the Land Use Element.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked whether trails were included in the Circulation Element 
and Mr. Williams replied, yes.  
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8220 approving the General Plan Amendment No. 
GP12-005, for the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as recommended by the Milpitas 
Planning Commission including recommendations No. 1 (railroad crossing connecting 
Yosemite Drive and Curtis Avenue) and No. 4 (circulator around the BART station) from 
the January 9, 2013 letter submitted by the Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, and 
including a broad approach to inclusion of street improvements in the Circulation Element  
(as per comments by Vice Mayor Polanski)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Esteves)  
 
Mayor Esteves said he opposed including Sunnyhills recommendation no. 1. 

  
4.  Update of Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee  

Planning Director Steve McHarris explained the desired update of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan Development Impact Fee, adopted in 2008. This same item was approved by 
the City Council on December 18, 2012, with a 30-days urgency resolution. At this 
meeting, Council was requested to adopt another resolution again for next 30 days, up to 
the date when the permanent impact fee (adopted by Resolution in December) would take 
effect to update the Transit Area Development Impact Fees charged to developers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing to receive testimony and heard none.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  7 

(1) Motion:  to  close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt urgent Resolution No. 8221 extending the revised fee schedule for 
the Transit Area Development Impact Fee effective for 30 days (requiring a 4/5 minimum 
vote for approval)  
 
Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0  

  
JOINT PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
PFA1.  Call to Order/Roll Call A joint meeting was called to order by Mayor Esteves at the very start and all Public 

Financing Authority members were present.  
  
* PFA2.  Resolutions This item was added to the consent calendar.   

 
Adopted Resolution No. 8222 and Resolution No. PFA 15 authorizing the investment of 
monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund, updating the signatures of current officials.  

  
PFA3.  Authority Adjourn   
  
REPORTS  Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
6. Commission Appointments  Councilmember Giordano requested to separate the votes on the Planning Commission 

appointments from all the others.  
 
(1) Motion:  to appoint all the Mayor’s recommended Commission appointments, with the 
exception of the Planning Commission: 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Christine Sanchez as a regular member to a term that will expire in August 2013.   
Appoint Chris Lee as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in August 2014. 
Newly appoint Kristal Caidoy as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in Aug. 2013. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission: 
Reappoint Melba Holliday to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
Reappoint Moo Jin Choi as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Reappoint Brenda Su as the student non-voting member to a term to expire in Sept. 2014. 
 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint William Lam to a term that will expire in January 2015. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Reappoint Denny Weisgerber to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Dana Arbaugh to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Bruce Choy to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Arthur Ebright to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint David Grundstrom to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Mel Hinshaw to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Liliana Ramos as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in February 2016. 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  8 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(2) Motion:  to re-appoint Gurdev “Dave” Sandhu and Rajeev Madnawat for another term 
of three years to the Milpitas Planning Commission (terms expire December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(3) Motion:  to appoint Garry Barbadillo (current Alternate Member) to a three-year term 
as a voting member of the Milpitas Planning Commission (term expires December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Montano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  4 
                                                      NOES:  1 (Giordano  
 
Councilmember Montano reported there was a vacancy on the Library Advisory 
Commission since she was elected to the Council. She requested the Mayor to move up 
the Alternate Members on that one Commission, at the next Council meeting.  

  
NEW BUSINESS Three items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
8.   Consider Fire Department  
Temporary Reduction in Force 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a presentation to explain current costs including 
overtime expenses, with a request to reduce staff and brown out one engine at the Milpitas 
Fire Department.  The reduction would involve 10 members (4 firefighter layoffs and 
others bumped) to save approximately $315,000 through the end of the fiscal year. This 
was recommended as a temporary strategy.   The Chief said he would meet with San Jose 
and Fremont Fire Chiefs about mutual aid implementation.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked for details on how the numbers impacted the department 
and the City, if approved. He acknowledged there could be a need to add to the Fire 
Department in the future with all the new developments, and he sought to understand 
impacts of the proposal.  He’d looked at this issue in the past with Councilmember 
Giordano, and it was an issue for the City for a long time. Perhaps a Task Force could be 
formed to study how to deal with the overtime costs, long term.  
 
Councilmember Giordano remarked on high overtime costs versus the budget. She termed 
the Chief’s a “viable option” as presented. 
 
Councilmember Polanski inquired if this approach has worked in other jurisdictions and 
the Chief replied yes.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked the amount over budget and the Chief replied 6%. She 
agreed with Mr. Gomez to have a Task Force to deal with problem.  
 
Mayor Esteves noted they needed to find a more permanent solution.  He was not 
supportive of adding more money into the budget to solve this, as there was a need to find 
ways to pay for the level of service, while spending only what City had.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited speakers on the issue.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said the Council was not responsible approving more 
projects.  The City gave more time off as people worked at the City longer and that was 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  9 

no good.  He asked if there was any plan where firefighters would come back in an 
emergency situation to provide service. 
 
City Manager Williams responded to the public that each new housing unit built in 
Milpitas must join an established Community Facilities District to pay its fair share of 
costs for city services. 
 
Denny Weisgerber, Casper Street resident, commented on the 23% vacancy rate and it 
was due to many factors.  He felt that cutting out a complete fire company, with only 
minimum station crew was not proper.  
 
Mia Bradway Winter, Milpitas resident, told Council they had a responsibility to protect 
residents.  Staffing had been in place since 1980. Taking out one rig meant a 20% 
reduction of service while they needed that to protect the community.   
 
Steve King, IAFF local 1699 President, remarked on a recent structure fire and the lack of 
response by the neighboring Fire Departments in San Jose and Fremont.  Those 
relationships never met needs of the contract, so staffing levels not sufficient.  
 
Leif Juliassen, 15 years with Milpitas Fire, said with minimum staffing there were 15 on 
duty each day.  In the last ten years, staffing reduction was requested by the City.  Then, 
the overtime budget was cut in this current budget when full staffing not realized. 
 
Brian Stelling, Fire Captain with nearly 20 years with Milpitas, requested that City 
Council dip into reserves to pay for current overtime costs.  It was not realistic to have 
neighbors help more, when they’ve been cutting, too.  
 
Courtney Anderson, just six months with Milpitas Fire, had four children and always 
wanted to be a firefighter. He could not understand how he just got here and now he 
would get laid off.  It was not right for him and his family.  
 
Heather Fisher, born and raised in Milpitas and a new firefighter, said this was her dream 
job in her hometown.  She feared hearing her parents’ address over the radio, and the need 
to be with them if nobody was coming.  
 
Jerrell Hardy, a new Milpitas firefighter, left his previous career to come to Milpitas Fire 
Department.  Their purpose was to serve and protect the people of Milpitas.   
 
Jaime Garcia, Fire Prevention division employee, looked at all the new projects and 
structures.  He referred to previous City budgets for Fire. Overtime budgets had been 
reduced from $1.5 million to $464,000 while giving up positions which he termed “really 
unfair” when concessions were given. 
 
Isaac Lorenzano, Milpitas firefighter, had family here in Milpitas.  He urged Council to 
think about how to deal with this issue before making a decision. 
 
James Queenan, a lifelong resident with parents who live here, said when giving up 
positions, there would be overtime necessary.  That was what Council agreed to.  He 
referred to longer response times and effect on citizens.  It was a union busting tactic.  
 
Kristen Valice, resident and disaster worker and a SAFE Team leader who cared very 
much about any reduction in service, especially with Dixon Landing closed.  The recent 
flooding was a problem there.  
 
Yvonne Matagulay, 25 year Milpitas firefighter, asked to look at the real numbers.  When 
she was first hired, there was more staff than today with less than 20 per platoon.   
 
Eric, a Milpitas firefighter/paramedic, wanted to let Council know Fremont could not let 
firefighters run medical calls in Milpitas. He termed this action disrespectful.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  10

 
Councilmember Gomez asked Chief Sturdivant if this matter was something he could 
manage and the Chief responded yes, temporarily. Mr. Gomez proposed a Council Task 
Force with a list of responsibilities to solve the financial issue.  
 
Councilmember Giordano was in favor of going forward with the temporary solution. 
Maybe having a task force was a good idea, too.   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski questioned Chief Sturdivant: was one life worth this cut?  She was 
concerned for neighbors and friends, with the increase in residents in new housing, and 
the time for response.  She did not support the current recommendation and does support 
Mr. Gomez’ idea of having a Council task force, to come back within 60 days. 
 
Mayor Esteves noted this subject was not a new thing, rather it was an ongoing issue, and 
asked everybody for solutions.  
 
Councilmember Gomez shared the same reservations as the Vice Mayor, and it made him 
nervous. Barring other solutions, he did not know what else to do.  He did not want to pull 
from reserves, and would like to be on the Task Force if formed 
  
Councilmember Montano was surprised at the ongoing issue of fire overtime costs and 
she had been concerned about abuses.  She would go with what the Chief recommended.  
 
Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8224 to approve a temporary reduction in force of the 
Milpitas Fire Department staffing  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Polanski) 
 
Motion:  to establish a Task Force of two Councilmembers to address the issue of Fire 
Department overtime costs and to report back immediately to City Council, with potential 
recommendations including for a long term solution  
 
Motion/Second:           Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Mayor Esteves asked for volunteers from the Council to serve on the Task Force and 
Councilmember Gomez and Vice Mayor Polanski offered, so the Mayor appointed those 
two to serve on the Task Force.  
 
All other agenda items were then continued and the meeting adjourned. 

  
9.  CAFR for FY 2011-12 This matter was not heard, and so was continued to the next Council meeting.  
  
10. Commissioners Recognition 
Event  

This item was removed from consent calendar.  However, it was not discussed and was 
continued to the next Council meeting.   

  
BID/CONTRACTS Four items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
DEMANDS Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 12:09 AM on Wed. morning, January 16, 2013.  

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council, meeting 

jointly with Public Financing Authority  

Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. City Clerk Lavelle noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano, Gomez and 
Montano  

 
ABSENT:   None 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:05 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Mr. Patel and three youth from the BAPS Temple in Milpitas offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of December 18, 2012 City Council meeting, as submitted 
  
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for December 2012 and January 

2013, as amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams noted the Economic Development Commission meeting scheduled 
for January 11 was canceled.  The Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission was re-scheduled 
from Monday, January 14 to Thursday, January 17 at 7:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATIONS Mayor Esteves commended four Milpitas residents who were 2012 Santa Clara County 

Emergency Volunteers of the Year:  Joseph Weinstein, Kristen Valus, Leo Martinez, and Josh 
Azaveda.  

 
 Next, Mayor Esteves presented Neighborhood Beautification awards for 2012 to many resident 

homeowners and business owners. A brief reception was held in the lobby following the awards.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, spoke to the City council regarding sewer rates.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  2 

 Vice Mayor Polanski commented in response to him, acknowledging an e-mail sent to him, which 
she quoted from. 

 
 Alvin White, Milpitas, addressed the Council with his belief that his vehicle was “stolen” while it 

was actually towed after Christmas by a service directed by Milpitas Police Department.  
 
 George Lund, 50 year resident of Milpitas, was unhappy about the lien issued against his property, 

due to comments from his neighbors to City staff, and other issues related to his home.  He felt he 
had been threatened by the City. 

 
Frank DeSmidt, representing Milpitas Rotary Club, was Chair of the Gene Schwab City employee 
annual awards luncheon which all were invited to attend on Monday, January 28 at the Beverly 
Heritage Hotel. 

 
Carol Kassab, CEO of the Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, announced a “State of the State” 
luncheon with local elected officials in the state capitol, was scheduled for Wednesday, January 30 
in Fremont, with more information on the Chamber’s website. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Mayor Esteves congratulated a new business, King Wah restaurant opened at 1235 East Calaveras 

Blvd. with Cantonese Dim Sum food offered.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 

City Manager Williams requested that the City Council hear public hearing agenda items No. 2 
and 3 in reverse order and the Councilmembers agreed. 

 
    Motion/Second:                 Councilmember Gomez/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended 
 
 The City Manager noted that regarding agenda item no. 11 (fee waiver request), the correct 

amount to be waived was $6,653.20.  He requested the Council - acting as the Board of the Public 
Financing Authority - simply add agenda item no. PFA2. (adopt two Resolutions) to the consent 
calendar.  

 
 Councilmember Giordano requested to remove Item No. 6 (Commission appointments) for 

discussion  
 
 Mayor Esteves had several questions of staff on the Commissioners Recognition (agenda item No. 

10) and then asked to remove this from consent.  
 
 Motion/Second:         Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES: 5   
   NOES:  0  
 

* 5. Appointment Council 
member to Two Committees  

1. Received the Mayor’s recommendations for appointments.  
2. Adopted Resolution No. 8223 approving the appointment of Councilmember Montano 
as the alternate member from Milpitas to the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC), which is retroactively effective on January 10, 2013. 
3. Approved the appointment of Councilmember Montano as a regular member, and 
Mayor Esteves as the alternate, to the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Coyote Flood 
Protection and Watershed Advisory Committee.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  3 

  
* 7. Walk-a-thon Donation Approved allocation of $250 from the City Council unallocated community promotions 

budget as a donation to Curtner Elementary School for annual Walk-A-Thon fundraiser. 
  
*11. Waive Fees for Relay for 
Life annual event in June  

Approved the request for fee waiver and in-kind donations of equipment, supplies, facility 
use and staffing totaling $6,903.20 for the annual American Cancer Society’s Relay for 
Life event at the Milpitas Sports Center held June 21-23, 2013. 

  
*12. Report of Sale of Truck  Received staff report on the sale of a Lift All Bucket Truck fir $6,999. 
  
*13. 6th Amendment to Hopkins 
& Carley contract  

Approved the Sixth Amendment to the contract for legal services between the City of 
Milpitas and the law firm of Hopkins & Carley, and approve transfer of contract amount 
from contingency reserve to City Attorney budget. 

  
*14. Contract with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc.  

1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a contract for Annual Tree Maintenance 
Service by piggybacking the City of Sunnyvale contract with West Coast Arborist, Inc. 
for the annual not-to-exceed amount of $170,000. 
2. Authorized the City Manager to approve annual increases per the contract terms 
without further action by City Council. 

  
*15. Agreement with McQuay 
Int’l for Chiller Maintenance  

1.  Approved an Assured Maintenance Agreement with McQuay International for 
maintenance of the chillers in the Police/Public Works building for the annual not-to-
exceed amount of $10,952. 
2.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*16. Approve Coop. Purchase 
for technical equipment  

Authorized the purchase of 16 mobile computers and eight modems through the use of a 
Cooperative Procurement Contract, for use by the Milpitas Fire Department.  

  
*17. Authorize CRW Payment  Authorized payment of the annual CRW Systems, Inc. technical support and software 

maintenance services for the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000. 
  
*18. Authorize Payment to 
Preston Pipeline  

1. Received a report of Dempsey Road water main emergency repair work from the Public 
Works Director.  
2. Approved a budget appropriation from the Water Fund in the amount of $55,000.  
Authorize staff to pay Preston Pipeline for the emergency repair of the Dempsey Road 
water main in an amount not to exceed $55,000. 

  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  
1.  Weed Abatement Program  Fire Marshal Albert Zamora explained actions taken to date for the weed abatement 

program, including Resolution No. 8212 adopted last month.  This evening was the 
opportunity to hear from any property owners who might object to clearing of weeds on 
their properties.  Also, the Fire Marshal introduced Mr. Ray Moreno, from the County of 
Santa Clara Agriculture office, who was present to answer questions about the program. 
 
Next, the Mayor opened the public hearing and heard no testimony.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 8218 authorizing the City Manager to direct the Santa 
Clara County Agricultural Commissioner to abate weeds declared to be a public nuisance, 
to keep an account of the costs, and to embody such account in a report and assessment 
list to the City Council  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  4 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 

  
2.  Actions related to Los 
Coches Residential 
Development Project  

Planner Tiffany Brown spoke on the new residential proposed at 31 Los Coches, in the 
Town Center Zoning District, with a zone change from industrial to residential at the 
former corporate buildings.  She reviewed the Planning Commission meeting where it 
recommended, on 3-2 vote, that the Council approve the project. The Commission had 
some discussion on appropriateness of residential next to a railroad yard and crossings. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked an assortment of questions regarding the project’s location to transit,  
Town Center zoning and the low density proposed, links to shopping, schools and other 
facilities  for residents to walk to. 
 
Councilmember Montano answered the Mayor on one issue:  it was two miles from the 
site to the BART station at Great Mall.  
 
Councilmember Giordano said the conversion of industrial to residential was the question 
for this site, in an under-utilized part of town.  That’s why the overlay was put on it.  She 
felt housing made sense in the neighborhood.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski addressed concerns about schools, mitigation for BART when it 
comes through, noise and vibration studies, soundwalls, and the necessary lighting on the 
walking path under 237overcrossing.  
 
Councilmember Gomez inquired about the ideal commercial use of the site, as it had been 
vacant more than ten years.  He asked further about what schools children living there 
would attend, and recreation, including parks, to be available. 
 
Councilmember Montano asked about the trail, height of soundwall, needed widening of 
Calaveras Blvd., and other concerns about water, lack of commercial, and the “fortress” 
like feel to the project design.  
 
Mayor Esteves asked the developer if the company made any contributions to Council 
members’ campaign accounts, and the reply was no.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited the applicant to the podium, so representative Andy Byde from 
Braddock and Logan gave background of his company and the project.  He then went on 
to answer some of previous questions raised by City Councilmembers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments.  
 
Freeman Jenkins, Church pastor in Milpitas, said there was not enough parking in the area 
now.  He mentioned Hammond St. and limited parking for apartments. 
 
Planning Director Steve McHarris told the City Council that the speaker was likely   
addressing another proposed project in a different area of the City.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said with 3,500 more housing units coming in next few 
years so he did not understand why more was needed. This would bring more traffic, more 
use of city services, difficult access for public safety, and marginalized the right to vote on 
utility rate increases. Building the project would be detrimental. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, said there were bike lanes on Milpitas Blvd. With access 
to trails and bus stops, this development would be transit friendly. There houses were 
large, however, at more than 2500 ft for single family homes. So residents were less likely 
to use public transit.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  5 

 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8219 approving the Vesting Major Tentative Map, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Site Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit 
for the Los Coches residential project located at 31 Los Coches Street  
 
Mayor Esteves commented favorably on the style of homes, and positive impacts of this 
new proposed residential neighborhood.  His only concern remaining was the school that 
children would attend from this location.  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Montano)  

  
3. General Plan Amendments  Senior Planner Sheldon Ah Sing presented the explanation for the request to adopt some 

new policies to include in the Land Use Element and the Circulation Element in the 
approved City of Milpitas General Plan.  The Circulation Element was requested to be 
amended in part to qualify for grant funds available for the Complete Streets Program.  
 
Councilmember Giordano noticed the Planning Commission had approved this 
recommendation and she asked staff if it was a unanimous vote, and staff affirmed it was.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski referred to a letter from Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, 
seeking some additional requested projects to be listed in the Circulation Element. She 
asked how those could be included and what would those affect.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked if there areas of the City excluded in the recommended 
action. Staff explained that upon a review of the specific areas in the Resolution, one 
could find that information. The City Manager replied to her, that the City Council could 
have a study session on this subject, if desired.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that a previous subcommittee discussed the Complete Streets 
Plan and was ready to vote on this, since it was first brought up last August. 
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments  
 
Guy Haas, Fallen Leaf Drive resident, asked for one typographical correction in the  
Circulation element. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone Ave, wanted to see the connection from Yellowstone to 
Curtis included in the plan. That project was not on the list in the Circulation Element as 
drafted.  So, the City could not even request funds from the larger regional transportation 
agencies.  He requests that the four specific projects (in letter) be added onto the list for 
the regional groups to consider for future funding.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, felt that if the business/housing mix was changing, then 
the City should add on some plan for transportation and put it into the Resolution, to move 
people around the City better and to get money for projects.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  6 

 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that 237 was a state highway and Council could not make 
recommendations for changes on that road way (only comments).  She wanted to look at 
the projects on Sunnyhills list, the circulation around new BART station. The Vice Mayor 
recommended including this one in the Circulation element.  
 
Councilmember Gomez suggested the Council could have a study session on jobs/housing 
relation, with the benefits of amending the General Plan.  He asked the City Manager for 
the limit on amendments per year and Mr. Williams replied four times per year maximum. 
 
Councilmember Giordano replied on items in the Sunnyhills list and agreed with No. 4 
(circulation around the BART station).  She asked for support to consider item no.1 
(crossing over Yosemite) as she agreed with Mr. Rob Means, and that it could at least be 
considered for funding in the future.  
 
Mayor Esteves felt there was a need for lots of options for circulation. He did not believe 
the Sunnyhills No. 1 item was feasible economically.   
 
Councilmember Giordano moved to adopt the Resolution, and to a add items no. 1 and no. 
4 from the Sunnyhills letter. Vice Mayor Polanski seconded the motion, and would also 
want the circulation around the BART station and other projects that might come up 
through research (i.e. not limiting) to be included, as appropriate.  
 
This could include connectors at local streets, connecting streets, add arterials to local 
roadways and collector streets, staff suggested. 
 
Councilmember Gomez would like a presentation at another time, expressed to the City 
Manager.  He supported a study session on the Land Use Element.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked whether trails were included in the Circulation Element 
and Mr. Williams replied, yes.  
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8220 approving the General Plan Amendment No. 
GP12-005, for the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as recommended by the Milpitas 
Planning Commission including recommendations No. 1 (railroad crossing connecting 
Yosemite Drive and Curtis Avenue) and No. 4 (circulator around the BART station) from 
the January 9, 2013 letter submitted by the Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, and 
including a broad approach to inclusion of street improvements in the Circulation Element  
(as per comments by Vice Mayor Polanski)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Esteves)  
 
Mayor Esteves said he opposed including Sunnyhills recommendation no. 1. 

  
4.  Update of Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee  

Planning Director Steve McHarris explained the desired update of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan Development Impact Fee, adopted in 2008. This same item was approved by 
the City Council on December 18, 2012, with a 30-days urgency resolution. At this 
meeting, Council was requested to adopt another resolution again for next 30 days, up to 
the date when the permanent impact fee (adopted by Resolution in December) would take 
effect to update the Transit Area Development Impact Fees charged to developers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing to receive testimony and heard none.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  7 

(1) Motion:  to  close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt urgent Resolution No. 8221 extending the revised fee schedule for 
the Transit Area Development Impact Fee effective for 30 days (requiring a 4/5 minimum 
vote for approval)  
 
Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0  

  
JOINT PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
PFA1.  Call to Order/Roll Call A joint meeting was called to order by Mayor Esteves at the very start and all Public 

Financing Authority members were present.  
  
* PFA2.  Resolutions This item was added to the consent calendar.   

 
Adopted Resolution No. 8222 and Resolution No. PFA 15 authorizing the investment of 
monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund, updating the signatures of current officials.  

  
PFA3.  Authority Adjourn   
  
REPORTS  Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
6. Commission Appointments  Councilmember Giordano requested to separate the votes on the Planning Commission 

appointments from all the others.  
 
(1) Motion:  to appoint all the Mayor’s recommended Commission appointments, with the 
exception of the Planning Commission: 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Christine Sanchez as a regular member to a term that will expire in August 2013.   
Appoint Chris Lee as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in August 2014. 
Newly appoint Kristal Caidoy as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in Aug. 2013. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission: 
Reappoint Melba Holliday to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
Reappoint Moo Jin Choi as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Reappoint Brenda Su as the student non-voting member to a term to expire in Sept. 2014. 
 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint William Lam to a term that will expire in January 2015. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Reappoint Denny Weisgerber to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Dana Arbaugh to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Bruce Choy to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Arthur Ebright to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint David Grundstrom to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Mel Hinshaw to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Liliana Ramos as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in February 2016. 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  8 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(2) Motion:  to re-appoint Gurdev “Dave” Sandhu and Rajeev Madnawat for another term 
of three years to the Milpitas Planning Commission (terms expire December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(3) Motion:  to appoint Garry Barbadillo (current Alternate Member) to a three-year term 
as a voting member of the Milpitas Planning Commission (term expires December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Montano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  4 
                                                      NOES:  1 (Giordano  
 
Councilmember Montano reported there was a vacancy on the Library Advisory 
Commission since she was elected to the Council. She requested the Mayor to move up 
the Alternate Members on that one Commission, at the next Council meeting.  

  
NEW BUSINESS Three items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
8.   Consider Fire Department  
Temporary Reduction in Force 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a presentation to explain current costs including 
overtime expenses, with a request to reduce staff and brown out one engine at the Milpitas 
Fire Department.  The reduction would involve 10 members (4 firefighter layoffs and 
others bumped) to save approximately $315,000 through the end of the fiscal year. This 
was recommended as a temporary strategy.   The Chief said he would meet with San Jose 
and Fremont Fire Chiefs about mutual aid implementation.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked for details on how the numbers impacted the department 
and the City, if approved. He acknowledged there could be a need to add to the Fire 
Department in the future with all the new developments, and he sought to understand 
impacts of the proposal.  He’d looked at this issue in the past with Councilmember 
Giordano, and it was an issue for the City for a long time. Perhaps a Task Force could be 
formed to study how to deal with the overtime costs, long term.  
 
Councilmember Giordano remarked on high overtime costs versus the budget. She termed 
the Chief’s a “viable option” as presented. 
 
Councilmember Polanski inquired if this approach has worked in other jurisdictions and 
the Chief replied yes.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked the amount over budget and the Chief replied 6%. She 
agreed with Mr. Gomez to have a Task Force to deal with problem.  
 
Mayor Esteves noted they needed to find a more permanent solution.  He was not 
supportive of adding more money into the budget to solve this, as there was a need to find 
ways to pay for the level of service, while spending only what City had.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited speakers on the issue.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said the Council was not responsible approving more 
projects.  The City gave more time off as people worked at the City longer and that was 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  9 

no good.  He asked if there was any plan where firefighters would come back in an 
emergency situation to provide service. 
 
City Manager Williams responded to the public that each new housing unit built in 
Milpitas must join an established Community Facilities District to pay its fair share of 
costs for city services. 
 
Denny Weisgerber, Casper Street resident, commented on the 23% vacancy rate and it 
was due to many factors.  He felt that cutting out a complete fire company, with only 
minimum station crew was not proper.  
 
Mia Bradway Winter, Milpitas resident, told Council they had a responsibility to protect 
residents.  Staffing had been in place since 1980. Taking out one rig meant a 20% 
reduction of service while they needed that to protect the community.   
 
Steve King, IAFF local 1699 President, remarked on a recent structure fire and the lack of 
response by the neighboring Fire Departments in San Jose and Fremont.  Those 
relationships never met needs of the contract, so staffing levels not sufficient.  
 
Leif Juliassen, 15 years with Milpitas Fire, said with minimum staffing there were 15 on 
duty each day.  In the last ten years, staffing reduction was requested by the City.  Then, 
the overtime budget was cut in this current budget when full staffing not realized. 
 
Brian Stelling, Fire Captain with nearly 20 years with Milpitas, requested that City 
Council dip into reserves to pay for current overtime costs.  It was not realistic to have 
neighbors help more, when they’ve been cutting, too.  
 
Courtney Anderson, just six months with Milpitas Fire, had four children and always 
wanted to be a firefighter. He could not understand how he just got here and now he 
would get laid off.  It was not right for him and his family.  
 
Heather Fisher, born and raised in Milpitas and a new firefighter, said this was her dream 
job in her hometown.  She feared hearing her parents’ address over the radio, and the need 
to be with them if nobody was coming.  
 
Jerrell Hardy, a new Milpitas firefighter, left his previous career to come to Milpitas Fire 
Department.  Their purpose was to serve and protect the people of Milpitas.   
 
Jaime Garcia, Fire Prevention division employee, looked at all the new projects and 
structures.  He referred to previous City budgets for Fire. Overtime budgets had been 
reduced from $1.5 million to $464,000 while giving up positions which he termed “really 
unfair” when concessions were given. 
 
Isaac Lorenzano, Milpitas firefighter, had family here in Milpitas.  He urged Council to 
think about how to deal with this issue before making a decision. 
 
James Queenan, a lifelong resident with parents who live here, said when giving up 
positions, there would be overtime necessary.  That was what Council agreed to.  He 
referred to longer response times and effect on citizens.  It was a union busting tactic.  
 
Kristen Valice, resident and disaster worker and a SAFE Team leader who cared very 
much about any reduction in service, especially with Dixon Landing closed.  The recent 
flooding was a problem there.  
 
Yvonne Matagulay, 25 year Milpitas firefighter, asked to look at the real numbers.  When 
she was first hired, there was more staff than today with less than 20 per platoon.   
 
Eric, a Milpitas firefighter/paramedic, wanted to let Council know Fremont could not let 
firefighters run medical calls in Milpitas. He termed this action disrespectful.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  10

 
Councilmember Gomez asked Chief Sturdivant if this matter was something he could 
manage and the Chief responded yes, temporarily. Mr. Gomez proposed a Council Task 
Force with a list of responsibilities to solve the financial issue.  
 
Councilmember Giordano was in favor of going forward with the temporary solution. 
Maybe having a task force was a good idea, too.   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski questioned Chief Sturdivant: was one life worth this cut?  She was 
concerned for neighbors and friends, with the increase in residents in new housing, and 
the time for response.  She did not support the current recommendation and does support 
Mr. Gomez’ idea of having a Council task force, to come back within 60 days. 
 
Mayor Esteves noted this subject was not a new thing, rather it was an ongoing issue, and 
asked everybody for solutions.  
 
Councilmember Gomez shared the same reservations as the Vice Mayor, and it made him 
nervous. Barring other solutions, he did not know what else to do.  He did not want to pull 
from reserves, and would like to be on the Task Force if formed 
  
Councilmember Montano was surprised at the ongoing issue of fire overtime costs and 
she had been concerned about abuses.  She would go with what the Chief recommended.  
 
Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8224 to approve a temporary reduction in force of the 
Milpitas Fire Department staffing  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Polanski) 
 
Motion:  to establish a Task Force of two Councilmembers to address the issue of Fire 
Department overtime costs and to report back immediately to City Council, with potential 
recommendations including for a long term solution  
 
Motion/Second:           Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Mayor Esteves asked for volunteers from the Council to serve on the Task Force and 
Councilmember Gomez and Vice Mayor Polanski offered, so the Mayor appointed those 
two to serve on the Task Force.  
 
All other agenda items were then continued and the meeting adjourned. 

  
9.  CAFR for FY 2011-12 This matter was not heard, and so was continued to the next Council meeting.  
  
10. Commissioners Recognition 
Event  

This item was removed from consent calendar.  However, it was not discussed and was 
continued to the next Council meeting.   

  
BID/CONTRACTS Four items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
DEMANDS Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 12:09 AM on Wed. morning, January 16, 2013.  

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council, meeting 

jointly with Public Financing Authority  

Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. City Clerk Lavelle noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano, Gomez and 
Montano  

 
ABSENT:   None 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:05 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Mr. Patel and three youth from the BAPS Temple in Milpitas offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of December 18, 2012 City Council meeting, as submitted 
  
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for December 2012 and January 

2013, as amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams noted the Economic Development Commission meeting scheduled 
for January 11 was canceled.  The Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission was re-scheduled 
from Monday, January 14 to Thursday, January 17 at 7:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATIONS Mayor Esteves commended four Milpitas residents who were 2012 Santa Clara County 

Emergency Volunteers of the Year:  Joseph Weinstein, Kristen Valus, Leo Martinez, and Josh 
Azaveda.  

 
 Next, Mayor Esteves presented Neighborhood Beautification awards for 2012 to many resident 

homeowners and business owners. A brief reception was held in the lobby following the awards.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, spoke to the City council regarding sewer rates.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  2 

 Vice Mayor Polanski commented in response to him, acknowledging an e-mail sent to him, which 
she quoted from. 

 
 Alvin White, Milpitas, addressed the Council with his belief that his vehicle was “stolen” while it 

was actually towed after Christmas by a service directed by Milpitas Police Department.  
 
 George Lund, 50 year resident of Milpitas, was unhappy about the lien issued against his property, 

due to comments from his neighbors to City staff, and other issues related to his home.  He felt he 
had been threatened by the City. 

 
Frank DeSmidt, representing Milpitas Rotary Club, was Chair of the Gene Schwab City employee 
annual awards luncheon which all were invited to attend on Monday, January 28 at the Beverly 
Heritage Hotel. 

 
Carol Kassab, CEO of the Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, announced a “State of the State” 
luncheon with local elected officials in the state capitol, was scheduled for Wednesday, January 30 
in Fremont, with more information on the Chamber’s website. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Mayor Esteves congratulated a new business, King Wah restaurant opened at 1235 East Calaveras 

Blvd. with Cantonese Dim Sum food offered.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 

City Manager Williams requested that the City Council hear public hearing agenda items No. 2 
and 3 in reverse order and the Councilmembers agreed. 

 
    Motion/Second:                 Councilmember Gomez/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended 
 
 The City Manager noted that regarding agenda item no. 11 (fee waiver request), the correct 

amount to be waived was $6,653.20.  He requested the Council - acting as the Board of the Public 
Financing Authority - simply add agenda item no. PFA2. (adopt two Resolutions) to the consent 
calendar.  

 
 Councilmember Giordano requested to remove Item No. 6 (Commission appointments) for 

discussion  
 
 Mayor Esteves had several questions of staff on the Commissioners Recognition (agenda item No. 

10) and then asked to remove this from consent.  
 
 Motion/Second:         Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES: 5   
   NOES:  0  
 

* 5. Appointment Council 
member to Two Committees  

1. Received the Mayor’s recommendations for appointments.  
2. Adopted Resolution No. 8223 approving the appointment of Councilmember Montano 
as the alternate member from Milpitas to the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC), which is retroactively effective on January 10, 2013. 
3. Approved the appointment of Councilmember Montano as a regular member, and 
Mayor Esteves as the alternate, to the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Coyote Flood 
Protection and Watershed Advisory Committee.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  3 

  
* 7. Walk-a-thon Donation Approved allocation of $250 from the City Council unallocated community promotions 

budget as a donation to Curtner Elementary School for annual Walk-A-Thon fundraiser. 
  
*11. Waive Fees for Relay for 
Life annual event in June  

Approved the request for fee waiver and in-kind donations of equipment, supplies, facility 
use and staffing totaling $6,903.20 for the annual American Cancer Society’s Relay for 
Life event at the Milpitas Sports Center held June 21-23, 2013. 

  
*12. Report of Sale of Truck  Received staff report on the sale of a Lift All Bucket Truck fir $6,999. 
  
*13. 6th Amendment to Hopkins 
& Carley contract  

Approved the Sixth Amendment to the contract for legal services between the City of 
Milpitas and the law firm of Hopkins & Carley, and approve transfer of contract amount 
from contingency reserve to City Attorney budget. 

  
*14. Contract with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc.  

1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a contract for Annual Tree Maintenance 
Service by piggybacking the City of Sunnyvale contract with West Coast Arborist, Inc. 
for the annual not-to-exceed amount of $170,000. 
2. Authorized the City Manager to approve annual increases per the contract terms 
without further action by City Council. 

  
*15. Agreement with McQuay 
Int’l for Chiller Maintenance  

1.  Approved an Assured Maintenance Agreement with McQuay International for 
maintenance of the chillers in the Police/Public Works building for the annual not-to-
exceed amount of $10,952. 
2.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*16. Approve Coop. Purchase 
for technical equipment  

Authorized the purchase of 16 mobile computers and eight modems through the use of a 
Cooperative Procurement Contract, for use by the Milpitas Fire Department.  

  
*17. Authorize CRW Payment  Authorized payment of the annual CRW Systems, Inc. technical support and software 

maintenance services for the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000. 
  
*18. Authorize Payment to 
Preston Pipeline  

1. Received a report of Dempsey Road water main emergency repair work from the Public 
Works Director.  
2. Approved a budget appropriation from the Water Fund in the amount of $55,000.  
Authorize staff to pay Preston Pipeline for the emergency repair of the Dempsey Road 
water main in an amount not to exceed $55,000. 

  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  
1.  Weed Abatement Program  Fire Marshal Albert Zamora explained actions taken to date for the weed abatement 

program, including Resolution No. 8212 adopted last month.  This evening was the 
opportunity to hear from any property owners who might object to clearing of weeds on 
their properties.  Also, the Fire Marshal introduced Mr. Ray Moreno, from the County of 
Santa Clara Agriculture office, who was present to answer questions about the program. 
 
Next, the Mayor opened the public hearing and heard no testimony.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 8218 authorizing the City Manager to direct the Santa 
Clara County Agricultural Commissioner to abate weeds declared to be a public nuisance, 
to keep an account of the costs, and to embody such account in a report and assessment 
list to the City Council  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  4 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 

  
2.  Actions related to Los 
Coches Residential 
Development Project  

Planner Tiffany Brown spoke on the new residential proposed at 31 Los Coches, in the 
Town Center Zoning District, with a zone change from industrial to residential at the 
former corporate buildings.  She reviewed the Planning Commission meeting where it 
recommended, on 3-2 vote, that the Council approve the project. The Commission had 
some discussion on appropriateness of residential next to a railroad yard and crossings. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked an assortment of questions regarding the project’s location to transit,  
Town Center zoning and the low density proposed, links to shopping, schools and other 
facilities  for residents to walk to. 
 
Councilmember Montano answered the Mayor on one issue:  it was two miles from the 
site to the BART station at Great Mall.  
 
Councilmember Giordano said the conversion of industrial to residential was the question 
for this site, in an under-utilized part of town.  That’s why the overlay was put on it.  She 
felt housing made sense in the neighborhood.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski addressed concerns about schools, mitigation for BART when it 
comes through, noise and vibration studies, soundwalls, and the necessary lighting on the 
walking path under 237overcrossing.  
 
Councilmember Gomez inquired about the ideal commercial use of the site, as it had been 
vacant more than ten years.  He asked further about what schools children living there 
would attend, and recreation, including parks, to be available. 
 
Councilmember Montano asked about the trail, height of soundwall, needed widening of 
Calaveras Blvd., and other concerns about water, lack of commercial, and the “fortress” 
like feel to the project design.  
 
Mayor Esteves asked the developer if the company made any contributions to Council 
members’ campaign accounts, and the reply was no.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited the applicant to the podium, so representative Andy Byde from 
Braddock and Logan gave background of his company and the project.  He then went on 
to answer some of previous questions raised by City Councilmembers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments.  
 
Freeman Jenkins, Church pastor in Milpitas, said there was not enough parking in the area 
now.  He mentioned Hammond St. and limited parking for apartments. 
 
Planning Director Steve McHarris told the City Council that the speaker was likely   
addressing another proposed project in a different area of the City.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said with 3,500 more housing units coming in next few 
years so he did not understand why more was needed. This would bring more traffic, more 
use of city services, difficult access for public safety, and marginalized the right to vote on 
utility rate increases. Building the project would be detrimental. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, said there were bike lanes on Milpitas Blvd. With access 
to trails and bus stops, this development would be transit friendly. There houses were 
large, however, at more than 2500 ft for single family homes. So residents were less likely 
to use public transit.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  5 

 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8219 approving the Vesting Major Tentative Map, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Site Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit 
for the Los Coches residential project located at 31 Los Coches Street  
 
Mayor Esteves commented favorably on the style of homes, and positive impacts of this 
new proposed residential neighborhood.  His only concern remaining was the school that 
children would attend from this location.  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Montano)  

  
3. General Plan Amendments  Senior Planner Sheldon Ah Sing presented the explanation for the request to adopt some 

new policies to include in the Land Use Element and the Circulation Element in the 
approved City of Milpitas General Plan.  The Circulation Element was requested to be 
amended in part to qualify for grant funds available for the Complete Streets Program.  
 
Councilmember Giordano noticed the Planning Commission had approved this 
recommendation and she asked staff if it was a unanimous vote, and staff affirmed it was.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski referred to a letter from Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, 
seeking some additional requested projects to be listed in the Circulation Element. She 
asked how those could be included and what would those affect.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked if there areas of the City excluded in the recommended 
action. Staff explained that upon a review of the specific areas in the Resolution, one 
could find that information. The City Manager replied to her, that the City Council could 
have a study session on this subject, if desired.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that a previous subcommittee discussed the Complete Streets 
Plan and was ready to vote on this, since it was first brought up last August. 
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments  
 
Guy Haas, Fallen Leaf Drive resident, asked for one typographical correction in the  
Circulation element. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone Ave, wanted to see the connection from Yellowstone to 
Curtis included in the plan. That project was not on the list in the Circulation Element as 
drafted.  So, the City could not even request funds from the larger regional transportation 
agencies.  He requests that the four specific projects (in letter) be added onto the list for 
the regional groups to consider for future funding.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, felt that if the business/housing mix was changing, then 
the City should add on some plan for transportation and put it into the Resolution, to move 
people around the City better and to get money for projects.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  6 

 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that 237 was a state highway and Council could not make 
recommendations for changes on that road way (only comments).  She wanted to look at 
the projects on Sunnyhills list, the circulation around new BART station. The Vice Mayor 
recommended including this one in the Circulation element.  
 
Councilmember Gomez suggested the Council could have a study session on jobs/housing 
relation, with the benefits of amending the General Plan.  He asked the City Manager for 
the limit on amendments per year and Mr. Williams replied four times per year maximum. 
 
Councilmember Giordano replied on items in the Sunnyhills list and agreed with No. 4 
(circulation around the BART station).  She asked for support to consider item no.1 
(crossing over Yosemite) as she agreed with Mr. Rob Means, and that it could at least be 
considered for funding in the future.  
 
Mayor Esteves felt there was a need for lots of options for circulation. He did not believe 
the Sunnyhills No. 1 item was feasible economically.   
 
Councilmember Giordano moved to adopt the Resolution, and to a add items no. 1 and no. 
4 from the Sunnyhills letter. Vice Mayor Polanski seconded the motion, and would also 
want the circulation around the BART station and other projects that might come up 
through research (i.e. not limiting) to be included, as appropriate.  
 
This could include connectors at local streets, connecting streets, add arterials to local 
roadways and collector streets, staff suggested. 
 
Councilmember Gomez would like a presentation at another time, expressed to the City 
Manager.  He supported a study session on the Land Use Element.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked whether trails were included in the Circulation Element 
and Mr. Williams replied, yes.  
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8220 approving the General Plan Amendment No. 
GP12-005, for the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as recommended by the Milpitas 
Planning Commission including recommendations No. 1 (railroad crossing connecting 
Yosemite Drive and Curtis Avenue) and No. 4 (circulator around the BART station) from 
the January 9, 2013 letter submitted by the Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, and 
including a broad approach to inclusion of street improvements in the Circulation Element  
(as per comments by Vice Mayor Polanski)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Esteves)  
 
Mayor Esteves said he opposed including Sunnyhills recommendation no. 1. 

  
4.  Update of Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee  

Planning Director Steve McHarris explained the desired update of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan Development Impact Fee, adopted in 2008. This same item was approved by 
the City Council on December 18, 2012, with a 30-days urgency resolution. At this 
meeting, Council was requested to adopt another resolution again for next 30 days, up to 
the date when the permanent impact fee (adopted by Resolution in December) would take 
effect to update the Transit Area Development Impact Fees charged to developers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing to receive testimony and heard none.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  7 

(1) Motion:  to  close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt urgent Resolution No. 8221 extending the revised fee schedule for 
the Transit Area Development Impact Fee effective for 30 days (requiring a 4/5 minimum 
vote for approval)  
 
Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0  

  
JOINT PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
PFA1.  Call to Order/Roll Call A joint meeting was called to order by Mayor Esteves at the very start and all Public 

Financing Authority members were present.  
  
* PFA2.  Resolutions This item was added to the consent calendar.   

 
Adopted Resolution No. 8222 and Resolution No. PFA 15 authorizing the investment of 
monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund, updating the signatures of current officials.  

  
PFA3.  Authority Adjourn   
  
REPORTS  Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
6. Commission Appointments  Councilmember Giordano requested to separate the votes on the Planning Commission 

appointments from all the others.  
 
(1) Motion:  to appoint all the Mayor’s recommended Commission appointments, with the 
exception of the Planning Commission: 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Christine Sanchez as a regular member to a term that will expire in August 2013.   
Appoint Chris Lee as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in August 2014. 
Newly appoint Kristal Caidoy as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in Aug. 2013. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission: 
Reappoint Melba Holliday to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
Reappoint Moo Jin Choi as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Reappoint Brenda Su as the student non-voting member to a term to expire in Sept. 2014. 
 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint William Lam to a term that will expire in January 2015. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Reappoint Denny Weisgerber to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Dana Arbaugh to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Bruce Choy to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Arthur Ebright to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint David Grundstrom to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Mel Hinshaw to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Liliana Ramos as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in February 2016. 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  8 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(2) Motion:  to re-appoint Gurdev “Dave” Sandhu and Rajeev Madnawat for another term 
of three years to the Milpitas Planning Commission (terms expire December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(3) Motion:  to appoint Garry Barbadillo (current Alternate Member) to a three-year term 
as a voting member of the Milpitas Planning Commission (term expires December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Montano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  4 
                                                      NOES:  1 (Giordano  
 
Councilmember Montano reported there was a vacancy on the Library Advisory 
Commission since she was elected to the Council. She requested the Mayor to move up 
the Alternate Members on that one Commission, at the next Council meeting.  

  
NEW BUSINESS Three items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
8.   Consider Fire Department  
Temporary Reduction in Force 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a presentation to explain current costs including 
overtime expenses, with a request to reduce staff and brown out one engine at the Milpitas 
Fire Department.  The reduction would involve 10 members (4 firefighter layoffs and 
others bumped) to save approximately $315,000 through the end of the fiscal year. This 
was recommended as a temporary strategy.   The Chief said he would meet with San Jose 
and Fremont Fire Chiefs about mutual aid implementation.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked for details on how the numbers impacted the department 
and the City, if approved. He acknowledged there could be a need to add to the Fire 
Department in the future with all the new developments, and he sought to understand 
impacts of the proposal.  He’d looked at this issue in the past with Councilmember 
Giordano, and it was an issue for the City for a long time. Perhaps a Task Force could be 
formed to study how to deal with the overtime costs, long term.  
 
Councilmember Giordano remarked on high overtime costs versus the budget. She termed 
the Chief’s a “viable option” as presented. 
 
Councilmember Polanski inquired if this approach has worked in other jurisdictions and 
the Chief replied yes.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked the amount over budget and the Chief replied 6%. She 
agreed with Mr. Gomez to have a Task Force to deal with problem.  
 
Mayor Esteves noted they needed to find a more permanent solution.  He was not 
supportive of adding more money into the budget to solve this, as there was a need to find 
ways to pay for the level of service, while spending only what City had.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited speakers on the issue.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said the Council was not responsible approving more 
projects.  The City gave more time off as people worked at the City longer and that was 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  9 

no good.  He asked if there was any plan where firefighters would come back in an 
emergency situation to provide service. 
 
City Manager Williams responded to the public that each new housing unit built in 
Milpitas must join an established Community Facilities District to pay its fair share of 
costs for city services. 
 
Denny Weisgerber, Casper Street resident, commented on the 23% vacancy rate and it 
was due to many factors.  He felt that cutting out a complete fire company, with only 
minimum station crew was not proper.  
 
Mia Bradway Winter, Milpitas resident, told Council they had a responsibility to protect 
residents.  Staffing had been in place since 1980. Taking out one rig meant a 20% 
reduction of service while they needed that to protect the community.   
 
Steve King, IAFF local 1699 President, remarked on a recent structure fire and the lack of 
response by the neighboring Fire Departments in San Jose and Fremont.  Those 
relationships never met needs of the contract, so staffing levels not sufficient.  
 
Leif Juliassen, 15 years with Milpitas Fire, said with minimum staffing there were 15 on 
duty each day.  In the last ten years, staffing reduction was requested by the City.  Then, 
the overtime budget was cut in this current budget when full staffing not realized. 
 
Brian Stelling, Fire Captain with nearly 20 years with Milpitas, requested that City 
Council dip into reserves to pay for current overtime costs.  It was not realistic to have 
neighbors help more, when they’ve been cutting, too.  
 
Courtney Anderson, just six months with Milpitas Fire, had four children and always 
wanted to be a firefighter. He could not understand how he just got here and now he 
would get laid off.  It was not right for him and his family.  
 
Heather Fisher, born and raised in Milpitas and a new firefighter, said this was her dream 
job in her hometown.  She feared hearing her parents’ address over the radio, and the need 
to be with them if nobody was coming.  
 
Jerrell Hardy, a new Milpitas firefighter, left his previous career to come to Milpitas Fire 
Department.  Their purpose was to serve and protect the people of Milpitas.   
 
Jaime Garcia, Fire Prevention division employee, looked at all the new projects and 
structures.  He referred to previous City budgets for Fire. Overtime budgets had been 
reduced from $1.5 million to $464,000 while giving up positions which he termed “really 
unfair” when concessions were given. 
 
Isaac Lorenzano, Milpitas firefighter, had family here in Milpitas.  He urged Council to 
think about how to deal with this issue before making a decision. 
 
James Queenan, a lifelong resident with parents who live here, said when giving up 
positions, there would be overtime necessary.  That was what Council agreed to.  He 
referred to longer response times and effect on citizens.  It was a union busting tactic.  
 
Kristen Valice, resident and disaster worker and a SAFE Team leader who cared very 
much about any reduction in service, especially with Dixon Landing closed.  The recent 
flooding was a problem there.  
 
Yvonne Matagulay, 25 year Milpitas firefighter, asked to look at the real numbers.  When 
she was first hired, there was more staff than today with less than 20 per platoon.   
 
Eric, a Milpitas firefighter/paramedic, wanted to let Council know Fremont could not let 
firefighters run medical calls in Milpitas. He termed this action disrespectful.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  10

 
Councilmember Gomez asked Chief Sturdivant if this matter was something he could 
manage and the Chief responded yes, temporarily. Mr. Gomez proposed a Council Task 
Force with a list of responsibilities to solve the financial issue.  
 
Councilmember Giordano was in favor of going forward with the temporary solution. 
Maybe having a task force was a good idea, too.   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski questioned Chief Sturdivant: was one life worth this cut?  She was 
concerned for neighbors and friends, with the increase in residents in new housing, and 
the time for response.  She did not support the current recommendation and does support 
Mr. Gomez’ idea of having a Council task force, to come back within 60 days. 
 
Mayor Esteves noted this subject was not a new thing, rather it was an ongoing issue, and 
asked everybody for solutions.  
 
Councilmember Gomez shared the same reservations as the Vice Mayor, and it made him 
nervous. Barring other solutions, he did not know what else to do.  He did not want to pull 
from reserves, and would like to be on the Task Force if formed 
  
Councilmember Montano was surprised at the ongoing issue of fire overtime costs and 
she had been concerned about abuses.  She would go with what the Chief recommended.  
 
Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8224 to approve a temporary reduction in force of the 
Milpitas Fire Department staffing  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Polanski) 
 
Motion:  to establish a Task Force of two Councilmembers to address the issue of Fire 
Department overtime costs and to report back immediately to City Council, with potential 
recommendations including for a long term solution  
 
Motion/Second:           Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Mayor Esteves asked for volunteers from the Council to serve on the Task Force and 
Councilmember Gomez and Vice Mayor Polanski offered, so the Mayor appointed those 
two to serve on the Task Force.  
 
All other agenda items were then continued and the meeting adjourned. 

  
9.  CAFR for FY 2011-12 This matter was not heard, and so was continued to the next Council meeting.  
  
10. Commissioners Recognition 
Event  

This item was removed from consent calendar.  However, it was not discussed and was 
continued to the next Council meeting.   

  
BID/CONTRACTS Four items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
DEMANDS Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 12:09 AM on Wed. morning, January 16, 2013.  

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council, meeting 

jointly with Public Financing Authority  

Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

Time: 6:00 PM 

Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. City Clerk Lavelle noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano, Gomez and 
Montano  

 
ABSENT:   None 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:05 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Mr. Patel and three youth from the BAPS Temple in Milpitas offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of December 18, 2012 City Council meeting, as submitted 
  
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for December 2012 and January 

2013, as amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams noted the Economic Development Commission meeting scheduled 
for January 11 was canceled.  The Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission was re-scheduled 
from Monday, January 14 to Thursday, January 17 at 7:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATIONS Mayor Esteves commended four Milpitas residents who were 2012 Santa Clara County 

Emergency Volunteers of the Year:  Joseph Weinstein, Kristen Valus, Leo Martinez, and Josh 
Azaveda.  

 
 Next, Mayor Esteves presented Neighborhood Beautification awards for 2012 to many resident 

homeowners and business owners. A brief reception was held in the lobby following the awards.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, spoke to the City council regarding sewer rates.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  2 

 Vice Mayor Polanski commented in response to him, acknowledging an e-mail sent to him, which 
she quoted from. 

 
 Alvin White, Milpitas, addressed the Council with his belief that his vehicle was “stolen” while it 

was actually towed after Christmas by a service directed by Milpitas Police Department.  
 
 George Lund, 50 year resident of Milpitas, was unhappy about the lien issued against his property, 

due to comments from his neighbors to City staff, and other issues related to his home.  He felt he 
had been threatened by the City. 

 
Frank DeSmidt, representing Milpitas Rotary Club, was Chair of the Gene Schwab City employee 
annual awards luncheon which all were invited to attend on Monday, January 28 at the Beverly 
Heritage Hotel. 

 
Carol Kassab, CEO of the Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, announced a “State of the State” 
luncheon with local elected officials in the state capitol, was scheduled for Wednesday, January 30 
in Fremont, with more information on the Chamber’s website. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Mayor Esteves congratulated a new business, King Wah restaurant opened at 1235 East Calaveras 

Blvd. with Cantonese Dim Sum food offered.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 

City Manager Williams requested that the City Council hear public hearing agenda items No. 2 
and 3 in reverse order and the Councilmembers agreed. 

 
    Motion/Second:                 Councilmember Gomez/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended 
 
 The City Manager noted that regarding agenda item no. 11 (fee waiver request), the correct 

amount to be waived was $6,653.20.  He requested the Council - acting as the Board of the Public 
Financing Authority - simply add agenda item no. PFA2. (adopt two Resolutions) to the consent 
calendar.  

 
 Councilmember Giordano requested to remove Item No. 6 (Commission appointments) for 

discussion  
 
 Mayor Esteves had several questions of staff on the Commissioners Recognition (agenda item No. 

10) and then asked to remove this from consent.  
 
 Motion/Second:         Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES: 5   
   NOES:  0  
 

* 5. Appointment Council 
member to Two Committees  

1. Received the Mayor’s recommendations for appointments.  
2. Adopted Resolution No. 8223 approving the appointment of Councilmember Montano 
as the alternate member from Milpitas to the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC), which is retroactively effective on January 10, 2013. 
3. Approved the appointment of Councilmember Montano as a regular member, and 
Mayor Esteves as the alternate, to the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Coyote Flood 
Protection and Watershed Advisory Committee.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  3 

  
* 7. Walk-a-thon Donation Approved allocation of $250 from the City Council unallocated community promotions 

budget as a donation to Curtner Elementary School for annual Walk-A-Thon fundraiser. 
  
*11. Waive Fees for Relay for 
Life annual event in June  

Approved the request for fee waiver and in-kind donations of equipment, supplies, facility 
use and staffing totaling $6,903.20 for the annual American Cancer Society’s Relay for 
Life event at the Milpitas Sports Center held June 21-23, 2013. 

  
*12. Report of Sale of Truck  Received staff report on the sale of a Lift All Bucket Truck fir $6,999. 
  
*13. 6th Amendment to Hopkins 
& Carley contract  

Approved the Sixth Amendment to the contract for legal services between the City of 
Milpitas and the law firm of Hopkins & Carley, and approve transfer of contract amount 
from contingency reserve to City Attorney budget. 

  
*14. Contract with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc.  

1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a contract for Annual Tree Maintenance 
Service by piggybacking the City of Sunnyvale contract with West Coast Arborist, Inc. 
for the annual not-to-exceed amount of $170,000. 
2. Authorized the City Manager to approve annual increases per the contract terms 
without further action by City Council. 

  
*15. Agreement with McQuay 
Int’l for Chiller Maintenance  

1.  Approved an Assured Maintenance Agreement with McQuay International for 
maintenance of the chillers in the Police/Public Works building for the annual not-to-
exceed amount of $10,952. 
2.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*16. Approve Coop. Purchase 
for technical equipment  

Authorized the purchase of 16 mobile computers and eight modems through the use of a 
Cooperative Procurement Contract, for use by the Milpitas Fire Department.  

  
*17. Authorize CRW Payment  Authorized payment of the annual CRW Systems, Inc. technical support and software 

maintenance services for the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000. 
  
*18. Authorize Payment to 
Preston Pipeline  

1. Received a report of Dempsey Road water main emergency repair work from the Public 
Works Director.  
2. Approved a budget appropriation from the Water Fund in the amount of $55,000.  
Authorize staff to pay Preston Pipeline for the emergency repair of the Dempsey Road 
water main in an amount not to exceed $55,000. 

  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  
1.  Weed Abatement Program  Fire Marshal Albert Zamora explained actions taken to date for the weed abatement 

program, including Resolution No. 8212 adopted last month.  This evening was the 
opportunity to hear from any property owners who might object to clearing of weeds on 
their properties.  Also, the Fire Marshal introduced Mr. Ray Moreno, from the County of 
Santa Clara Agriculture office, who was present to answer questions about the program. 
 
Next, the Mayor opened the public hearing and heard no testimony.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 8218 authorizing the City Manager to direct the Santa 
Clara County Agricultural Commissioner to abate weeds declared to be a public nuisance, 
to keep an account of the costs, and to embody such account in a report and assessment 
list to the City Council  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  4 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 

  
2.  Actions related to Los 
Coches Residential 
Development Project  

Planner Tiffany Brown spoke on the new residential proposed at 31 Los Coches, in the 
Town Center Zoning District, with a zone change from industrial to residential at the 
former corporate buildings.  She reviewed the Planning Commission meeting where it 
recommended, on 3-2 vote, that the Council approve the project. The Commission had 
some discussion on appropriateness of residential next to a railroad yard and crossings. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked an assortment of questions regarding the project’s location to transit,  
Town Center zoning and the low density proposed, links to shopping, schools and other 
facilities  for residents to walk to. 
 
Councilmember Montano answered the Mayor on one issue:  it was two miles from the 
site to the BART station at Great Mall.  
 
Councilmember Giordano said the conversion of industrial to residential was the question 
for this site, in an under-utilized part of town.  That’s why the overlay was put on it.  She 
felt housing made sense in the neighborhood.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski addressed concerns about schools, mitigation for BART when it 
comes through, noise and vibration studies, soundwalls, and the necessary lighting on the 
walking path under 237overcrossing.  
 
Councilmember Gomez inquired about the ideal commercial use of the site, as it had been 
vacant more than ten years.  He asked further about what schools children living there 
would attend, and recreation, including parks, to be available. 
 
Councilmember Montano asked about the trail, height of soundwall, needed widening of 
Calaveras Blvd., and other concerns about water, lack of commercial, and the “fortress” 
like feel to the project design.  
 
Mayor Esteves asked the developer if the company made any contributions to Council 
members’ campaign accounts, and the reply was no.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited the applicant to the podium, so representative Andy Byde from 
Braddock and Logan gave background of his company and the project.  He then went on 
to answer some of previous questions raised by City Councilmembers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments.  
 
Freeman Jenkins, Church pastor in Milpitas, said there was not enough parking in the area 
now.  He mentioned Hammond St. and limited parking for apartments. 
 
Planning Director Steve McHarris told the City Council that the speaker was likely   
addressing another proposed project in a different area of the City.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said with 3,500 more housing units coming in next few 
years so he did not understand why more was needed. This would bring more traffic, more 
use of city services, difficult access for public safety, and marginalized the right to vote on 
utility rate increases. Building the project would be detrimental. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, said there were bike lanes on Milpitas Blvd. With access 
to trails and bus stops, this development would be transit friendly. There houses were 
large, however, at more than 2500 ft for single family homes. So residents were less likely 
to use public transit.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  5 

 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8219 approving the Vesting Major Tentative Map, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Site Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit 
for the Los Coches residential project located at 31 Los Coches Street  
 
Mayor Esteves commented favorably on the style of homes, and positive impacts of this 
new proposed residential neighborhood.  His only concern remaining was the school that 
children would attend from this location.  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Montano)  

  
3. General Plan Amendments  Senior Planner Sheldon Ah Sing presented the explanation for the request to adopt some 

new policies to include in the Land Use Element and the Circulation Element in the 
approved City of Milpitas General Plan.  The Circulation Element was requested to be 
amended in part to qualify for grant funds available for the Complete Streets Program.  
 
Councilmember Giordano noticed the Planning Commission had approved this 
recommendation and she asked staff if it was a unanimous vote, and staff affirmed it was.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski referred to a letter from Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, 
seeking some additional requested projects to be listed in the Circulation Element. She 
asked how those could be included and what would those affect.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked if there areas of the City excluded in the recommended 
action. Staff explained that upon a review of the specific areas in the Resolution, one 
could find that information. The City Manager replied to her, that the City Council could 
have a study session on this subject, if desired.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that a previous subcommittee discussed the Complete Streets 
Plan and was ready to vote on this, since it was first brought up last August. 
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing for comments  
 
Guy Haas, Fallen Leaf Drive resident, asked for one typographical correction in the  
Circulation element. 
 
Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone Ave, wanted to see the connection from Yellowstone to 
Curtis included in the plan. That project was not on the list in the Circulation Element as 
drafted.  So, the City could not even request funds from the larger regional transportation 
agencies.  He requests that the four specific projects (in letter) be added onto the list for 
the regional groups to consider for future funding.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, felt that if the business/housing mix was changing, then 
the City should add on some plan for transportation and put it into the Resolution, to move 
people around the City better and to get money for projects.  
 
(1) Motion:  to close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  6 

 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski noted that 237 was a state highway and Council could not make 
recommendations for changes on that road way (only comments).  She wanted to look at 
the projects on Sunnyhills list, the circulation around new BART station. The Vice Mayor 
recommended including this one in the Circulation element.  
 
Councilmember Gomez suggested the Council could have a study session on jobs/housing 
relation, with the benefits of amending the General Plan.  He asked the City Manager for 
the limit on amendments per year and Mr. Williams replied four times per year maximum. 
 
Councilmember Giordano replied on items in the Sunnyhills list and agreed with No. 4 
(circulation around the BART station).  She asked for support to consider item no.1 
(crossing over Yosemite) as she agreed with Mr. Rob Means, and that it could at least be 
considered for funding in the future.  
 
Mayor Esteves felt there was a need for lots of options for circulation. He did not believe 
the Sunnyhills No. 1 item was feasible economically.   
 
Councilmember Giordano moved to adopt the Resolution, and to a add items no. 1 and no. 
4 from the Sunnyhills letter. Vice Mayor Polanski seconded the motion, and would also 
want the circulation around the BART station and other projects that might come up 
through research (i.e. not limiting) to be included, as appropriate.  
 
This could include connectors at local streets, connecting streets, add arterials to local 
roadways and collector streets, staff suggested. 
 
Councilmember Gomez would like a presentation at another time, expressed to the City 
Manager.  He supported a study session on the Land Use Element.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked whether trails were included in the Circulation Element 
and Mr. Williams replied, yes.  
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8220 approving the General Plan Amendment No. 
GP12-005, for the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as recommended by the Milpitas 
Planning Commission including recommendations No. 1 (railroad crossing connecting 
Yosemite Drive and Curtis Avenue) and No. 4 (circulator around the BART station) from 
the January 9, 2013 letter submitted by the Sunnyhills Neighborhood Association, and 
including a broad approach to inclusion of street improvements in the Circulation Element  
(as per comments by Vice Mayor Polanski)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Esteves)  
 
Mayor Esteves said he opposed including Sunnyhills recommendation no. 1. 

  
4.  Update of Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee  

Planning Director Steve McHarris explained the desired update of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan Development Impact Fee, adopted in 2008. This same item was approved by 
the City Council on December 18, 2012, with a 30-days urgency resolution. At this 
meeting, Council was requested to adopt another resolution again for next 30 days, up to 
the date when the permanent impact fee (adopted by Resolution in December) would take 
effect to update the Transit Area Development Impact Fees charged to developers.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing to receive testimony and heard none.  
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  7 

(1) Motion:  to  close the public hearing 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt urgent Resolution No. 8221 extending the revised fee schedule for 
the Transit Area Development Impact Fee effective for 30 days (requiring a 4/5 minimum 
vote for approval)  
 
Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0  

  
JOINT PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
PFA1.  Call to Order/Roll Call A joint meeting was called to order by Mayor Esteves at the very start and all Public 

Financing Authority members were present.  
  
* PFA2.  Resolutions This item was added to the consent calendar.   

 
Adopted Resolution No. 8222 and Resolution No. PFA 15 authorizing the investment of 
monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund, updating the signatures of current officials.  

  
PFA3.  Authority Adjourn   
  
REPORTS  Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
6. Commission Appointments  Councilmember Giordano requested to separate the votes on the Planning Commission 

appointments from all the others.  
 
(1) Motion:  to appoint all the Mayor’s recommended Commission appointments, with the 
exception of the Planning Commission: 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission: 
Appoint Christine Sanchez as a regular member to a term that will expire in August 2013.   
Appoint Chris Lee as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in August 2014. 
Newly appoint Kristal Caidoy as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in Aug. 2013. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission: 
Reappoint Melba Holliday to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
Reappoint Moo Jin Choi as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Sister Cities Commission: 
Reappoint Brenda Su as the student non-voting member to a term to expire in Sept. 2014. 
 
Telecommunications Commission: 
Reappoint William Lam to a term that will expire in January 2015. 
 
Veterans Commission: 
Reappoint Denny Weisgerber to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Dana Arbaugh to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Bruce Choy to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Arthur Ebright to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint David Grundstrom to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Mel Hinshaw to a term that will expire in February 2016. 
Reappoint Liliana Ramos as Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in February 2016. 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  8 

 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(2) Motion:  to re-appoint Gurdev “Dave” Sandhu and Rajeev Madnawat for another term 
of three years to the Milpitas Planning Commission (terms expire December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  5   
                                                      NOES:  0  
 
(3) Motion:  to appoint Garry Barbadillo (current Alternate Member) to a three-year term 
as a voting member of the Milpitas Planning Commission (term expires December 2015)  
 
Motion/Second:            Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Montano  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                    AYES:  4 
                                                      NOES:  1 (Giordano  
 
Councilmember Montano reported there was a vacancy on the Library Advisory 
Commission since she was elected to the Council. She requested the Mayor to move up 
the Alternate Members on that one Commission, at the next Council meeting.  

  
NEW BUSINESS Three items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
8.   Consider Fire Department  
Temporary Reduction in Force 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a presentation to explain current costs including 
overtime expenses, with a request to reduce staff and brown out one engine at the Milpitas 
Fire Department.  The reduction would involve 10 members (4 firefighter layoffs and 
others bumped) to save approximately $315,000 through the end of the fiscal year. This 
was recommended as a temporary strategy.   The Chief said he would meet with San Jose 
and Fremont Fire Chiefs about mutual aid implementation.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked for details on how the numbers impacted the department 
and the City, if approved. He acknowledged there could be a need to add to the Fire 
Department in the future with all the new developments, and he sought to understand 
impacts of the proposal.  He’d looked at this issue in the past with Councilmember 
Giordano, and it was an issue for the City for a long time. Perhaps a Task Force could be 
formed to study how to deal with the overtime costs, long term.  
 
Councilmember Giordano remarked on high overtime costs versus the budget. She termed 
the Chief’s a “viable option” as presented. 
 
Councilmember Polanski inquired if this approach has worked in other jurisdictions and 
the Chief replied yes.  
 
Councilmember Montano asked the amount over budget and the Chief replied 6%. She 
agreed with Mr. Gomez to have a Task Force to deal with problem.  
 
Mayor Esteves noted they needed to find a more permanent solution.  He was not 
supportive of adding more money into the budget to solve this, as there was a need to find 
ways to pay for the level of service, while spending only what City had.  
 
Mayor Esteves invited speakers on the issue.  
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said the Council was not responsible approving more 
projects.  The City gave more time off as people worked at the City longer and that was 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  9 

no good.  He asked if there was any plan where firefighters would come back in an 
emergency situation to provide service. 
 
City Manager Williams responded to the public that each new housing unit built in 
Milpitas must join an established Community Facilities District to pay its fair share of 
costs for city services. 
 
Denny Weisgerber, Casper Street resident, commented on the 23% vacancy rate and it 
was due to many factors.  He felt that cutting out a complete fire company, with only 
minimum station crew was not proper.  
 
Mia Bradway Winter, Milpitas resident, told Council they had a responsibility to protect 
residents.  Staffing had been in place since 1980. Taking out one rig meant a 20% 
reduction of service while they needed that to protect the community.   
 
Steve King, IAFF local 1699 President, remarked on a recent structure fire and the lack of 
response by the neighboring Fire Departments in San Jose and Fremont.  Those 
relationships never met needs of the contract, so staffing levels not sufficient.  
 
Leif Juliassen, 15 years with Milpitas Fire, said with minimum staffing there were 15 on 
duty each day.  In the last ten years, staffing reduction was requested by the City.  Then, 
the overtime budget was cut in this current budget when full staffing not realized. 
 
Brian Stelling, Fire Captain with nearly 20 years with Milpitas, requested that City 
Council dip into reserves to pay for current overtime costs.  It was not realistic to have 
neighbors help more, when they’ve been cutting, too.  
 
Courtney Anderson, just six months with Milpitas Fire, had four children and always 
wanted to be a firefighter. He could not understand how he just got here and now he 
would get laid off.  It was not right for him and his family.  
 
Heather Fisher, born and raised in Milpitas and a new firefighter, said this was her dream 
job in her hometown.  She feared hearing her parents’ address over the radio, and the need 
to be with them if nobody was coming.  
 
Jerrell Hardy, a new Milpitas firefighter, left his previous career to come to Milpitas Fire 
Department.  Their purpose was to serve and protect the people of Milpitas.   
 
Jaime Garcia, Fire Prevention division employee, looked at all the new projects and 
structures.  He referred to previous City budgets for Fire. Overtime budgets had been 
reduced from $1.5 million to $464,000 while giving up positions which he termed “really 
unfair” when concessions were given. 
 
Isaac Lorenzano, Milpitas firefighter, had family here in Milpitas.  He urged Council to 
think about how to deal with this issue before making a decision. 
 
James Queenan, a lifelong resident with parents who live here, said when giving up 
positions, there would be overtime necessary.  That was what Council agreed to.  He 
referred to longer response times and effect on citizens.  It was a union busting tactic.  
 
Kristen Valice, resident and disaster worker and a SAFE Team leader who cared very 
much about any reduction in service, especially with Dixon Landing closed.  The recent 
flooding was a problem there.  
 
Yvonne Matagulay, 25 year Milpitas firefighter, asked to look at the real numbers.  When 
she was first hired, there was more staff than today with less than 20 per platoon.   
 
Eric, a Milpitas firefighter/paramedic, wanted to let Council know Fremont could not let 
firefighters run medical calls in Milpitas. He termed this action disrespectful.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  January 15, 2013  10

 
Councilmember Gomez asked Chief Sturdivant if this matter was something he could 
manage and the Chief responded yes, temporarily. Mr. Gomez proposed a Council Task 
Force with a list of responsibilities to solve the financial issue.  
 
Councilmember Giordano was in favor of going forward with the temporary solution. 
Maybe having a task force was a good idea, too.   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski questioned Chief Sturdivant: was one life worth this cut?  She was 
concerned for neighbors and friends, with the increase in residents in new housing, and 
the time for response.  She did not support the current recommendation and does support 
Mr. Gomez’ idea of having a Council task force, to come back within 60 days. 
 
Mayor Esteves noted this subject was not a new thing, rather it was an ongoing issue, and 
asked everybody for solutions.  
 
Councilmember Gomez shared the same reservations as the Vice Mayor, and it made him 
nervous. Barring other solutions, he did not know what else to do.  He did not want to pull 
from reserves, and would like to be on the Task Force if formed 
  
Councilmember Montano was surprised at the ongoing issue of fire overtime costs and 
she had been concerned about abuses.  She would go with what the Chief recommended.  
 
Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8224 to approve a temporary reduction in force of the 
Milpitas Fire Department staffing  
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Councilmember Gomez  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  4 
                                                                            NOES:  1 (Polanski) 
 
Motion:  to establish a Task Force of two Councilmembers to address the issue of Fire 
Department overtime costs and to report back immediately to City Council, with potential 
recommendations including for a long term solution  
 
Motion/Second:           Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                               AYES:  5 
                                                                            NOES:  0 
 
Mayor Esteves asked for volunteers from the Council to serve on the Task Force and 
Councilmember Gomez and Vice Mayor Polanski offered, so the Mayor appointed those 
two to serve on the Task Force.  
 
All other agenda items were then continued and the meeting adjourned. 

  
9.  CAFR for FY 2011-12 This matter was not heard, and so was continued to the next Council meeting.  
  
10. Commissioners Recognition 
Event  

This item was removed from consent calendar.  However, it was not discussed and was 
continued to the next Council meeting.   

  
BID/CONTRACTS Four items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
DEMANDS Two items were approved on consent calendar.  
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 12:09 AM on Wed. morning, January 16, 2013.  

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Counci l  Ca lendar  
February 2013 

 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1 

 
 2 

 

 3 
 

 4 
 

7:00 PM-Parks, Recreation & 
Cultural Resources Comm (AP) 
 

 5 
 

6:00 PM-Closed Session 
7:00 PM-City Council 
 

 6 
 

7:30 AM-VTA Northeast Group (JE) 
5:30 PM-Veterans Commission (DG) 
7:00 PM-Community Advisory Comm.  
(AG) 
 

 7 
 

 

 8 
 

 9 
 

 10 
 

 11 
 
6:00 PM-Economic Development 
Commission (CM) 
 

 12 

C i t y  Ho l i d ay  
 

 
 

 13 
 
7:00 PM-Planning Commission 
 

 14 
 
4:00 PM-VTA Policy Advis Comm (AG) 
4:30 PM-Treatment Plant Advisory 
Committee (JE) (San Jose) 
7:00 PM-Youth Advisory Comm. (DG) 
7:00 PM-Cities Association of Santa 
Clara County (JE) 
 

 15 
 

 16 

 

 17 
 

 18 

C i t y  Ho l i d ay  
 

 
 

 

 19 
 

6:00 PM-Closed Session  
7:00 PM-City Council 
 

 20 
 

 21 
 

9:30 AM-Coyote Flood Protection and 
Watershed Advisory Comm (CM) 

 22 
 

 23 
12:00 PM 

Tribute 
Celebration for 
Ben Gross 
(Senior Center) 

 24 
 

 25 
 
4:00 PM-Oversight Board (AG) 
7:00 PM-Telecommunications 
Commission (AP) 
 

 26 
 
1:30 PM-Senior Advisory 
Commission (JE) 
 

 27 
 
7:00 PM-Planning Commission 
 

 28 
 
7:00 AM-Milpitas Chamber of 
Commerce Board (DG) 
12:00 PM-Terrace Gardens Board of 
Directors (DG) 
1:30 PM-County Library Joint Powers 
Authority Board (CM) 
7:00 PM-Sister Cities Comm (CM) 

 

 
 

 

Updated 1/29/13 

March 2013 

S M T W T F S 
      1  2 

 3  4  5  6  7  8  9 

 10  11  12  13  14  15  16 

 17  18  19  20  21  22  23 

 24  25  26  27  28  29  30 

 31       

January 2013 

S M T W T F S 
   1  2  3  4  5 

 6  7  8  9  10  11  12 

 13  14  15  16  17  18  19 

 20  21  22  23  24  25  26 

 27  28  29  30  31   

       







































































































































































































































































































































































































City of Milpitas 
Reimbursement Guidelines 

For 
Mayor and City Council Members 

February 5, 2013 
 

 

The following guidelines are proposed for reimbursements for the mayor and council members 
of the City of Milpitas: 

1. No reimbursement for charitable contributions; 
2. No reimbursement for gifts, donations, contributions, for any purpose; 
3. No reimbursement for entrance fees for walk-a-thons, marathons, relays, or other events 

for charitable or non-charitable purposes and all other non-city events (cultural, social, 
etc.) unless the function requires the presence of an elected official; 

4. No reimbursement without itemized receipts or copies of cancelled checks; 
5. No reimbursement for mileage, parking, or tolls  and other transportation costs and 

hotels within Santa Clara County; 
6. No reimbursement for conferences or conventions not directly related to the elected 

office held; 
7. No reimbursement for table sponsorships, hole in one sponsorships or other related 

events; 
8. No reimbursement for tuition or any personal use; 
9. No reimbursement for political contributions or PACs; and 
10. No reimbursement for retirement dinners except those involving City of Milpitas 

employees or state/national elected officials (does not include any gift contribution). 

 

Maximum total amount of allowable reimbursement per elected official per fiscal year:  city 
council member-$1,000.00 per fiscal year; mayor-$1,500.00 per fiscal year (no aggregation of 
accounts). 

Quarterly reporting of reimbursements; Council has authority to confirm/validate reimbursements 
made; can ask elected official to re-pay the City for non-legitimate reimbursements as determined 
by the Milpitas City Council. 

If an elected official is uncertain about any reimbursable expenses, the elected official can have 
the item agendized for Milpitas City Council pre-approval. 

 

3



J.lfEilfORANDUM 
Departmentofthe City Attorney 

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Michael Ogaz, City Attorney /It£. J. 
Subject: Officeholder Accounts 

Date: October 29,2007 

Question: Council Person Armando Gomez has asked whether an elected 
official can maintain an officeholder account and, if allowed, has inquired 
about the laws regulating them. 

Summary Answer: An elected official of a local entity such as the City of 
Milpitas can maintain one campaign contribution account. No separate 
officeholder account is permitted. Funds within the campaign account are 
held in trust for election expenses or for certain expenses of holding office. 
The general categories of allowable office expenditures made from a 
campaign account are expenses incurred for political, legislative, or 
governmental purposes. The rules and regulations governing 
contributions, including those regulating reporting, disclosure, and 
contribution limits apply to the one permissible campaign account; the 
ordinances of the City of Milpitas limiting contributions and requiring 
disclosures apply. In order to properly evaluate whether a proposed 
expenditure from a legal campaign account meets the allowable 
officeholder categories set out in the statutes, it is necessary to know the 
proposed expenditure. Depending upon the complexity and/ or ambiguity 
of the proposed specific expenditure, it may be necessary to discuss the 
matter with the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) staff. 

Discussion: The Political Reform Act of the California Government Code 
regulates the right of a local elected official to maintain campaign and other 
accounts. Unlike the right of an elected State officer to maintain an 
"officeholder account" (Government Code Section 85316(b), FPPC 
Regulation 18531.62), there is no authority within the statute for a local 



official to maintain a so-calied officeholder account. There is authority, 
however, for a local official to maintain one campaign account. 
Government Code Section 85201. Funds within the campaign account are 
held "in trust for expenses associated with the election .. or for expenses 
associated with holding office." Government Code Section 89510(b). 

The Political Reform Act also sets forth a statutory scheme that specifies 
the use that an elected official can make of the campaign account. 
(Government Code Sections 89510-89522. See also FPPC Regulations 
18524, 18525.) Campaign expenses expressly include the following: 
"payments for fundraising and campaign strategy ... "; "payments for mass 
mailings, political advertising ... "; payments for services and actual 
expenses of political consultants ... "; vehicle expenses; property leases; etc. 
(See FPPC Regulation 18525; Government Code Sections 89516-89522.) 
Government Code Sections 89513-89522 also expressly limit the use of 
campaign funds for matters such as travel and travel accommodations, for 
payment of fines and penalties, for clothing, for entertainment tickets, etc. 
The above listing of permitted and prohibited/limited uses for catnpaign 
funds is not intended to be a complete list but acts only to illustrate some 
of those expenditures addressed by the statutes and regulations. 

Allowable expenditures by a local elected .official from the campaign 
account expressly include the following categories of expenses: "An 
expenditure associated with holding office is within the lawful execution of 
the trust imposed .. .if it is reasonably related to a legislative or 
governmental purpose. Expenditures which confer a substantial personal 
benefit shall be directly related to a political, legislative, or governmental 
purpose." Governmeilt Code Section 89512, underlining added. The 
application of the concepts "political, legislative, and governmental purpose 
are left generally undefined, anticipating no doubt that the unlimited 
myriad of proposed expenditures will be analyzed on a case-by-case basis 
for compliance with the designated general purposes. 

A recent 2007 advice letter from the FPPC does give certain insight into 
how the FPPC analyzes the validity of officeholder expenditures. The 
advice letter (A-07-122, August 15, 2007, David Bauer) concerned 
expenditures by Bill Leonard, a member of the State Board of Equalization. 
Mr. Leonard had expenses for his cell phone, a website to communicate 
with his constituency, and certain computer supplies associated with a 
periodic electronic newsletter. The FPPC applied what it called a two-tiered 
approach to deciding the validity of the expenditures. It first evaluated 
whether the expenditures were associated with holding office and 
reasonably related to a political, legislative, or governmental purpose. As 
step two of its analysis, it then evaluated whether the expenditures were 
allowable within the personal use provisions of the Government Code. If 
the expenditure provided a personal benefit to the officeholder or family, it 

2 



must be directly-not merely reasonably-related to a political, legislative, 
or governmental purpose. Thus, a personal benefit expenditure is 
burdened with a higher, more restrictive test. The FPPC concluded that 
the phone, website, and supplies expenditures met both tests and thus 
were ok. 

At this point I note that no specific expenditures have been referred to. I 
will await further inquiry if it is desired that a specific proposed 
expenditure be reviewed and analyzed. 

Given that the officeholder account about which inquiry was made is really 
a campaign account at the local government level, the rules for filing 
reports that are applicable to campaign accounts will apply. 

The Open Government Ordinance of the City of Milpitas is applicable to 
limit contributions to a campaign account (whether the contribution is 
used for campaign or office expenses) a..'"1d to require disclosure. 
Specifically, Municipal Code Title 1, Chapter 210 "Regulation of Campaign 
Contributions" limits contributions to $350.00 per election. Section 1-210-

·5.10 also requires disclosure of any contribution over $100.00. 

In preparing this memorandum telephone consultation was had with the 
Technical Advisory staff of the FPPCwho confirmed the conclusions that 
are provided above concerning the prohibition on a local elected official 
maintaining a separate officeholder account and the limited general uses 
for campaign funds. 

I hope this information is helpful to you. Please contact nIt if you should 
have any questions or wish to discuss. 

Michael J. Ogaz 
City Attorney 
City of Milpitas 
408-586-3040 

cc: Tom Williams, City Manager 

3 



Date Event Amount Reason
1/27/2005 Milpitas Chamber Breakfast 10.00 No receipt ‐ paid cash
2/24/2005 Milpitas Chamber Breakfast 10.00 Nor receipt ‐ paid cash
3/12/2005 Knights of Columbus Dinner 20.00 No receipt ‐ paid cash
6/2/2005 Human Relations Awards Breakfast 25.00 Reimbursed $50 and fair market value $25

10/19/2005 CEWAER Convention/San Diego 858.46
Unrelated to city business ‐ sessions on running for office, 
campaigning, etc.

10/21/2005 SJ Airport Parking for CEWAER 42.00 Reimbursed based on unrelated convention
4/7/2006 Silicon Valley Crime Stoppers 50.00 Submitted same check for reimbursement on 7/3/2006

8/9/2006 CEWAER Convention/Sacramento 577.35
Unrelated to city business ‐ sessions on planning a campaign, how to 
ask for money, etc.

4/20/2007 City Year, San Jose 150.00
Contribution ‐ separate ticket purchase for Silicon Valley's Starry 
Starry Night

10/26/2007 Retirement Dinner ‐ Don Hall 35.00 No receipt ‐ paid cash
6/26/2008 SCC Association of Realtors 15.00 2008 Membership Appreciation BBQ
3/29/2009 Medici Masked Ball 85.00 Italy Sister County Commission ‐ total $175 ‐ $85 tax deductible

5/8/2009 Milpitas Chamber/Piercey Toyota Hole In One 150.00 Entry Fee/Greens Fee
3/12/2010 Milpitas/Ayer High School Hall of Fame Dinner 10.00 Reimbursed $45 and this amount was scholarship donation
3/14/2011 Milpitas/Ayer High School Hall of Fame Dinner 10.00 Reimbursed $50 and this amount was scholarship donation
4/1/2011 Milpitas Chamber Golf Tournament 150.00 Unrelated to city business

10/27/2011 Women as Role Models Event 20.00 Honorees did not have to pay to be honored
Subtotal to be reimbursed $2,217.81

11/17/2010 San Jose State Tuition 1,797.00 Paid 6‐21‐2011
2/1/2011 San Jose State Tuition 5,250.00 For 2006 through 2009

12/8/2011 San Jose State Tuition 2,094.00 Paid 1‐4‐2012
6/19/2012 San Jose State Tuition 2,277.00

Subtotal to be reimbursed $11,418.00

Total Reimbursement Requested $13,635.81



Milpitas Complaints
Received by BAAQMD From l2ll/20 t

Con¡ol¿int#

2 li t98

2t3226
2 r 3228

2r323r
I I 3210

2 Ll2:l(r
2 t-'ì2ó5

2 I i295
2t3296
2 l 3332

2 l 3338

2 r 3339

2 r i358
2 133(¡ I

Total:

Rcccivcd Occur.c¡l

l2t3l12 19:l(¡ l2l3/12 l9:15

l2/7tt2 1239 t2l7ll2 l2:t0
t2t7tl2 1431 tZlTll2 t1.25

l2/7112 17:ll l2/7112 17:05

l2ltlil2 l6:01 l2l7/12 l5:00

l2llrJl12 ló:.1 l2il0l12 l(r:-15

l2llll12 2l 4 l2ll l/12 2l:00
l2ll7ll2 l9:0 l2ll7ll2 l9:O0

12/l7ll2 l9:l l2117l12 l5:00

t2/251t2 9:ii l2l25lt2 2:00

12126l12 l6: I 12i26/12 Ió:08

l2l27ll2 ll:4 12127/12 ll:30
t2/30112 l2:0, l2130/12 ll:30
t2/3tt12 l3:4 12/3 1/12 l3:00

t4

to 12/31/2012

Allcged Sourcc

BFI - The Recyclery

BFI -'l'he Rccyclery

UFI -'l'he fìccyclery

BIjl -'f'he Rec¡,clery

BIjl -'fhc lìccyclcr¡'

NONt:
llFl - -l'he 

Rcc_n"clery

llFI -'fhe Rcc¡,clcry-

BFI - Thc Rccyclery

Utjl -'l'hr: Rcc.u-clcry

BFI - The Rccyclery

BFI - The Rccyclery

Bl:l - ]'he lìcc.n..clery

llFl -'lhc lìecyclery

Descr¡ption

bad garbagc

conìposting

garbage

garbagc

conìpost

bad odor
grce¡ìwas¡e

rotten garbage

rottc¡r ¡r¿rsh

garbage

rotten

garbage

fbod rvaste

I'ood rvaste

Gcncral Location

2OO SEASIDE DR

2OO SEASIDE DR

IOO BEALJMERE W^Y
2OOO SKYLINE DR

2 t00 Acr.Jll-.AR c]'
IOO BEAUMERE WAY
2r00 coNw,^Y sl'
2OO SUMMERWIND D¡ì

2OOO SKYLINE DR

2OO BAYBERRY COMMON

IOO BEAUMERIi WAY
IOO I]EAUMERE WAY
2 r00 coNwAY s'f
2 t00 coNwAY sl'

St¡rtus

LJnconfirntcd

Uncontìnncd

Unconlirnred

IJncontilnletl

tJnconfirnrctl

tJ¡rconlirnrcd

Unconlìrnrcd

Uncontìrnlcd

Unconlìrmed

U¡¡conlìr¡rrcd

Pcnding

Pending

Unconlìrnrcd

IJnconfirnrcd

i\ttr¡buted
S¡tc# lìcl'crr¿¡l (.bnt¡ncDts

12/20t3

*5~[I -"E[ 
.'-' 
;; 

" 



0
1

 

2 

.-c:: 
0.'-:-o 
8

2
 

0
0

 
u

<
 < 

I'J
)C

Q
 

c:: 
.... • -

v 
0..;: 
-.-

G
 

~
 

<
 

;5~-';::::'/: 

.£ 
~/ 

~/ 
<

 

<
 

~ 
..>. 

-
-

,g 
g ~ ~ 

~
2
i
~
~
,
~
~
/
 

--: 
--: 

/
.
 

,
I
 

1
'1

 

~
 

I 
1

'1
 

.:.r 
.:.;. 

('I 
,-I 

,-,I 

? 
'2 :g :; c' 

i' 
-:::1 

,
~
.
 

'-, 
,
~
.
 

(
'I 

1'·1 
r 

I 
"
I
 

,., 
t-

o 0
1

 

'" 



,AAQMD Odor Complaint Locations (November 19,2012 - January 21, 2013) - Google Maps Page I of3 

le I Get Google Maps on your phol 
Text the word "GMAPS" to 46645 

BAAQMD Odor Complaint Locations (November 19, 2012 - January 21, 2013) 
Unlisted" 0 views 
Created on Jan 18 . By . Updated < 1 minute ago 

tps:l/maps.google.com!maps/ms?msid=200777077739779256766.0004d397706e8df57c60f&msa=0&hl=... 1/22/2013 



*6Clerk.s Office. 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
PLANNING COMMISSION APPLICATIOf:t E el:.I V 

NOTE: Milpitas Municipal Code, Title I Chapler 500, requires "al all times during the term of office, a Planning Commissioner shall be a 
registered voter of the City of Milpitas and a resident of the City of Milpitas," Also, all applicants are required to complete a 
SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE in addition to this application form. 

PLEASE PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMATION (in black ink) 

Demetress M. Morris 
Nama: --'F~irs=-t --- Middle Last 

1567 Pinewood Way, 
Address: Number Street Apt # 

(408) 935 -8074 Demetress 1 @aol.com 
Telephone Number(s) e-mail address 

Are you a registered voter in the City of Milpilas? __ Y-,-"es,,-_ How long have you lived in Milpitas? 10 Years 

Non Profit Flame Keeper's (408) 849-0074 
Present Employer Business Telephone 

1285 Escuela ,-P-=ac.:rkw=a".Y_-,M=ilp:::it:.:a"s-=Cc-A.::., _9",5",0:.:3c:5-=C:.:o",m-=m.::.u=n.::.ity:<J:.:E"d:.:u"ca",tio,,' :cn:::a.::.1 A-.::cti='v-=is-=t --===e-::--------
Addres. Occupation 

Education: 

College, Professional, Vocafional, or other schools attended Major Subject Date Degree 

Heald College Computer Technology 2000 AS 

Ohlone College Health Science 2007 AA 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be allached): 

o ate N ameo fO rganlZatlon Olli / M be leer em r 

2005 Milpitas School Site Council Chair/Co-chair! Member 

2006 NAACP Executive Boardl Member 

2008 Milpitas Caucus PresidenVMember 

2009 Milpitas Executive Lion Club Public relations/Tail Twister 

Bnefly describe your personal qualifications that you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 

SChool SUe CO! lOCi! (SSG) Parent Teacher Association (PIA) Sffieriog Commjttee for crAG steering COmmjUee Em 8mllsed Mission Statement 

MHS, Community Board Advisory Council (CBAC) WASe Accreditation Committee, ESl Steering Community, Milpitas Foundation for Education 
(MFFE), Parents of Milpitas (POM) Special Ed. Students and Families, Yes on Measure B Committee, Employment Screen panel for MHS Principal, 
F"laliie K1::H§pei s, Siid lielped &StabflSlled 001 Latiiio liiiB1VeliliuiiS arid piOQlalilS at MH3, CUlleiitly workilig willi Asia]! COii1illUllity to establisli ail 
English competence and heritage awareness at Cal Hilts. Currently working on completing Bachelor of Science degree through San Francisco State 
University. My targeted date of completion for this program will be 2014. 

I have sufficient time to evote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that all tements contained in this application are true, 

Signature Date 

ApplicaUons not acted upon wjJl expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NQE;: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TlONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail or drop offyourcornpleted application to the Cily Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



PLANNING COMMISSION 
SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

(Please type or print responses on a separate paper[s] to the following 
questions) 

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Planning Commission? 

! am interested in serving my entire community in these very challenging times that we face as a society. It is my desire to steer us into a 

sustainable and profitable future one that maintains our quality of life while ensuring our long term success. The city's future growth and 

development will be critical to my interest. 

2. Describe your understanding of how the City's General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Planning procedures affect 
the development of the community. 

A planning commission is a group of appOinted officials which oversees city planning these officials are charged with contrOlling growth, promoting 

economic health, and improving the quality of life for all citizens. The commission meets on a regular basis to consider issues of interest, including 

permit applications, These meetings are usually open to the public, and public comment on city planning issues is encouraged. Milpitas planning 

commission works with architect and developers to ensure city permit compliance, while also providing oversight for city's zoning and subdivision 

ordinance. 

3. In what way will your personal or work experience contribute to your role as a Planning CommiSSioner? 

My personal and work experience will bring a diverse look at our every expanding city, This can be done through my effective 

communication skills and public relations interaction within the community. I am interested in becoming a commissioner to be apart of a 

proactive team helping to shape the future of this community, and our young people's to assist in policy making that allows Milpitas to set 

the standards for others in our distriCt. 

4. What do you feel are the most pressing planning problems or issues in Milpitas? 
How do you think they should best be resolved? 

I feel our most pressing problem is the financial resources to support our growing city, while maintaining the level of services and growth 

needed to be competitive in today's technical world, I would set prosperity to deal with these pressing issues and solicit the support of our 

local citizens to reach a collective goal. Also, Milpitas will need to continual work to maintain the balance between growth of residential units 

and the job market to sustain our community. 

5. Do you have a long-term vision of how you think the City shOuld develop? 
I like for us to hold fast to the things that have set apart as a city traditionally; such as our diversity, annual events, and schools, In addition to 

us recognizing that we must move fotward with 21st centaury development through the use of the technology development. We are Silicon 

Valley and should be represented as such through out our great nation. 

6. A majOr planning problem facing the entire Bay Area is the shortage of affordable housing. Do you have any 
thoughts on how the City should address this issue? 

I feel that the city of Milpitas has done a great job in making affordable housing, I would continue to support the policy in place now 

regarding this issuR When a developer comes into build they must continue to set aside a certain number of below market homes and/or 

units for those who qualify. Jobs and/or work balance must be a focus as we look for expanded economic development opportunities for an 

employment market that supports population increase 

7. What do you see as the different roles of City staff, the Planning CommiSSion, and the City Council? 

Milpitas city staffs are department heads hired by the clty manager. The planning commiSSioners are volunteers appOinted by the Mayor of 

our city. The city council sets policy for the city, and are elected by voters, For Le, the planning commissioner does the following; 

neighborhood and specific area plans; Environmental impact reports and negative declarations; tentative subdivision maps; Planned 

Development permit applications for developments; subdivision ordinance exceptions; zoning and subdivision ordinance amendments 

special studies and reports. 

8. What do you believe should be the focus of the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency and program? 
The redevelopment agency should use our revenues in an efficient and effective matter to increase the city's appeal to outside 

business and families. We as a city should continue to seek creative alternatives to pay down any remaining RDA debt in the near 

future, 



CITY OF MILPITAS, 
PLANNING COMMISSION APPLICATION11J

'y j 

NOTE: Milpitas Municipal Code, Title I Chapter 500, requires "at all times during the term of~ce, a Plannin
8
g Commissioner shall be a 

registered voter of the City of Milpitas and a resident of the City of Milpitas." Also, all applicants are required to complete a 
SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE in addition to this application form. 

PLEASE PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMATION (in black ink) 

Name: First Middle 

Address: Number f Street 

!;I()" ~·11-6().st (e) r(el' :2Y:1·-ot':!/4rcj 
Telephone Number(s) 

Are you a registered voter in the City of Milpitas? ~.:s 

Last 

Apt. # 

:;:ferJec..t41'?(!.Yto~, e.~ 
e-mail address 

How long have you lived in Milpitas? ~ '/ftc·S 

Present Employer 
R6t\-i.. iSrrArf:: 570, -,).. 'I-9- 681--'1= 

Business Telephone I 

1/3¢30 MI5~/utJBO/{) ff"(7,;)..Ol) ,R:iZJ-liKlltJT el4 6NS;:Jj 
Address 

Education: 

Date De ree 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached): 

D ate N fO tfOamzatlon ameo Offi 1M b lcer em er 

1;7(0)--~c.1 V...P f' ~., IE;; C.::.zItetJ~ !e. t'? 't)IIl'.z.rr,,""_ 

Briefly describe your personal qualifications that you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 

At,· -'7' 

v 
Applications not acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

J!!QIE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICATIONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail or drop off your completed application to the City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



PLANNING COMMISSION SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Planning Commission? 

The desire to continuing my service on the Planning Commission is to be an active 
participant in the decision making process affecting the growth of our city and to be 
engaged in the process making the City of Milpitas a better place to live not only for the 
current residents but also an attractive dynamic place to those future residents and 
businesses. 

2. Describe your understanding of how the City's General Plan, zoning Ordinance, and 
Planning procedures affect the development of the community. 

General Plan serves the master plan for land use for the city's long range land use and 
road map at its growth direction and path. Zoning Ordinance serves as the more 
detailed road map providing the more specific definitions of the General Plan vision and 
intent. Planning procedures offers the ways and means by which the vision and intent 
are translated to concrete steps for project level implementation. 

3. In what way will your personal or work experience contribute to your role as a 
Planning Commissioner? 

I believe my educational background in architecture and professional career in 
commercial real estate and development together with a depth of understanding of 
Milpitas provide me the unique understanding and perspective in the role of Planning 
Commissioner to properly affect the growth and progress of the city we love. I feel in 
my current term as Planning Commissioner I have effectively served in my role and 
offered in these areas in positive and engaging manner. 

4. What do you feel are the most pressing planning problems or issues in Milpitas? How 
do think they should best be resolved? 

I believe in the current phase of growth and economic vitality restoration the issues are: 
the implementation of the Transit Area Specific Plan and Town Center area land use and 
the integrity of that vision and the balance of growth to the neighboring 
commercial/R&D/industrial uses. The growth will interface on the edges and 
boundaries of the zones. How we can skillfully and artfully work through and balance 
the growth of both dynamics will be a challenge not only for the Planning Commission 
but also for the capable staff and City Council. The City of Milpitas is going through this 
transitioning process at this juncture. I feel my understanding of design and planning 
along with sensitivity to the market place and understanding ofthe economics ofthe 
development sector enable me to better tackle these challenges. 



5. Do you have a long term vision of how you think the City should develop? 

I believe the City of Milpitas needs to preserve its core industrial base in geographical 
areas sensible. I believe we should encourage the existing industrial/R&D core area to 
redevelop with better utilization of the land, its adjacency to and use of mass transit, 
and bring the buildings and infrastructure to standards suitable for the coming cycles. 
We should also be mindful of creating environment suitable for other retail 
opportunities to accommodate the regional growth from the technology sector, the 
4gers Santa Clara Stadium project and long term retooling of the existing retails. 

6. A major planning problem facing the entire Bay Area is the shortage of affordable 
housing. Do you have any thoughts on how the city should address this issue? 

The fundamental conundrum of affordable housing lies in big part to the high land 
prices of the local region. This is an acute problem. Solution is not singular to provide 
them in the new housing development only. Buyers ofthe BMR units are facing little 
incentive to sell these units as the market increases in pricing is capped via the program. 
Solution is multi faceted and one part the city may affect, without the economic 
influence, the re-designation of certain parcels where currently of not the highest and 
best use but through the process provide land owner the increased incentive of higher 
land base due to better use of land. These parcels will be redeveloped with partnership 
in the non-profit sector to build and construct the new units. There is no perfect 
solution but an aggregate of different solutions will provide added units to the growing 
needs as we forecast increased population base. 

7. What do you see as the different roles of the city staff, the Planning Commission and 
the City Council? 

City council is the elected and decision making body which has the ultimate approval 
rights on all policy matters, set new policies and to appoint/affirm appointments related 
to the city. Planning Commission is the advisory body which specifically provides under 
the rules set forth and within the framework of the city to make those 
recommendations to City Councilor directly effectuate the approval of items which do 
not otherwise requiring council approval on planning related items. City staff is the 
professional body providing the technical know-how on operating the city, 
implementing policies, recommend for the elected and appointed to take certain 
actions. 

8. What do you believe should be the focus of the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency and 
program? 

With the RDA disbanded by the Governor, I do not believe there are any active 
programs and objectives to be considered at this time. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION 12 

f)i . .' (b r;:: r~~ IV E D 
! IOI?njjatb t_","-"'J~)vY'-" 

PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMA TlON (in black ink) COMMI N APPLYING FOR + 
D Mr. 

~Mrs./MS. \/ JT1\J J-A:·rJ T, 
Name: First Middle Last 

Address: Number Street (apt. # if needed), Milpitas CA 95035 

Telephone Number(s) 
J c/iv.l VVn-/-n~~ ~ ~1 I. U'rn 

a-mal address 

Present Employer Business Telephone 

A dress "lA. ::LSb Occupation 

Education: If Youth Advisory c~mission applicant, indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

Collene, Professional, Vocational, or other schools attended Maior Subiect Date DeQree 

~~\J·'e<"b",.'1h<-AjV1C/ji~ J its, ~l.. y" ~U~~~L a/ (?Ix ,'"":l, )?;,. ~~ 
-"'iJ I 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached). If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

",p"-""'""""'t'"" 
Officer / Member) 

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TlONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail, fax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelle@ci.milpitas.ca.gov) or drop off your completed application to 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

J:\Online and other Forms\Commission Application_Dec 2009.doc 12/07/2009 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



L ,,; 'I'} 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
R CclVED 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

Please type or print responses to the following questions. Additional sheets may be attached. 
Submit responses with Application form to: City Clerk, Milpitas City Hall, 455 E Calaveras 
Blvd., Milpitas CA 95035. 

1. Why are you interested iu serviug on the Planning Commission? 

I have a longstanding interest in caring about the city where I live and work and would like to 
better nnderstand how it is shaped in term of development, land use, circulation, environment, 
noise, safety, school, housing and any other elements that make my Milpitas a best place to live 
and strive. 

The Planning Commission is one ofthe most important Commission where any citizen can 
participate in order to improve his or her own healthy living environment as well as create a 
better place for other residents, by contributing his or her time, skills and effort to learn the 
process, to make amendments and to improve the standard of development and proper usage of 
our limited land and natural resources thereby improving the quality of life for all. 

I believe that my experiences as former real estate agent, as board's member of the Dorchester 
Historical Society (in Boston, Massachusetts), 8 years working with the Mayor's office of 
Neighborhood Services assisting constituents in various issues and concerns from Housing and 
City Plarming, Education, Public Safety, Employment & Training, Economic Development to 
Health Care; and as a homeowner who had just went through the whole process of working with 
the architect, the developer and the Milpitas "permit" department when remodeling her own 
horne in the city of Milpitas, will contribute much to the PC team, not only with a consumer' 
eyes, but also an advocate for better planning and development that benefits all segments of our 
city. 

2. Describe your understanding of how the City's General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and 
planning procedures affecting the development of the community. 

-City's General Plan is required by state law, as stated in the Milpitas General Plan: "State Law 
requires each California City and County to prepare a general plan. A general plan is defined as 
a comprehensive, long -term general plan for the physical development of the county or city, and 
any land outside its boundaries which in the planning agency's judgment bears relation to its 
planning". The plan provides the basis for all of the City's regulations, policies and programs 
that relate to issues addressed in the Plan, which includes elements such as Land use, 
Circulation, Open Space & Environmental Conservation, Seismic and Safety, Noise and 
Housing. 

- The Zoning Ordinance "is one ofthe most important tools for implementing the General Plan". 
It regulates present development through specific standards (i.e. lot size, building setbacks, and 
a list of allowable uses). 

1 



- Planning procedures affecting the development of the community: Although state law 
establishes a framework for local planning procedures, however, cities and counties usually 
adopt their own unique responses to the issues/ the needs ofthe community they face, and the 
state seldom involves in local land use and development decisions, these have been delegated to 
the City Councils and Boards of Supervisors of individual cities & counties. My prior 
experience in City Planning showed that the planning process usually as the following elements: 

To effectively meet community needs, Commission committee members must: 

Involve community early in decision- making regarding zoning, city codes etc ... 
(Neighborhood Associations meetings, public notices etc.) 

Organize a well-represented, well ran hearing process 
Have a thorough command of the city's Planning Codes & Ordinance 
Review (City staff, The Planning Commission & City Council's Approval). 

3. In what way will yonr personal or work experience contribute to your role as a Planning 
Commissioner? 

My experience in city planning of Boston's Office of Neighborhoods Services was that of a 
citywhich is more than 10 times the size of Milpitas, thus I am familiar with complex issues at a 
major US city. I will be an asset to the Milpitas Planning Commission with my personal and 
work experience that accumulated over much of my adult life as a strong community advocate, 
skills community organizer and as the Vietnamese Liaison to Mayor Raymond Flynn in the 
Mayor's Office of Neighborhoods Services (MONS) in the city of Boston (Massachusetts) for 
more than 8 years, including serving as Commissioner for the Boston Employment Commission, 
as Finance and Administration Manger for the Vietnamese American Initiative for Development 
(Viet-AID), a community development agency with focus on building affordable housing and 
economic development for Dorchester neighborhoods in the city of Boston. I have attended 
numerous neighborhoods meeting on housing and small business issues in working with city 
government on planning, zoning and building various projects from housing to businesses to 
industries. 

I was also a real estate agent for more than 5 years and have been working in community and 
social services for more than 3 decades. 

4. What do you feel are the most pressing planning problems or issues in Milpitas? How do 
you think they should best be resolved? 

Milpitas' plarming problems and issues are similar to other local cities in the Bay Area. They 
include the following: 

The need to increase revenue, create jobs and jobs growth for Milpitas- not enough 
business and jobs as it is now (economic development) 
The challenge of balancing the city's budget and city services, including some 
outsourcing issues. 
Land scarcity and affordable housing 

From outside looking in, the possible ways to resolve are as follow: 

2 



There may need to be better communication, team work and relationship between the 
City Government (the Mayor & the City Council and various City Department sand 
Services), the School Board (Milpitas Unified School District) and the Private Sectors, 
staring with the Chamber of Commerce, Big Corporations/ Industries, as well as Small 
Businesses sector and its residents (well infonn through various city's network, i.e. web 
page. E-news etc.). 

5. Do you have a long-term vision of how you think the City should develop? 

As mentioned above, any long-tenn vision for the city of Milpitas's development must 
incorporate a better communication, team work and relationship between the City Government 
(the Mayor & the City Council and various City Department s and Services), the School Board 
(Milpitas Unified School District) and the Private Sectors, staring with the Chamber of 
Commerce, Big Corporations/ Industries, as well as SmallBusinesses sector and its residents 
(well infonn through various city's network, i.e. web page. E-news etc.). Milpitas must: 

I) Balance budget. This is the most important challenge year-in, year-out. 
2) Encourage and attract new small business, corporations, developers with better policies 

and requirements- cut down the red tape! 
3) The City should already have an assessment ofthe businesses and residents needs for 

Milpitas on the short tenn and long tenn needs. 
4) Create revenues and jobs to the city by creating areas such as "Santana Row": beautiful 

design, compact, upscale and safe for entertainments, shop and recreations. 
5) Better Storefront projects for current businesses in many neighborhoods. 
6) Better "beautification" proj ects in many neighborhoods. 
7) Effective neighborhood watch- public safety. 
8) Better transportation system- need research, survey etc. 
9) Create "tourist attractions" and special annual event(s) as city's signature event(s) for its 

residents and its neighboring areas. 
10) Build affordable housing 
II) Address schools needs, schools safety and schools expansions (Building more 

schools to address the increase of its population's demand. 
12) Relocate current "landfills' area out of Milpitas! (I don't know what kind of jobs 

creations it provides, but the bad smell of the landfills do impact the health and well 
being of Milpitas's residents, as well as the housing prices in the city) 

6. A major planning problem facing the entire Bay Area is the shortage of affordable 
housing. Do you have any thoughts on how the City should address this issue? 

Affordable Housing issue is often an major problem facing many major cities and counties in the 
U.S., not just Milpitas, although, our affordable housing here is more unique in the sense that the 
land in Milpitas and other vicinities are considered to be more expensive compares to many other 
places due to high demand in housing and shortage in land available for building affordable 
housing units. Some of my thoughts on this issue are: 

1. Create Public and Private sectors to fonn Coalition(s) on Affordable Housing for Milpitas 
to address the ongoing needs of building affordable housing 

3 



2. Encourage the development of nice (beautiful), safe, and affordable housing units in 
neighborhoods that is not already dense with high-rises. May develop studio and single 
condos or rental units for individual workers who don't need large space. The same is 
true for seniors and retired persons who no longer need big spaces. 

3. May develop "two -family" home or "triple-deckers" as in the Northeast, where first time 
horne buyer can live in I unit and rent out the others to help meet the high cost of housing 
and land scarcity in Milpitas/San Jose city. 

4. Allow mix-used unit where a small business owner can do business on the first floor and 
live on the second floor ifhe or she choose to. 

5. Create a model of "Co-op" housing to encourage affordable horne ownership where the 
"future horne owners" need to work/contribute their own labor to the construction or 
remodel/ renovation of the homes. 

6. The use of quality re-fabricated housing (better than many existing mobile homes). 
7. Creative financing package for "multi generational family" - a long term mortgage plan 

that spreads over 30years up to 50 or more years for both parents and children. 
8. "Matching -fund" for employees/ workers to save forward down payment on their future 

home/ or rental unit. (Create only for this purpose) like College funds. 

7. What do you see as the different roles of City staff, the Planning Commission, and the 
City Council? 

-City Staff must continue to effectively prepare the Annual Report (as required by the 
Government Code) to be submitted for review to the Planning Commission. (Each year on 
October 1) and The Five -Year Review report: "A report summarizing City Staff's findings and 
recommendations will be circulated for public comment and then presented to the Planning 
Commission". They must also administratively provide the Planning Commission members with 
all the supportive facts & figures as needed in order to effectively identify the issues and 
resolution planning. 

- Planning Commissiou 
The Planning Commission role is to review the Annual Report and after review the Annual 
Report will make recommendations and send to the City Council. The commission's duties 
include hearing proposals to amend the general plan or rezone land, initiating plarming studies 
(road alignments, identification of seismic hazards, etc.), and taking action on proposed 
subdivisions. The PI arming Commission and the city Council will also hear public comments on 
the Annual Report at a duly public hearing. In addition, the Planning Commission will review 
the report on the five-year review and make recommendation to the City Council. 

-The City Council 
The City Council is responsible for enacting ordinances, imposing taxes, making appropriations, 
establishing policy, and hiring some city officials. The council adopts the local general plan, 
zoning, and subdivision ordinance. 

SUBMITTED BY V AN LAN TRUONG 

4 



VAN LAN TRUONG 
1327 Cirolero St. 

Milpitas, CA 95035 
Phone: (408) 990- 5345 

Email: vanlantruong@gmail.com 

SUMMARY 
Seasoned operative in community grass-root organizing and social services. Extensive 
experience in community outreach, advocacy, promotion of health education and other 
community issues. Organized education workshop for community wide campaigns. Interactions 
with medically underserved minority groups. Strong connection with the Vietnamese community 
in the San Jose area. Energetic, positive, strong organizational skills, unique ability to multitask, 
flexible schedule. 

EXPERIENCE 

COMMUNITY HEALTH PARTNERSmp, San Jose, CA 
Subcontractor- Patient Navigator, 2011- Present 

Conduct community outreach and recruitment for breast and cervical health education 
workshops. Register and provide health education to medically underserved/uninsured 
Vietnamese women living in the Santa Clara and San Mateo Counties. Gather and organize all 
health education material for health education workshops, community outreach, and community 
activities. Lead, facilitate and deliver health education workshops. Assist health education 
workshop participants with navigation through health care systems to accomplish routine breast 
and cervical screening. Coordinate logistics for patient health care adherence- follow- ups, 
reminder phone calls, reminder letters, assist with translation, identify barriers and challenges. 
Attend all trainings, meetings, and breast/cervical health education workshops. Administer and 
maintain health education tools, records and logs. Document patient encounters. 

CLOSE TO HOME, Boston, MA 
Community Organizer-Vietnamese Community Liaison, 2007- 2011 

Develop and implement a plan to engage community members to respond to and prevent 
domestic violence in their neighborhood. Build relationships with individuals and organizations, 
organize and provide workshops, recruit community members into activities, maintain a public 
awareness campaign, maintain relationships with local organizations, and assist in the creation of 
educational materials and assist with general office activities. 

BOSTON PUBLIC HEALTH COMMISSION, Boston, MA 
Subcontractor, 2008-2009 

Develop and implement a plan to assist the Tobacco Control Program- Community Smoking 
Demonstration Intervention Project to engage and educate the Vietnamese parents and children 
on the danger of Enviromnental Tobacco Smoke poses to children. Provide community outreach 

rcurrie
Redacted 411



plan, identify, scheduling, coordinating, creating education materials in Vietnamese, conducting 
and setting up resources and educational tables and campaign to various Vietnamese community 
events and organizations, including Boston Public Schools that have concentration of 
Vietnamese students. 

VIETNAMESE AMERICAN INITIATIVE FOR DEVELOPMENT, Boston, MA 
Finance & Administration Manager, 2006- 2008 

Oversee all financial management functions, such as accounting policies and procedures, 
organizational and grants proposal budget development, banking, annual audits and assets. 
Ensure accurate financial reporting, account payable, employee payroll and benefits. Manage 
human resource functions, including development and administration of personnel policies, 
employee benefits and professional training. Supervise the MIS and Database Administrator to 
ensure the quality of organization-wide networks and databases. Oversee office management and 
administration, including supervising the office manager. 

HOUSTON NEUROMUSCULAR MEDICAL PAIN CLINIC, Houston, TX 
Office Manager, 1993-2001 

Manage full and part-time staffs, care of patients and health education. Manage all aspects of 
billing and payroll. Control, order medical supply and office inventory. Public relation and 
marketing. 

MAYOR'S OFFICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES, BOSTON CITY HALL, Boston, 
MA 
Vietnamese Liaison, 1987-1993 

Serve as a link between city government and the Vietnamese community of Boston to expend 
and strengthen services and resources available to newcomers, and to bridge the gap of language 
and cultural barriers. Advocate within city government for the Vietnamese Community, outside 
agencies, and the general public for various policies and community needs. Community grass
root organizing and outreach. 

EDUCATION 

University of Massachusetts, Amherst, 1982 
Degree: B.A. Economics 

COMMUNITY SERVICE 
Boston, MA 
2004- 2011 Vietnamese American Women's League ofMassachusetls- President 
2007 - 20 I 0 Dorchester Historical Society- Board Member 
2007- 2011 Vietnamese American Small Business Inc., Board Member 
2008- Present National Congress of Vietnamese American- Board President 

Houston, TX 



1999- 2001 
1998 

1997-2000 

1997- 2001 
1997- 1998 
1995- 1998 
1993- 1998 
1993- 1996 

Boston,MA: 
1992- 1993 
1991- 1993 
1990- 1993 

1990- 1992 

1990- 1991 

1989- 1996 
1989- 1993 

The Refugee Services Alliance- Board 
Vietnamese Community Alliance, 
Mayor Lee Brown Summer Youth Program- Volunteer 
Surmyside Asian African American Task Force- Member 
Asian American Police Officer ofthe Year- Vice President 
Asian American Heritage Association- Board 
National Congress of Vietnamese American- Board President 
Asian American Health Coalition- Member 
The Asia Society- Board 
Vietnamese American Community in Houston and Vicinity- Member 
United Way of Gulf Coast Texas- Project Blue Print Class 11- Volunteer 

Asian American Unity Dinner- Chairperson 
Boston Employment Commission-Member 
Mayor's Youth Leadership Corps-Trustee 
Asian American Forum- Board 
National Institute of Women of Color- Board 
Women's State-Wide Legislature Network- Board 
Vietnamese Community in Massachusetts-Member 
Refugee and Immigrant Women's Network- Board 
Dorchester Task Force- Chairperson 
Dorchester Asian Youth Services- Board 
National Association for Education and Advancement of Cambodian, Laotian and 

Vietnamese, Vice President 
Community Training and Assistance Center- Board 
Asian American Democratic Caucus- Board 
Vietnamese American Women's League of Massachusetts- Founder 
United Way of Massachusetts Bay, Community Organization- Board 
Citizen's Review Committee for Special Services and Allocation 

1988- 1991 Women's Educational Industrial Union- Member 
Multicultural Advisory Committee, Amelia Earhart Awards Selection Committee 

1987- 1989 American Cancer Society, William Price Unit- Board 
1987-· 1991 Vietnamese Parent Advisory Council- Advisor 
1986- Present National Congress of Vietnamese in America- Board 
1984-1993 Dien Hong F oundation- Vice President 

RECOGNITION 

1991 Community Change, Inc. - Drylongso Awards Recipient 
1990 Boston Jaycee- Ten Outstanding Youth Leaders Awards Recognition 
1989 City of Boston Master Parent Advisory Council- Recognition 
1988 Boston Women's Magazine- 100 Interesting Women for 1988 



*7CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION JAN 2 2 2013 

GJ1}~ 
PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMA T/ON (in black Ink) COMMISSION APPLYING FOR ... 

~. Mr. 

D MrsJMs. 

Name: Middle Last 

{.3 4- (" yY)! e-tplTf}-<; 9~3J-
Address: Number Street (apt. # if needed). Milpitas CA 95035 

40S ,. 202- ff2S" 
Telephone Number(s) 

Present Employer Business Telephone 

Address Occupation 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant. indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached). If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Date Name of Or anization or Branch of Milita 

Uu.s tNTIL. 
f 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 

WJK Cl.--/tl/ fYlR4'VtiuP-.. 6u/Jptnl(]... J).4//t tf/nJfl.4e.tJc.tt!W !~~ , , 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that al statements contained in applicati are true. 

7 I Date 

pointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one Year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TlONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail, fax (586-3030). e-mail (mlavelle@cLmilpitas.ca.gov)ordrop off your completed application to 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas. CA 95035 

C:\Documents and Setlings\tmeyercalvert.MILPITAS\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK63\Commission Application_Dec 2009.doc 12107/2009 

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

kynegas
Typewritten Text

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION JAN 9 2013 

~ 
Economic Development Commission Hotel Representative 

PROVIDE COMPLETE lNFORMA nON (in black ink) COMMISSION APPLYING FOR of' 

..r Mr. 

o MrsJMs./Miss 

Berkley Michael Howard 
First Middle 

1820 Barber Lane Milpitas, CA 95035 
Address":""""" .... : -·--N'"'u-m-b'e-r·--........ --------- '-Sire-e""'"t"'"(a-p't""'#"if"n-e-ed""'"ed"""") --.......:.c..c..:~Gity & ZipCod::;:e=--------

408-592-8921 
Telephone Number(s) 

Beverly Heritage Hotel 
Present Employer 

408-634-2969 Mbhoward01@yahoo.com 
.... _-............ e-mail address 

408-943-9080 
Business Telephone 

1820 Barber Lane, Milpitas, CA 95035 
Business Address 

Directorof Human Resources 
Occupation 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: ______________ _ 

p College, rofessional, Vocational, or other schools attended Major Subject Date Degree 

University of Phoenix Human Resources 2006 MBA 
SUNY College at Buffalo Hotel Management 1996 BS 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached). If application is for 
Veterans CommissiOn, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Date Name of Organization or Branch of Military Officer I Member 

2011 Rotary International, Milpitas Chapter Member 
2005 Northern California Human Resources Association Member 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an esset (additional information may be attached): 

As a seasoned Hotel Executive working in MHpitas, r have cultivated relationships with, and meet 
regularly, many other Hotel Executives in Milpitas and San Jose. I am able to look at situations from 
the perspective of Hotel and Restaurant owners and managers within Milpitas. 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibiltty and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to jill a future vacancy. 
hereby ce!:lify_th tements contained in this application are true. 

;;:::J ~ J ! 
-L- . I /q WI3 

j JData 

Appointm nts to ommissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence ofthe CitY Council. Applications not 
aeted upon will expire after one vear from the data SUbmitted unless renewed by the applicant, 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICATIONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 

Fax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelle@.cLmIiDilas.caaoy), mail or drop off your completed application to: 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 
, , 

\\miladsrv1\mhoward$\My Documems\Commission Appftcatlon_ Jan 2013 B_Michael Howard.doc 09/20/2011 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



City Clerk's CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION ocr - Ik ZUI2 

Eu)nQrni'<:.-R I;C~tX£D 
PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMATION (in black ink) COMMISSION APPLYING FOR + 
rtMr. 

o MrsJMs. 

Name: First Middle Last 

Address: Number Street (apt. # II needed), Milpitas CA 95035 

Telephone Number(s) e-mail address 

Present Employer Business Telephone 

Address Occupation 

Education: II Youth Advisory Commission applicant, Indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

C II o eQa, P f I V f ro esslona , ocalona oro th hit d d ersc aesaten e M S b' t ajor u:)lec D t ae D eQree 

;::'C'VI :"i 0 ;,(... Sh, \t,. \)I'l,v m;\\-v Cem'\l~(" ~~1<A <;i2dn. \',. S. 
I 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional Inlonmatlon may be attached). II application Is for 
Veterans Commission, Indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Date Name of Organization or Branch of Military Officer I Member 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional Infonmatlon may be attached): 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings If I am appOinted to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that all statements contained In this application are true. 

7 Signature Date 

AppOintments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant, 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TlONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail, lax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelle@cLmllpllas.ca.gov) or drop off your completed application to 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

C;\Oocuments and Settings\tmeyercalvert.MILPITAS\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Fi1es\OLK63\Commission Application_Dec 2009.doc 12/07/2009 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



D Mrs.lMs./Miss 

("1 ' 
~:-:, 0... ... 

·N.-:ac=m:-:ecc:-----~ First 

RECEIVED 

2:f4-S:} 
Address: Number 

G II LA:! n :~ee,\ \Il'~ e; \Kex'~ 
Stre P(ap!. # if needed) 

~~~~ CA q +:5,4--+ 
City' ip Code ) 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

Colle e, Professional, Vocational, or other schools attended Date 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached). If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Date Name of Orqanization or Branch of Military Officer I Member 

,- p L~;;..;:: CC ."- kIT Ac~''\) ,-

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 

\::> \,,1 a.Cle, S:"'"~.;.\ ±-t<t. c..1kf2-p\ Xi: ;!!.I ."YlJI e Q,,&~,~~ S:<...t.g11}l~4~"'~_ '-

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that all statements contained in this application are true. 

& 4 (12~t/:1~/~ 
0;;;;:::::;:: Signature . _" ~ r Date I 

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA T/ONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 

Fax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelle@ci.milpitas.ca.gov), mail or drop off your completed application to: 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

J:\Online and other Forms\Commission Related Forms\Commission Application_Sept 2011.doc 09/20/2011 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



SAl "PSYCHUCK" MANAPRAGADA 
27457 Green Hazel Road 
Hayward, CA 95131 

Res: (408)-416-3334 Cell: (510)-543-9655 
Email: saimanapraqada@yahoo.com 

OBJECTIVE 
Experienced technology professional with expertise in wireless product development and networking technologies seeking a senior management position. 

SUMMARY 
19 years of hands-on technical wireless telecom expertise. Immense experience in building DSP and embedded products for GSM/GPRS, 
CDMAlWCDMA, SS7, GPS cellular networks and handsets, and WLAN based IP networks. CDMA, IS-95A1B/C and wireless networking 
expert. Brought several networking and wireless products to market. Complete product life cycle experience. Experienced technical leader 
and manager of software development and systems engineering with a proven track of delivering advanced technology products. 

EDUCATION SUMMARY 
Master of Science, Electrical Engineering., DSP & Digital Communications, Northern Illinois University, De Kalb, IL 
Bachelor of Technology (Engineering), Electrical Engineering., Jawaharlal Nehru Technological University, India 

SKILLS AND EXPERTISE 
Technologies: COMA, JCDMA, WCDMA, GSM/GPRS, WLAN (802.11aib/e), 802.1x, 802.16, DSL, CABLE, BlueTooth 
Standards: GSM/GPRS, IETF, IEEE 802.11, 802.16, UMTS, 3GPP/3GPP2, IS95A, IS95B, IS95C, ARIB-JSTD8 
Network Products:BTS, BSC, HLR, GGSN, SGSN, MM/CP, RNC, ipRNC, Routers, IP/SS? Gateways, AAAlAuth Servers 
Interfaces: GSM/GPRS: A, Abis, Gn, Gr, and Gi Interfaces UMTS: Uu, luu, lur, lups, and lub interfaces 
Protocols: RANAP, RNSAP, RLC, MAC, PhyFP, ALCAP, GTP-c, GTP-u, GTP', BSSAP, MAP, SST (TCAP, SCCP, MTP), 

RADIUS, TCP, UDP, IP, TRAU, STRAU, AES Encryption, FEC, PCM, DOCSIS, QPSK, QAM, LDCELP, EVRC 
eSP/Assembly: TMS320C3x14x, TMS320C2x15x154x16xx, DSP5600xl1xx13xx, DSP9600x, ADSP-2105/21 020, SHARC 
Algorithms: LMS, NLMS, Gradient Lattice, Thin-Lattice', FNTF, RLS, Multirate processing, (2'n)-DFT Polyphase Subbands 
J.l-processons: 68K Assembly, 68040, 68360, 68860, PowerPC Backplanes: VME, cPCI, Motorola proprietary 
Tools: Microtek (cc, ansi, gcc), Clearcase, Xtime, sablime Languages: C/C++, Perl, UNIX scripting, SQL, Assembly 
OS: RTOS, VxWorks, VRTX, Nucleus, 1.250 platfonm, WINDOWS 95/98/2K1XP, UNIX, Linux (Red Hat), SUN Solaris-8 
Packages: COMDISCO, Cadence, SPW, HyperSignal, Matlab, MentorGraphics, MSOffice2K1XP, MS Project, Visual Basic 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

CO-FOUNDER & CEO, Psymphony Inc., Milpitas" CA (Sept'D9-present) 

CO·FOUNDER & CTO, Picongen Wireless Inc., San Jose, CA (MaYD6-present) 
• Design, Architect and develop wireless HD systems and software using advanced slreaming algorithms using standard WiFi 
• Systems engineering, product development and product management of wireless HD video, audio and data solutions and products 
• Product Roadmap of advanced Multi-Streaming technology for WiFi, CDMA, and GPRS networks 
• Competitive Analysis of existing technologies and companies offering Wireless communication for high-bandwidth applications 
• Market Analysis of high band-width technologies like Ultra Wide Band and WiFi (802.11alblg/n) and products 
• Managing Product Development Schedules and authoring of technology marketing and product specifications 
• Creation of Product Architecture and Product use cases for the implementation of Picongen Media Server 
• Design and development of Picongen Transmit IP, Receive IP and Picongen Software based on Product Specifications 

VP OF ENGINEERING, Photron Technologies Ltd., BVI (Jun'D4-Mar'D6) 
• Design and architecture of advanced narroW-band wireless and satelite systems - Systems engineering and product development 
• Managed Research, Architecture, Design, and Product Development of systems based on advanced narrow-band technology 
• Developed advanced Fractal-based narrowband modulation scheme for narrowband communications 
• Developed RTL using Accelchip Software using Xilinx Target FPGAs from MATLAB code 
• Designed, developed and implemented a High-Precision Narrowband filter with 20,000 taps on multiple FPGAs on Dini Group board 
• Planning and executing product development strategy for the development of narrowband technology products 

Page 1 of 6 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



HANDSET ARCHITECT AND PRODUCT MANAGER, Vyyo Inc .• Palo Mo, CA (Nov'03-May'04) 
• Design and architecture of 802.11a based handset for voice and data applications in the YNET network 
• Create chipset vendor selection criteria and write requirements for the chipset to be used in the YNET handset and AP 
• Create handset vendor selection criteria and write handset features requirements and design specification for the YNET handset 
• Implementation and specifications of various handset features including integration of GSM/GPRS, PHS, and COMA features with the YNET 

handset and WLAN/IP VoWLAN embedded products; including field trials integration and deployment 
• In G.721/G.726/G.729 Voice CODEC integration witll tlle YNET reference design and implementation of RTP compression to increase 

capacity of the network's wireless backhaul that is based on modified DOCSIS at 3.5 GHz frequency with a bandwidth of 6 KHz/channel 
• Integration of handset firmware in the integrated 802.11 alGPRS 802.11a1PCS handset to implement session handover within the YNET 

network, between adjacent YNET networks, and between YNET network and Operator's GPRS, GSM, and PCS networks 

INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT, WIRELESS AND CELLULAR PRODUCTS, Manepro Inc. (Jun'03-Nov'04) 
• Integration and porting of handset firmware to GSM/PHS dual-mode handset for the chipset manufacturer and handset ODM 
• Design and port the 802.11 part of the dual-mode GPRSIWLAN handsetlPDA Reference Design along with third party software 
• Software integration and support software feature deliverables, planning and execution of tlle system research & development plan 

RESEARCH ENGINEERING MANAGER, (CHIEF ARCHITECT), Mobility Network Systems Inc. (Mdiversi/y Inc.), San Jose. CA (Sept'OO-Jun'03) 
This is a senior technical position to manage and lead product integration and development for a range of network and handset products. 

Systems Architecture and Project Management of various solutions for IPRAN for WLAN product that consists of 4 network elements 
including access gateway, authentication server, client software, and OMC with an SNMP based GUI Manager 
• Integration of GSM/GPRS, RNC, Cellular projects, and WLAN/IP embedded products; including field trials integration and deployment 
• Integration of handset firmware to implement various handover scenarios namely, session handovers within the WLAN network, session 

handovers between adjacent WLAN networks, handovers between WLAN network and Operator's GPRS network 
• Integration and testing of IPRAN for WLAN integration with Ericsson and Nortel networks, product specification, domain analysis and 

requirements, project plan execution for IPRAN for WLAN integration with Operators' GPRS networks and iPASS networks 
• Lead embedded software integration of RLM using C/C++ coding on Linux OS with secure IP interface to the Internet, and to the Access 

Points (APs), secure AES encryption of over-tlle-air WLAN data over PPPoE interface to the MLC, secure IP interface using proprietary 
MNSAP interface to tlle RAC, GTP over IP based interface to the SGSN/GGSN, and SNMP based interface to the OMC 

• Lead and manage software integration of RAC using C/C++ coding on Solairs 8 with secure TCPIIP interface to the RLM, SNMP based 
interface to the OMC, secure RADIUS based interface to external AAA Servers, DSLAM, xDSL, MAP over SS7 interface to the HLR 

• Lead and manage firmware intergation of MLC on Windows 2KJ98/NT/XP to support client authorization and authentication with the network 
over WLAN based over-tlle-air interface, WLAN cards from CISCO, LinkSys, SMC, OKI, and D-Link drivers, NDIS interfaces 

• System design and implementation of various handover scenarios namely, session handovers within the WLAN network, session handovers 
between adjacent WLAN networks, handovers between WLAN network and Operator's GPRS network, SIM-based autllentication with the 
HLR, NAI-based authentication with RADIUS, SNMP based interfaces to the RAC, RLM and thrid-party APs 

Built Zone Manager (ZM) GSM/GPRS based product Rei 0.9 - interfaces with BTS and BSC for TRAU and BSSAP data manipulation to 
enable macro-tiiversity in GSM based cellular networks to achieve radio capacity enhancements in GSM networks 
• Zone Manager (ZM) product is based on GSM/GPRS network and has Abis interfaces to the BTS (TRX) and the BSC to implement macro

diversity in the network using two approaches: 1) Software-defined Radio, 2) Radio (BTS) control through Zone Manager. 
• Integration of handset firware to test the macro-diversity features implemented on the Zone Manager network product 
• Architected the Abis interface on tlle ZM, implemented LAPD protocol on the Abis, imlemented TRAU data management on the Abis 

interface, involved hardware data manipulation on Xilinx FPGA to route the LAPD and TRAU data between the BSC and the BTSs 
• Integrated Call Processing enhancements on the BSC, used BSSAP, SCCP, and MTP layers to route signalling and user data between the 

BSC and MSC based on the call characteristics of the macro-diversity call. Applied pronciples of Forward Error Correction (FEC). 
• Integration ofTMS320C54xJ6xx DSP firmware for LAPD and TRAU data manipulation and routing between the FPGA and the H.110 bus on 

VME (system-Alpha) and cPCI (System-Beta) chassis using MCP860, MPC604, and SPARC-10 processors with VxWorks OS 
• Lead the software integration of SNMP based Network Management System with Java based GUI for network administration 
• Extensively used Seimens BSS and Ericsson BSS architecture for design the ZM on both the systems' Abis interface 
• 3 proof of concepts prototypes' integration thorough embedded design (from scratch), with emulator and real-time implementation 
• Porting the softwarelfirmware of the Zone Manager and integrating witll the legacy hardware of SWI BTS/BSC product 

Page 2 of6 



Lead and Manage the development and integration of distributed IPRAN archHecture to implement IPRNC for WCDMA networks 
• Internet Protocol based Radio Network Controller (IPRNC) uses IP as the underlying protocol instead of ATM; distributed architecture of RNC 

functionality with radio functional unit (RLM), the call processing and authentication functional unit (RAC), and the UE (handset) 
• Architected the lub, lur, and lu-PS interfaces on IP, involved PHY, MAC, RLC, RRC, and PDCP protocol rnodifications and implementation on 

the RLM, RANAP and RNSAP, RANAP protocol, ALCAP design for the IP based interfaces 
• Lead software and firmware development with MPC604 processor, VME, VxWorks OS, C/CH coding, SUN E250 processor, on cPCI 
• Worked extensively with Core Network (CN) simulator from Catapult (DCT2000) to simulate SGSN/GGSN and HLR 
• Lead and Manage development and integration of in-house UE and Node-B simulator using ULTRA 10/Solari$ 8 and DPCL coding 
• Lead the software integration of prototype WCDMA handset development using DSP firmware and embedded software 
• Implement the WCDMA protocols on the prototype handset and integrate with existing features of the Catapult simulator UE 
• Specify test scenarios and integration of various features on the prototype handset (UE) to test the IPRNC network features 
Made IPRAN for WLAN product GIS complaint working with IPass Inc. as a project lead and technicalliason for the project 
• Designed innovative authentication mechanisms and integrate with existing s/w using TCP Clear and Access Reject msg of RADIUS 
• Lead the integration of MNS IPRAN for WLAN system with iPASS NetServer and RoamServer products and client software 
• Lead the development of XML in the MNS client software and integrating it with iPASS NetServer product that uses XML 

LEAD DSP SOFTWARE ENGINEER, Motorola Inc., IL (Feb'95-Sept'00) 
Responsibilties: Hands-on design. software and firmware development. Project Management. Technical Lead, Integration & Support 

Development and Integration of TriBand DualMode Protoype Handset DSP Firmware for GSM/GPRS Operation 
• The handset integrated the three bands and operated in two modes based on GSM/GPRS standards with separate RF interfaces 
• Architecture, design, and development of the mod/demod, equalization and voice coding in addition to the board control, mode processing 

functional code, and various phone features using embedded C on a proprietary Motorola platform (later evolved as i,250) 
• Involved extensive embedded x-sheli/C coding of 68360 processor, and firmware of DSP56300 chip, and ARM? using dual chipset 

Development and Integration of TriBand DualMode Protoype Handset DSP Firmware for GSM and COMA Operation 
• The handset integrated three bands and operated in two modes based on CDMA and GSM standards with separate RF interfaces 
• Architecture, design, and development of the SCH, PCH, ACH, TCH, and functional code to implement CDMA Layer2 cihannels 
• Involved extensive embedded x-sheli/C coding of 68360 processor, and firmware of DSP56300 chip, and ARM? using EMAXX chipset 

Integrated Echo Canceller for iDEN Small Systems Transcoder - Design, architect and lead a team of 4 engineers to build it 
• Developed and integrated a network echo canceller (EC) designed with innovative algorithms to cancel echos with delays of upto 1 ms, and 

attenuation of about 40 dB using in-house DSP hardware; saved upto a million dollars in costs of renting the EC from a 3,d party 
• Integration of the real-time echo cancellation system with XCDR after Matlab Simulations, real-time data emulation, design, and code 
• This project resulted in ? patent filing approvals from Motorola's patent committee, and an Outstanding Achievement Award 

JCDMA based BTS and Handset development - Lead 8 Firmware engineers, achitect. High Level Design, integration and testing 
• The Japan-CDMA BTS is a pica-cell developed for the Japanese subway deployment based on the ARIB-JSTO-8 standards 
• architected, designed and ported the SCH, PCH, ACH,TCH and functional code from DSP56156 to DSP56300 ONIX chip 
• Integration of DSP and embedded x-sheli/C firmware, integration with real-test equipment like rho-meter and network analyzers 
• Involved extensive DSP firmware coding to program Motorola's EMAXX-2 & EMAXX-3 modem ASICs for MCC24, MCC8M boards 
• Involved GPS receiver enhancements for remote GPS operations for subway deployment, synchronization, and system clock 

PCS/CDMA (MAWI) BTS and Handset development - Lead 6 Firmware engineers, acihitect. High Level Design, integration and testing 
• The MAWI BTS is a micro-cell, OMNI-sector, and multi-sector developed for the Sprint PCS market based on the pes standards 
• Designed, ported and integrated the SCH, PCH, ACH,TCH and functional code from 68360 to 68860 - the Board Control Processor 
• Involved extensive DSP and embedded x-sheU/C firmware, integration with real-test equipment like rho-meter and network analyzers 
• Integration of DSP firmware firmware to program Motorola's MAXX and EMAXX-2 modem ASIC for MAWI-32 boards 

IS95A based BTS development - 800 MHz- Lead 4 Firmware engineers, achitect, High Level Design, integration and testing 
• The SC9600 series STS is a macro-cell, mUlti-sector developed for the Hongkong CDMA markets based on the IS95A1B standards 
• Involved extensive DSP and embedded VRTXlC coding, integration with real-test equipment like rho-meter and network analyzers 
• Integration of DSP firmware coding to program Qualcomm's CSM and BSM modem ASICs for MCC4 and MCC8 boards 

IS95A based BTS development - 900 MHz- High Level Design, coding, integration and testing, lead 3 DSP/embedded engineers 
• The SC4800 series STS is a macro-cell, multi-sector developed for the CDMA market based on the IS95A standards 
• Aarcihitected, designed and coded the SCH, PCH, ACH,TCH and functional code to implement over-the-air CDMA Layer2 channels 
• Involved extensive DSP and embedded VRTXlC coding, integration with real-test equipment like rho-meter and network analyzers 

Page 3 of6 



Porting/Redesign of Functional Areas - Across various Chassis, OS, Platiorms, DSPs, uPs, and Modem ASICs for above products 
• Firmware porting and integration from DSP 156 to DSP300, embedded code porting from 68040 to 68360 and later to 68860 processors 
• Programming various modem ASIC chips, Qualcomm's BSM and CSM ASIC, motorola's MAXX, EMAXX-2, and EMAXX-3 chips 
• Worked with Microtek, VRTX, x-shell, DSP 56156 Assembly, DSP 56300, ARM?, DSP C compilers; Digital Transmit Combiner (DTC) and 

Enhanced DTC (EDTC) for baseband routing, with interfaces to various RF cages, LPAs, and GPS receiver elements 
• Worked on firmware development of all CDMAlJCDMA BTS products (MCC4, MAWI, MCC8Q, MCC8M, MCC24, YUKON) (sc2450, sc4850, 

sc9600, sc9640, sc604, sc601, sc611, sc340 base station platforms) 
MultiCarrier and Redundancy Feature Set Execution 

• The project involved integration of redundancy feature set and multicarrier interface programming for the JCDMA systems 
• Requirements, architecture, development, and project management of the feature set implemented on the PCS and JCDMA systems 
• Extensive embedded x-shelliC coding of 68360/68860 processors, and DSP56300 firmware using MAXXICSM/EMAXX ASICs 

Complex Handoff or N-way Handoff Feature Set Execution 
• Integration of N-way handoff feature set for the PCS and JCDMA systems, Extensive HO and PC algorithm implementation. 
• Requirements, architecture, development, and project management of the feature set implemented on the PCS and JCDMA systems 
• Extensive embedded x-sheli/C coding of 68360168860 processors, and DSP56300 firmware using MAXXICSM/EMAXX ASICs 

Field Problem Resolution and Technical Expert Liason for Field Deployment 
• In the role of the Chief Expert Liason for Paging, Sync and Traffic channels, responsible for any Call Processing or System problems 
• Involved frequent trips to the field to collect debug data to analyze the problem, find a solution, and implement the "fix"es 
• Successfully maintained a quick (48 hrs) response and turn-around time for 99% of the problems, certified as efficient delegator 

Requirement and Specifications Contributions to COMA networM' ,Call Processing (CP)and Hand-Off and Power Control (HOPC) 
• Analyse requirements, design, and coordinate various CDMA Base Transceiver Station features including FEC on various DSPs 
• Contributed to SFS with message flows and system requirements for call processing, hand-oils and power control features 

DSP ENGINEER, Teleconferencing Systems Intemationallnc., Elk Grove Village, IL (Jun'93-May'94) 
• Design of a 2-channelli0 board using TI's TMS320C25 DSP Chip for Teleconferencing 
• Design of a Ful\.Duplex Telephone Integrated Hardware System using Motorola's MC-34010 Chip 
• Algorithm development, signal detection and gain control methods in teleconferencing systems on both fixed and floating-point DSPs. 
• Involved extensive assembly coding in TI's TMS320C25, TMS320C50, TMS320C30, TMS320C32, and TMS320C4x DSP chips 

RESEARCH ASSISTANT, Dept. of Electrical Engg"Northem Illinois University,DeKalb,lL(Aug'94-Feb'95) 
• Real-time implementation of adaptive Acoustic Echo Cancellation algorithms such as Thin Lattice, Gradient Lattice, Predictive-NLMS and 

NLMS algorithms insubband DFT polyphase filter banks 
• Involved extensive interaction with research teams of various companies on acoustic echo cancellation 

RESEARCH ASSISTANT, Dept. of Electrical Engg" Northem Illinois University,De Kalb, IL (Jan'93-Jun'93) 
• Motorola's DSP56001 used in implementing CDMA code channels 
• Low Delay Code Excited Linear Prediction (LD-CELP) vocoding using Motorola's 56001 DSP chip 

DSP LAB MANAGER, CEET, Northern Illinois University, De Kalb, IL (Jan'93-0ct'93) 
• Operations management and assistantance to graduate and undergraduate students in the lab 
• Installation and configuration of DSP systems used for experiments on acoustic echo & noise cancellation, and speech processing 

SYSTEMS ENGINEER, Pertech Computers Limited, India (Oct'90-Aug'92) 
• Installation, maintenance and trouble shooting of various computers systems such as SUN-SPARC stations, Novell 3.1 and LANs 

MEMBERSHIPS (TECHNICAL) 
• Chair/Co-Chair, WG-2: Architecture Specifications, Mobile Wireless Internet Forum, Since Mar'02 
• Vice President, Central Institute for Remote Sensing Applications (student chapter), May'95 
• Member, Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, Since Jun'98 

Page 4 of6 



WHITE PAPERS and TECHNICAL WRITE·UPS 
• Competition Analysis of Integrated WLAN Network Systems • Handovers in WLAN Systems using MNS WLAN Network 
• Roaming in MNS IPRAN for WLAN Networks • Security Analysis of the MNS IPRAN for WLAN Network 
• MultiCarrier and Redundancy in PCS and JCDMA Networks • Complex (N-Way) Handoffs in 6-sector PCS and JCDMA Networks 
• Zone Manager - Capacity Enhancements in the GSM Networks using Macro-Diversity 
• IPRNC - An IP based Radio Network Controller for the WCDMA Networks 
• Architecture Comparision of WLAN Network Systems Integrating with the GPRS Networks 

RFls and RFPs 
• Drafted official responses to Buoygues, StarHub, A TT Rogers, Mobikom, and Nortel on IPRAN for WLAN System RFPs 
• Drafted official responses to Seimens, Ericsson, NTT DoCoMo, and Cingular on Zone Manager RFPs for GSM/WCDMA Networks 
• Drafted official responses to TCC Mobile, Vodafone, Go Mobile, and Omnitel on IPRAN for WLAN System RFls 
... additional RFls and RFPs available upon request... 

AWARDS and RECOGNITION 
• "Outstanding Researcher" Honor, Department of Justice, United States of America 
• International Award Winner - Best Technical Paper (ICORG) International Conference on Remote SenSing and GIS/GPS 
• "Outstanding Achievement Award", Jack Scanlon, Vice President, CIG, Motorola Inc., Jun'96 
• "Outstanding Achievement Award", Jack Scanlon, Vice President, CIG, Motorola Inc., Jun'97 
• "Best Technical Article", International Conf. Sgnl. Proc. App!. Tech. (ICSPAT'95), Boston, MA, Oc(,95 
• "Best Thesis Dissertation", Eta Kappa Nu, Northern Illinois UniverSity, De Kalb, IL, May'95 

PATENTS AND PUBLICATIONS 
• Over 35 patents, 21 published, 14 more patents filed 
• Over 20 publications in international journals, symposiums and conferences, including IEEE CIRSA, ICSPAT, ICASSP and RF-EXPO 

PATENTS 
[1]. S. C. Manapragada, M. Tahernezhadi, "Full Duplex Teleconferencing Systern Including A Speaker Phone Having Acoustic Echo, Line Echo And 

Acoustic Howling Cancellation," 08/644,969 May'96. 
[2]. S. C. Manapragada" "A Thin Lattice Algorithm for Adaptive Acoustic Echo Cancellation," Application 08/644,969-2 May'96. 
[3]. Increasing capacity in a WCDMA network using Virtual Cells 
[4]. Increasing Soft Handoff Macro-Diversity Gains Using Fast Soft handoff Procedure 
[5]. Capacity Improvement by Reducing "Other-Sector Pilot Bits Transmission Interference" during DPDCH TX (Faster SHO) 
[6]. Integration of WLAN Access point with Node B 
[7]. Enhanced Distributed ArchITecture Using Node-B to Node-B interface in WCDMA Networks; <continuation in part> 
[8]. Optimizing data rates using FMS between Node-B, GPRS nodes & WLAN 
[9]. Resolving Dead Spot problem in TDMA/CDMA cellular networks using Location Services in a Distributed Antenna with WLAN Back-haul Environment 
[10]. Hand-Overs in GPRS and WLAN Networks using IPRAN for WLAN Systems 
[11]. Roaming and Authentication Methods in IPRAN for WLAN Networks 
[12) .... more in application process on Acoustic Echo Cancellation and Wireless innovations tllrough Motorola Inc., and Mobility Network Systems Inc .. 
... 12 more patents in narrow-band technology and systems from Photron Technologies Ltd. (2004-2006) 
... 11 additional US domestic, European, Asian, and other Intemational patents from Picongen Wireless Inc. (2007-2011) 

PUBLICATIONS 
[1]. S. C. Manapragada, M. Tahernezhadi, and J. Uu, "Subband Acoustic Echo Canceller using a Thin Lattice Structure," IEEE Intrntl. symp. on Cir. and 

Sysl, Seatle, WA, May 1995. 
[2]. S. C. Manapragada, M. Tahernezhadi, and J. Uu, "A Subband Based Acoustic Echo Canceller for Hands-free Telephone," IEEE Intrnt!. Conf. on 

Vehicular TeCh., Chicago, IL 1995. 
[3). S. C. Manapragada, Subband Based Adaptive Algoritllms for Acoustic Echo Cancellation, Masters' Thesis, Northern Illinois Univ., De Kalb, IL 1995. 
[4). S. C. Manapragada, M. Tahernezhadi, "Fullband and Subband Acoustic Echo Cancellers," RF-EXPO, Baltimore, MD 1995. 

Page 5 of6 



[5]. S. C. Manapragada, M. Tahemezhadi, "Evaluation Comparison of Broadband and Subband AECs for Teleconferencing Applications," ICSPAT, 
Boston, MA 1995. 

[6]. S. C. Manapragada, M. Tahernezhadi, V. Sharma, "Adaptive Speech Enhancement Using a Subband Kalman Filter," ICSPAT, Boston, MA 1995. 
[7]. M. Tahemezhadi, L. Liu, S. C. Manapragada, "An Orthogonality-Based Double-Talk Detector for Integrated Teleconferencing System on 

ADSP21020," ICSPAT'95,Boston, MA. 
[8]. M. Tahernezhadi, L. Ren, S. C. Manapragada, "Une-Spectral-Pair Based Algorithms for Speech Recognition," ICSPAT, Boston, MA 1995. 
[9]. M. Tahernezhadi, S. Thiru, S. C. Manapragada, "A Dual ADSP2105-Based Design for Teleconferencing Applications," ICSPAT, Boston, MA 1995. 
[10]. M. Tahemezhadi, S. Thiru, S. C. Manapragada, "Twin DSP-Based Sub-band Acoustic Echo Canceller Algorithm and Processing Time Estimation," 

ICSPAT, Boston, MA 1995. 
[11]. S. C. Manapragada, V. Shanna, M. Tahernezhadi, "A Latice-based Adaptive Line Enhancer", Las Vegas, NV, Proc. Sig. and Img. Proc. SIP, Nov'95. 
[12]. S. C. Manapragada, R. V. Yellapantula, M. Tahernezhadi, "Blind Unear FSE and SSE Using Fourth Order Moments", Las Vegas, NV, ProC. Sig. and 

Img. Processing SIP-95, Nov'95. 
[13]. S. C. Manapragada, R. V. Yellapantula, M. Tahernezhadi, "A Subband AEC Coupled with Engine Noise Canceller", ISCAS'97, Atlanta, GA, May'96 
[14]. S. C. Manapragada, "System Software Development Cycle Time Reduction", Motorola System Symposium, Chandler, Arizona, Mar97 . 
... additional publications information available upon request. .. 

KEY CAREER ACHIEVEMENTS 

ACCOMPLISHED TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH AND SYSTEM ARCHITECTURE RESPONSIBIlITIES 
• OUTSTANDING RESEARCHER award from DEPT. OF JUSTICE (DOJl. USA, Dec'02 
• COMMENDATION, City of San Jose; The State of California, USA - "The Leader of the Bay Area Indian Community", Jun'11 
• Chair/Co-Chair of WG-2: Architecture Specifications, Chief Editor of WG-4 IP in the RAN, Mobile Wireless Internet Forum (MWIF) 
• Technical Chair, and Vice President of Central Institute for Remote Sensing Applications (student chapter) 
• Outstanding Researcher - Commendation letters from technology experts and industry gurus from all over the world 
• Outstanding Achievement Awards from Motorola: GSM BSSAP inter-operability interface with CDMA, and IS95A COMA products 
• Best Technical Paper international award for research in the field of Acoustic Echo Cancellation published in numerous papers 
• Technical papers in international technical publications including IEEE, CIRSA, ICSPAT, RF-EXPO, and ICASSP 
• Published technical articles and white papers in wireless and packet data network, investigated innovative implementation solutions 

ACCOMPLISHED PRODUCT AND SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
• Manage/Lead systems architecture group of upto 7 engineers; report to the CTO; parallel reports to VP Engineering, VP Marketing 
• Expert in domain analysis, product architecture, system research and architecture analysis, and product integration and support 
• Proven track record of delivering 9 different COMA and GSM network and handset products in Motorola Inc., 3 different GSM, and WCDMA, 

products in mDiversity Inc., and GPRSIWLAN products in Mobility Networks Inc. Complete Product Life Cycle (PLC) experience in 
architecting and building prototypes into products. Outstanding achievement awards for product quality and deployment. 

• Field Resolution Expert for Motorola Inc., for Sprint COMA deployment. Extensive experience in using real-time and embedded Signal and 
Logic analysing tools from NoiseCom, Tekelec, Catapult, Tellabs and HP, and simulation tools from MatiabSimulink and Comdisco. 

• Immense experience in interacting with customers for Product Requirements, supppliers and vendors for Product SpeCifications, diverse 
cross-functional teams for System Specifications. Demonstrated in COMA products in Motorola Inc., GSM/GPRS in mDiversity Inc., and 
GPRSIWLAN products in Mobility Networks Inc., including SIW, HIW (Product OS, OMC, GUI, Chassi and platform selection) 

• Excellent presentation, written and verbal communication skills demonstrated through presentations of technology implementation sketches 
for COMA, 3GPP, 3GPP2, GSM/GPRS, and WLAN based cellular and network products to executives, board of directors, product 
symposiums and customers; publishing technical articles and white papers in wireless and packet data networks. 

EXTRA CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 
• 2 GUINNESS WORLD RECORDs ™ holder - singing a song in 265 languages (individual) • leading multiple singers in 277 languages 
• Accomplished Music Composer, Vocalist and Instrumental Music (performed on National TV and Radio, INDIA) 
• Represented University in Cricket, Soccer, Ping Pong Inter-University Championships 
• Volunteering Assistant, Salvation Army, Red Cross and United Way Blood Donation Camps, cultural organizations in US and India 

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 

Page 6 016 



_. ... .,. -- .. - ./Iii) 

P··-··eu·"'m·~··'p·· --h··""'U·' .-.'. -Wf)fj4 
'._ . . ;;;1'" • : .-,. : ..... -. 'url- - "~.-.• ·.;:lr~'r)Ii"i:"'i;;;1:-;'~ 

j - - ,_;.~ I ~ _ '~..J (Dlj - 0J~'-"y 

your EntErtAinment lAunch PAd 27457 Green Hazel Road, Hayward, CA 94544 ~Wl!J.!'wk-Q:"~~~<ld'lfJt.~"''"'tNl'}'ryJf= 

TRIPLE GUINNESS™ Sai "''''Psychuck'' Manapragada 
ero of Picongen Wireless Inc. :: Chairman of FARMI :: CEO of Psymphony 

SUMMARY 
• Three (3) GUINNESS RECORDs™ for singing in 217 languages, composing, I!r. Piano playing 
• 8 Audio Albums proliferating Ethnic Cultures in 70 countries the world over 
• 15 National and International Awards in India and the United States 
• Over 100 musical compositions, orchestrations, and Songs; TV, Radio, I!r. Film 
• 7 articles I!r. books on Musical influence in world culture I!r. contemporary music 
• OUTSTANDING RESEARCHER (Engineering) awarded by Dept. of Justice, USA 
• 14 publications in International Engg. Journals; Author of Technology Books 
• PhilanthroDll: Established FARMI for preservation and proliferation of Folk Arts of India 
• Established Psymphony: launch pad for aspiring talents in Music, Dance I!r. Performing Arts 

Music Awards & Titles 
Guinness World Record™, Jana Gana Mana with 669 Piano keys per minute, Fremont, CA, USA, 18Nov2011 

Guinness World Record™, Saare Jahan Se Achcha in 277 languages (Lead), Fremont, CA, USA, 15Aug2010 

Guinness World Record™, Vandemataram in 265 languages (Solo), San Jose, CA, USA, 16May2010 

National Integration Award, Rashtrapathy Bhavan, India, 1989 (Music of DO's Tele-School Play) 

Best Music Director, (for Teleplay "Prakruti", 1989), Governor's Mansion, AP, India 

Commendation: The leader of Bay Area Indian Community, City of San Jose, CA, USA, 1" June' 11 

Commendation: The leader of Bay Area Indian Community, City of Milpitas, CA, USA, 8th June' 11 

Sangeeta Bharati, SiliconAndhra, Andhra Cultural Festival (2009), Cupertino, CA, USA, 2009 

Sangeeta Samrat, City of Sunnyvale, CA, by Honorable Mayor of Sunnyvale, Tony Spitaferi, April2009 

Outstanding Musician Award, City of Cupertino, CA, by Honorable Mayor Olin Mahoney, Oct2009 

Sangeeta Ratna, Tiger Award, TigerFest201 0, Santa Clara, CA, USA, 2009 

Sangeeta Spoorti, Outstanding NRI Achievers felicitation, by Padmasri. Yarlagadda Lakshmiprasad, 2010 

TANA Excellence Award (Fine Arts Music), Telugu Association of North America, TANA2011, Santa Clara, CA 

Musical Authorship 
"Musical Chords: A Mathematical Approach", (2010) San Jose, CA, USA 

"Psyng with Psychuck", Musical influence on Indian Contemporary Film Music, San Jose, CA 

Technology Awards 
"Outstanding Researcher" (Digital Signal Proc. & Wireless Comm.), Dept of Justice, USA 

"Outstanding Achievement", Motorola, Inc, (1997), Schaumburg, Il, USA 

"Best Technical Journal Paper", ICORG (1997), International Conference, Hyderabad, India 

"Outstanding Achievement", Motorola, Inc, (1996), Schaumburg, Il, USA 

Technology Authorship 
Over 35 US and International patents; 1 0 International patents; Over 10 European, Asia-Pacific, Indian & African 
patents; 14 technology journals; Chair & Judge of Technology & Technical Forums; Technology books published 

~ 4V I I I ..,YI..o11uvl'\. • ...,VIII '-111011. ~alll ICU IGf./'ayaucHl..Uyc;uIVV ...... VIII I IIVlle. \ '" I V rv-t •• rovvoJ 



"~ ....• ps'wmphony 
yourentortRinmentlRunchpRd 27457 Green Hazel Road, Hayward, CA 94544 

About the Artist Sai "Psychuck" Manapragada 
Artists Profile at : http://www.reverbnation.com/psychuck & www.psychuck.com 

Psychuck is an accomplished music composer, a celebrated pianist, a singer, a technology entrepreneur, 
cultural warrior and a social philanthropist with contributions ranging from regional, national, and 
international influence for over the past two decades (25 years) in both USA and India. 

PHILOSOPHY OF MUSIC 

He firmly believes that music is a part & parcel of human psyche. According to him, " ... music is so deep
rooted in one's soul that it can influence one's philosophy and outlook in life. Even tone-deaf persons can 
relate to music in their own unique way ... and that is the true testament to the power in music." It is this firm 
and deep-rooted philosophy of his that drives him to relentlessly pursue his passion for music. 

MUSICAL PEDIGREE 

Psychuck sang his first song when he was just three years old on All India Radio's (AIR) Balanandam (Kid's 
Talent Showcase) program. Born into a family of musicians, he was anointed with music as a natural 
consequence. By the time he was twelve, Psychuck had already accompanied his father's musical tours and 
became a surrogate band member. Psychuck was recognized as the youngest music director (12 years), 
singer and lyricist in 1982 when he provided music for a TV Special on National Integration. He performed at 
the Rashtrapathy Shavan (President of India's Palace) and received the prestigious National Integration 
Award and is the pioneer of Indian Folk Rock - a genre that popularizes traditional Indian music through the 
fusion with modern music. 

AWARDS & TITLES 

In addition to the National Integration Award, Psychuck received Best Music Director - Youth Category for 
his work in the Tele-School Documentary on Doordarshan called "Prakruti" (Nature) at age 17. Psychuck 
has several awards for his skills in singing, playing keyboards, and composing at both State level and the 
National level in India. SiliconAndhra has awarded Shri. Sai "Psychuck" Manapragada, the coveted 
international award for outstanding musical achievements award "Sangeeta Sharathl" (Music Maestro of 
Indian Music) award. In addition, Psychuck has received the "Outstanding Musician Award" ceremonially 
from Honorable Mayor Tony Spitaleri of Sunnyvale, CA and the "Sangeeta Sam rat" (King of Music) award 
ceremonially from Honorable Mayor Olin Mahoney of Cupertino, CA. Psychuck currently holds two 
Guinness World Records for singing "Vandemataram" in 265 languages (individual) and 314 languages 
(group). Currently, he is training to set a Guinness World Record as a fastest Piano player in the world. 
Psychuck was awarded with a COMMENDATION from the City of San Jose, CA, for his community 
service and musical prowess; and a US national honor of OUTSTANDING RESEARCHER, by the Dept. 
of Labor, (United States Citizenship & Immigration Services - USCIS), USA for his numerous 
contributions to the research in digital signal processing & wireless communications technology. 

ARTISTIC INFLUENCES 

Inspired by his father Janapadabrahma, JanapadaRatna Late Shri. Manapragada Narasimha Murthy, 
IT ANA inception member 1977\ - a renowned international folk singer, Psychuck has served on many 
music review boards and authored many articles on folk music and the evolution of Indian music in the 
post modern era. Psychuck has since given music to many dance dramas, stage musicals, feature films, TV 
soaps and cultural showcases at both national and international levels and has numerous original 
compositions to his credit. 

© 2011 - 2012 Psychuck.com Email: saimanapragada@yahoo.com Phone: (510)-543-9655 



-~--.~----

"" gsuF5phy 
your EntErtAinmEnt lAunch pAd 27457 Green Hazel Road, Hayward, CA 94544 

PORTFOLIO & PERFORMANCES 

Psychuck has over 100 original compositions to his credit His music takes the essence from Classical 
Carnatic, Classical Hindustani and Folklore genres. He further expands into Asian, Latin, and Middle
Eastern genres and embraces the contemporary Rock and Pop genres of the West with a hint of Western 
Classical overtures in most of his works. He was part of many bands including, Strings in India and Riske - a 
live jazz showcase - in Chicago, to name a few. Psychuck was the cultural coordinator for Indian Youth 
Festivals in Baton Rouge, LA and Chicago, IL. Psychuck has given numerous performances with renowned 
musicians including tlaya Raja, KV Mahadevan, a renowned Indian movie music director and has composed 
the literary works of many including Dr. J Baapu Reddy, and "Gnaanpeeth" "CeeNaaRe" Dr. C. Narayana 
Reddy, both very highly decorated lyricists. Psychuck is very active In the Bay Area cultural scenes and co
composed the drum-musical arrangement "Layamrita Varshini" (The Rain of Heavenly-Nectar-filled Rhythm) 
with Mridangam (a South Indian Two-sided Drum) Dr maestro "Padmasri" Shri Dr. Yelta Venkateshwara 
Rao. Psychuck has provided music and soundtracks to various projects including Stage, TV, Film and 
Ballads. Psychuck is also considered as the pioneer of Modernization of Ghazal Music. Psychuck released 
Psymphony's flagship album "Pace: The Frontier of Ught" (The Raftaar). The experimental song Ek-Swar 
(X-WAR) or "one-note" number in the album uses just a single note "C" in the entire song including the 
musical overtures and interludes, and vocals. Psychuck dedicates this song to his dad who challenged him 
to make a song with just one note without "Arohana" and "Avarohana". Psychuck has release many artistic 
albums like "Folk Dances of India", "Folklore Ufe of Andhra Pradesh", etc. internationally in over 35 countries 
through popular online retailers including iTunes, Rhapsody, Napster, Amazon and eMusic. He served as a 
judge in many cultural forums and competitions and is the author of "Musical Chords: A Mathematical 
Approach". 

COMMUNITY & SOCIAL SERVICES 

Psychuck is the Chairman for FARMI (Folk Arts Research and Music Institute) - a not-for-profit 
organization formed in memory of his father and committed to preserving the folklore arts and music of India. 
FARMI, in association with Amateur and Professional Singers Organization (APSO) India, conduct yearly 
folk festivals in honor of JanapadaBrahma late Shri. Manapragada Narasimha Murthy to honor 
accomplished artists and encourage new and budding talent in the folk genre. In addition, a Ufe Time 
Achievement Award and a stipend from the Pension for Retiring Artists and Gifted Artists Development 
Alimony established by FARMI is provided to aspiring and accomplished artists to encourage the 
sustenance of the now endangered folklore arts and music of India. 

PROFESSIONAL LIFE 

Psychuck is an entrepreneur and a technology executive in a wireless start-up called Picongen Wireless 
Inc. (www.picongen.com) and lives in the San Francisco bay area with his wife and two daughters. He is 
recognized as the OUTSTANDING RESEARCHER by the Dept. of Justice (DoJ), United States of 
America (USA) for his outstanding contributions to Digital Signal Processing and Wireless 
Communication. 

Psychuck is the Chairman of Folklore Arts Research and Music Institute (FARMI, USA) and is the co
founder of Psymphony Inc. - a launch pad for aspiring talent in the fields of music, dance and performing 
arts industry. He continues to contribute and play key roles in many cultural organizations and non-profit 
organizations, both in India and in the United States. 

© 2011 - 2012 Psychuck.com Email: saimanapragada@yahoo.com Phone: (510)-543-9655 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMATION (in black ink) 

o Mr. 

~ Mrs.lMs. 
VAN LAN ----r-R uo IV 6r 

Name: First Middle Last 

Address: Number 

Present Employer 

Address 

jl 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

Colleae, ProfeSSional, Vocational, or other schools attended Maior Subiect Date Deoree 

hA,'A~{~;Av. Y\ (\AO;~~0 aw,,,,,,-,w. ~h{..c<.1- FJ'A'n C"YVVl' • ",ltOi\.l;::;' P,. A . 
I II 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached). If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Name of Or anization or Branch of Milita 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy.11~ , 
hereby certify that all statements contained in this application are true. 
//-"-"'~'7 •. ,..... ............ . 

// .. :,~~.'"7~- ~tM~/~:::? 
~ Signature Date 

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMM/SSION APPLICA TlONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail, fax (586-3030), e·mail (mlavelle@cLmilpitas.ca.gov) or drop off your completed application to 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

J:\Online and other Forms\Commission Application_Dec 2009.doc 12/07/2009 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



VAN LAN TRUONG 
1327 Cirolero St. 

Milpitas, CA 95035 
Phone: (408) 990- 5345 

Email: vanlantruong!iVgmail.com 

SUMMARY 
Seasoned operative in community grass-root organizing and social services. Extensive 
experience in community outreach, advocacy, promotion of health education and other 
community issues. Organized education workshop for community wide campaigns. Interactions 
with medically underserved minority groups. Strong connection with the Vietnamese community 
in the San Jose area. Energetic, positive, strong organizational skills, unique ability to multitask, 
flexible schedule. 

EXPERIENCE 

COMMUNITY HEALTH P ARTNERSIllP, San Jose, CA 
Subcontractor- Patient Navigator, 2011- Present 

Conduct community outreach and recruitment for breast and cervical health education 
workshops. Register and provide health education to medically underservedluninsured 
Vietnamese women living in the Santa Clara and San Mateo Counties. Gather and organize all 
health education material for health education workshops, community outreach, and community 
activities. Lead, facilitate and deliver health education workshops. Assist health education 
workshop participants with navigation through health care systems to accomplish routine breast 
and cervical screening. Coordinate logistics for patient health care adherence- follow- ups, 
reminder phone calls, reminder letters, assist with translation, identifY barriers and challenges. 
Attend all trainings, meetings, and breast/cervical health education workshops. Administer and 
maintain health education tools, records and logs. Document patient encounters. 

CLOSE TO HOME, Boston, MA 
Community Organizer-Vietnamese Community Liaison, 2007- 2011 

Develop and implement a plan to engage community members to respond to and prevent 
domestic violence in their neighborhood. Build relationships with individuals and organizations, 
organize and provide workshops, recruit community members into activities, maintain a public 
awareness campaign, maintain relationships with local organizations, and assist in the creation of 
educational materials and assist with general office activities. 

BOSTON PUBLIC HEALTH COMMISSION, Boston, MA 
Subcontractor, 2008-2009 

Develop and implement a plan to assist the Tobacco Control Program- Community Smoking 
Demonstration Intervention Project to engage and educate the Vietnamese parents and children 
on the danger of Environmental Tobacco Smoke poses to children. Provide community outreach 

rcurrie
Redacted 411



plan, identifY, scheduling, coordinating, creating education materials in Vietnamese, conducting 
and setting up resources and educational tables and campaign to various Vietnamese community 
events and organizations, including Boston Public Schools that have concentration of 
Vietnamese students. 

VIETNAMESE AMERICAN INITIATIVE FOR DEVELOPMENT, Boston, MA 
Finance & Administration Manager, 2006- 2008 

Oversee all financial management functions, such as accounting policies and procedures, 
organizational and grants proposal budget development, banking, annual audits and assets. 
Ensure accurate financial reporting, account payable, employee payroll and benefits. Manage 
human resource functions, including development and administration of personnel policies, 
employee benefits and professional training. Supervise the MIS and Database Administrator to 
ensure the quality of organization-wide networks and databases. Oversee office management and 
adrrtinistration;',-including supervising the office rnanager. 

HOUSTON NEUROMUSCULAR MEDICAL PAIN CLINIC, Houston, TX 
Office Manager, 1993-2001 

Manage full and part-time staffs, care of patients and health education. Manage all aspects of 
billing and payroll. Control, order medical supply and office inventory. Public relation and 
marketing. 

MAYOR'S OFFICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES, BOSTON CITY HALL, Boston, 
MA 
Vietnamese Liaison, 1987-1993 

Serve as a link between city government and the Vietnamese community of Boston to expend 
and strengthen services and resources available to newcomers, and to bridge the gap oflanguage 
and cultural barriers. Advocate within city government for the Vietnamese Community, outside 
agencies, and the general public for various policies and community needs. Community grass
root organizing and outreach. 

EDUCATION 

University of Massachusetts, Amherst, 1982 
Degree: B.A. Economics 

COMMUNITY SERVICE 
Boston, MA 
2004- 2011 Vietnamese American Women's League of Massachusetts- President 
2007- 2010 Dorchester Historical Society- Board Member 
2007- 2011 Vietnamese American Small Business Inc., Board Member 
2008- Present National Congress of Vietnamese American- Board President 

Houston, TX 



1999- 2001 
1998 

1997- 2000 

1997- 2001 
1997- 1998 
1995- 1998 
1993- 1998 
1993- 1996 

Boston,MA: 
1992- 1993 
1991- 1993 
1990- 1993 

1990- 1992 

1990- 1991 

1989- 1996 
1989- 1993 

The Refugee Services Alliance- Board 
Vietnamese Community Alliance, 
Mayor Lee Brown Summer Youth Program- Volunteer 
Sunnyside Asian African American Task Force- Member 
Asian American Police Officer of the Year- Vice President 
Asian American Heritage Association- Board 
National Congress of Vietnamese American- Board President 
Asian American Health Coalition- Member 
The Asia Society- Board 
Vietnamese American Community in Houston and Vicinity- Member 
United Way of Gulf Coast Texas- Project Blue Print Class 11- Volunteer 

Asian American Unity Dinner- Chairperson 
Boston Employment Commission-Member 
Mayor's Youth Leadership Corps-Trustee 
Asian American Forum- Board 
National Institute of Women of Color- Board 
Women's State-Wide Legislature Network- Board 
Vietnamese Community in Massachusetts-Member 
Refugee and Immigrant Women's Network- Board 
Dorchester Task F orce- Chairperson 
Dorchester Asian Youth Services- Board 
National Association for Education and Advancement of Cambodian, Laotian and 

Vietnamese, Vice President 
Community Training and Assistance Center- Board 
Asian American Democratic Caucus- Board 
Vietnamese American Women's League of Massachusetts- Founder 
United Way of Massachusetts Bay, Community Organization- Board 
Citizen's Review Committee for Special Services and Allocation 

1988- 1991 Women's Educational Industrial Union- Member 
Multicultural Advisory Committee, Amelia Earhart A wards Selection Committee 

1987- 1989 American Cancer Society, William Price Unit- Board 
1987- 1991 Vietnamese Parent Advisory Council- Advisor 
1986- Present National Congress of Vietnamese in America- Board 
1984-1993 Dien Hong Foundation- Vice President 

RECOGNITION 

1991 Community Change, Inc. - Drylongso Awards Recipient 
1990 Boston Jaycee- Ten Outstanding Youth Leaders Awards Recognition 
1989 City of Boston Master Parent Advisory Council- Recognition 
1988 Boston Women's Magazine- 100 Interesting Women for 1988 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
3 1 COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

RECe. P/ED . It 
PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMA TlON (in black ink) 

/E1 Mr. 

D Mrs./Ms.lMiss 

Name: Middle 

Street (apt\fl if needed) City & Zip Code 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: ________________ _ 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached). If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Name of Or anization or Branch of Milita 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional informati0r'! may be attached): 

_____ .,h",., __ ,\,C?: ,C'\ ~\ ~._~_ C" t>4 \. "e', {' e n {.7 ,,-\{" q. n. d \~ e",':i ~,~ \-~\'\- <':?§::c\ u\ 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that all statements contained in this application are true . 

..f ~ 

vi \ Q..;\:tY( 
Signatu·re , Date 

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICATIONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 

Fax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelle@cLmilpitas.ca.gov), mail or drop off your completed application to: 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

J:\Online and other Forms\Commission Related Forms\Commission Application_Sept 2011.doc 09/20/2011 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



Nov.09.2012 12:24 AS ICYBER 8666996002 

PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMA TlON (In black Ink) 

((J Mr. 

o Mrs.IMs. 

Enucatlon: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: 

List community organIzations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be ati8ched) If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. miHtary organization (retlred or active duty), 

------- ------------------------------------

il-------+-----__________________________________ i. --------------- ---, 
'-------__ -L ______________________ .L _____________ J 

I have $uffident time to devote to this responsibmty and wHl attend the required meetings if ! zm appointed to flH a future vacancy, 1 
hereby certify that aU statements CO~ffilSap~ true \ \ 

.. ---. ~ ___ " \ I \ 0\ ! () 
-~~5~~~---~--~.-::==.-. ~- ----'-'4=-~~---

',->: 

Appointme~ 0 as are made by the Mayor with the concurrence ot the CIty Council Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TrONS ARE PUBLIC flECORD 
Mail, fax (586-3030), e-mail (miaveUeallcLmHpitas.c8.QQvj or drop off your completed appiicatinn to 

City ClerK. 455 E Calaveras Blvd, Milpitas, CA 950:;5 

C:\DoCtiments and SeWngs\tmeyercalvert.MILPITAS\Local Setl:ings\Temporary Internet FHes\OLK83\Commission Application_Dec 2009 dec 12/07/2009 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



FRCII1 FAX In : 

"70: u/01'Ftt:.:. C/1IU ljJ/I'lA7I'.Fra:.rN./ Cilf Of!"'" /?I/?~~ n;<. fcS--fq6-]t:qO 
!i£1)f1r..J / mAjl'oR' clJlfN # /lfo#""lWiJ.., (If" c..<w40? A1f:~. City ClerKS Office 

;:>r. "- ~ CITY OF MILPITAS JAN 2 Ii 2013 

COMMiSSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION. r;: eEl V ED 
J'/s:~ c//lt:!iQri'!;/Ij /JJP;V 

PROVIDE COMPLI'!TE INFORMATION (1/1 blaCK inK) COMMISSION APPLYING FOR ... 

iM"'Mr, 

L~st 

"rP -1'iff J'1';v'CtAl'li:.. #'~L..e~ foHf'ff'A-:s 
Addre.ss:-~' Number Street (apt. # if nee-::Ied), Milp~;;> CA 95036 

~...(n c.UJCt-f!J/IlM;t~ 
Telephone NUmber(s) e-mail address 

At;;:. _.44·~/~78 
Pres~nt Employer Busin~ss Te'ephon~ 

4 fJ, '1 &'/'V'Cot/~ ~A/7'~L ..e.L:> / /17/LPrT1:I/ elf 
Address Occupation 

EdUC3tion; If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, Indicate your grade/school; 

Colle~e, Professional Vocational, or other schools attended Major Subject Date Degree 

List community organiza,tjon$ to which you belong t'lr h~ve balQnge'd (addition:tll information n,ay ~ :;I'ttacred)_ If application 'IS for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch imd service in any U.$, military organiza'llon (retired cor active duty)_ 

Date Name of Oroonilsiion or Branch of Milita~ Officer! Member 

~¥t't19f' C Ih/ C CAillt.¢.- !nflrl1f;/{lp'i$! /1'1 !ij'i,m-! J I lio1J1lo d .h~~o~' 

.. _===3 

I have sufficient time I<> devote I<> this responsibility and will attencf the required mo.tings if I am apPointed to ~II. future v.C<1ncy 
hereby O$rlify that all statemenliS ""nlamed in this appli",,~on are true, 

~ 7 /-.25">;(3 
Signature ----~D.~~~-----------

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after on" year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

liQI.!;; AU COMMISSION APPLICA TIONS ARE PUBLIC F1I=CORD 
Mail, fa:x (586-3030). e.maillmlav~lIe@9Lmilpitas.ca_gov) or drop off your completed application tc 

City Clerk, 455 E, Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 950<5 

1~07/2009 

rcurrie
Redacted 411



CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

VETEI2A;\.8 
PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMATION (in black ink) 

@Mr. 

COMMISSION APPLYING FOR ... 

o Mr •. IM •. 

First Middle Last 

C. CA? \ TOL AVe 
Address: Number Street (apt. # ~ needed), Milpitas CA 95035 

Telephone Number(s) e-mail address 

(o\'JVG\'--l,\oi--> CCiJli'41...Gt:O&) 7tJ 2. - L{ 51/ 
Present Employer Business Telephone 

Lf 011 A L-fVl A OGN Coo(21) I IV", \0 tz. 
Address Occupation 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

College, Professional, Vocational, or other schools attended Major Subject Date Degree 

SI'N c)C,,;e SIt-\: \ G: VI" ,VeQ. S n'! I\O?'~ , . ~~~' :(, OJ "~ 
~ e:vl:::.l'-'T MI'\j\J-'\6BI"'b'V\ I\\jb hb - Avv \ l - G 'S 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached)_ If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Date Name of Organization or Branch of Military Officer I Member 

:3~""'- ~"';5- ot '1\ \)IJ"C,i:) SI",e;,> !'vi" {2-\ '" S CDILVS R6~G LVI'.?Oa.A;l-j E- 'i 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 
~$ A (LeV2-')-IlI,..."( KDlYOO-J!..GL.'i D\')LI:\A-\Z.-06t) 0' \==- vETefZ.A./'J 1- \-\a-D AfV V/-..J( ctu'e !tJ~ ibHr 

~~,..Ju YC.JY!J VET~~5, L' \jc. \-~,'\.0 '6 "fe;Pt12-> 01= S'TVCiE.f-'. LEADc.'1'2-5H.IF> l.,V.n-j '2.. yeAtz-S 

Pr5 f,...-rJ off'L-CQ.. w(2..- A- \-\\...-1.\,11'-10 S'Tv'DefV' l'Jo~--pa...off'r A~ ~'J~l1 ?(2...0,'-"\OTI)v·\:' THG l,.....i~7.5T5 

OF 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am apPointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that all statements contained in this application are true. 

~~ 1/ 0/13 
I Date 

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TlONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail, fax (586-3030), e-mail I I or drop off your completed application to 

City Milpitas, CA 95035 

C:\Documents and Settings\tmeyercalvert.MILPITAS\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK63\Commission Application_Dec 200S.doc 12107/2009 

D 

rcurrie
Redacted 411

rcurrie
Redacted 411



8
General Fund Expenditures by Department- December 2012 

YTD 50.00% 
Budget Expenditures Of Budget 

City Council $ 275,038 $ 107,167 38.96% 
City Manager 464,293 231,353 49.83% 
City Clerk 535,669 223,982 41.81% 

Policy Planning 1,275,000 562,502 44.12% 

Building & Safety 2,138,744 1,003,587 46.92% 

City Attorney 962,188 367,689 38.21% 

Finance 1,964,706 923,242 46.99% 

Public Works/Engineering 6,766,915 3,066,957 45.32% 

Planning 1,758,782 788,109 44.81% 

Police 21,979,149 10,494,100 47.75% 

Fire 14,224,510 7,945,585 55.86% 

Information Svcs 2,093,225 1,171,890 55.98% 

Human Resources & Rec 4,300,665 1,977,106 45.97% 

Non-Departmental 5,549,654 3,037,524 54.73% 

Total 63,013,538 31,338,291 49.73% 



FY 2012/13 Revenue Report 
For Fiscal Year-To-Date December 31,2012 

With comparative Information for the same period in FY 11/12 

FY 11/12 FY 12113 FY 12M13 Revised vs. Budget 
Year to Percentage Year to Percentage Revised Increase (Decrease) 

Actual Date of Actual Budget Date of Budget Projection Amount Percentage 

Revenues 

General Fund 

Property Taxes $ 16,025,450 $ 5,206,219 32.49% $ 17,659,000 $5,390,077 30.52% 16,299,000 $ (1,360,000) -7.70% 
Sales and Use Taxes 19,403,068 6,416,169 33.07% 19,230,000 7,078,514 36.81% 19,814,000 584,000 3.04% 
Franchise Fees 3,218,131 647,891 20.13% 3,121,000 662,810 21.24% 3,220,000 99,000 3.17% 
Business license Tax 299,073 272,918 91.25% 323,000 276,834 85.71% 323,000 0.00% 
Hotel/Motel (TOT) Tax 5,650,430 2,242,691 39.69% 5,575,000 2,575,142 46.19% 6,071,000 496,000 8.90% 
Building Permits 3,244,554 1,958,110 60.35% 3,159,964 2,518,530 79.70% 3,779,000 619,036 19.59% 
Fire Permits and Inspection Fees 1,040,495 269,287 25.88% 889,000 387,014 43.53% 1,004,000 115,000 12.94% 
Fines and Forfeitures 670,610 240,677 35.89% 635,000 191,572 30.17% 525,000 (110,000) -17.32% 
Investment Income 196,646 124,583 63.35% 127,000 61,021 48.05% 185,000 58,000 45.67% 
Intergovernmental 1,561,607 295,385 18.92% 930,716 286,480 30.78% 1,144,000 213,284 22.92% 
Charges for Current Services 4,728,556 2,137,561 45.21% 5,495,358 2,491,115 45.33% 5,230,000 (265,358) 4.83% 
Other Revenue Sources 529,369 202,569 38.27% 442,938 273,188 61.68% 479,000 36,062 8.14% 

Total General Fund Revenue 56.567.989 20.014.062 35.38% 57,587,976 22,192,296 38.54% 58,073,000 485,024 0.84% 

Water M & 0 Fund 
Charges for Services 16,517,821 9,187,118 55.62% 18,739,000 11,419,548 60.94% 18,980,000 241,000 1.29% 

Sewer M & 0 Fund 
Sewer Service Charges 12,383,360 6,217,559 50.21% 12,150,000 6,362,039 52.36% 12,235,000 85,000 0.70% 



*9
CITY OF MILPITAS 

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO STATUS 

PERCENT OF TOTAL DOLLARS INVESTED AT QUARTER ENDED 

TYPE OF SECURITY Dec-11 Sep-12 Jun-12 

LAIF & Money Market 45 49 46 

Corporate Medium Term Notes 10 6 5 

Treasury Notes / Bills 6 6 5 

Federal Agency 39 39 44 

Negotiable CD's * < 1 < 1 0 

100 100 100 

Dec-11 Sep-12 Jun-12 

Market Value 148,727,872 157,334,575 173,201,164 
Cost 148,021,946 156,530,708 172,571,144 

Days 
Weighted Average Maturity 427 410 432 

Rates 
Average Yield 0.66% 0.70% 0.80% 

Benchmarks: 
LAIF 0.33% 0.35% 0.36% 
2 Year Treasury - (12 Month Average) 0.26% 0.26% 0.27% 

* Negotiable CD's as of Sept. 2012 amount to less than one percent of the investment portfolio 

Exhibit 1 

Mar-12 

47 

6 

8 

39 

0 

100 

Mar-12 

156,604,633 
155,841,784 

337 

1.02% 

0.38% 
0.33% 



80 

70 

60 

50 

40 

30 

20 

10 

Exhibit 2 

City of Milpitas Investment Portfolio 
Maturity by Six Month Intervals as of 12/31/12 

o I' I" I' , I' , I' , I' , I' , I' , I' , I' , I' C I' , ( 

Liquid 06/30/2013 12/31/2013 06/30/2014 12/31/2014 06/30/2015 12/31/2015 06/30/2016 12/31/2016 06/30/2017 12/31/2017 01/01/2018 
6 months 12 months 18 months 24 months 30 months 36 months 42 months 48 months 54 months 60 months and after 

Maturity by Six Month InteNals As of 12-31-12 



3.00 

2.80 

2.60 

2.40 

2.20 

2.00 

1.80 

1.60 

1.40 

1.20 

1.00 

0.80 

0.60 

0.40 

0.20 

0.00 

~~ - ...... 

City of Milpitas Investment Portfolio Yields 
Compared to Benchmarks for the 

Quarters Ended 03/31 /10 - 12/31 /12 

.... 
~~ 

~ ----... ..... 
'"' ~ 

~ 
c~~ ~ 

----------- T -------... 

~ 

0 n. ,...., 
-D- ..n.. ---... - 0--u- --D-- ~ 

- L - ------=: -= :; - -

-+ 

-Q -

03/31 /10 06/30/10 09/30/10 12/31 /10 03/31/11 06/30/11 09/30/11 12/31 /11 03/31 /12 06/30/12 09/30/12 12/31 /12 
, -+-- Portfo lio 

-O- LAIF 
- A- 2 Ye ar Treasury - 12 Mo nth Avg Yield 

Exhibit 3 



Investments 

LAIF 

Money Market Funds 

Corporate Notes 

Federal Agency 

Treasury Coupon Securities 

GNMA 

Negotiable CDs-2 

Investments 

Cash 

Passbook/Checking 
(not included in yield calculations) 

Total Cash and Investments 

Total Earnings 

Current Year 

Average Daily Balance 

Effective Rate of Return 

Par 
Value 

63,400,000.00 

3,449,450.34 

14,000,000.00 

57,000,000.00 

9,000,000.00 

32,801.28 

1,000,000.00 

147,882,251.62 

3,036,982.37 

150,919,233.99 

December 31 Month Ending 

84,632.92 

150,021,919.08 

0.66% 

City of Milpitas 
Portfolio Management 

Portfolio Summary 
December 31, 2012 

Market 
Value 

63,471,466.44 

3,449,450.34 

14,224,512.22 

57,487,130.00 

9,058,517 .50 

33,790.31 

1,003,005.28 

148,727,872.09 

3,036,982.37 

151,764,854.46 

Fiscal Year To Date 

560,730.05 

161,135,759.17 

0.69% 

Book 
Value 

63,400,000.00 

3,449,450.34 

14,118,072.85 

57,034,529.99 

·8,987,091 .38 

32,801.28 

1,00'0,000.00 

148,021,945.84 

3,036 ,982.37 

151,058,928.21 

%of Days to YTM YTM 
Portfolio Term Maturity 360 Equiv. 365 Equiv. 

42.83 · 1 0.322 0.326 

2.33 1 0.010 0.010 

9.54 1,096 767 1.157 1.173 

38.53 1,249 794 0.953 0.966 

6.07 1,250 696 0.937 0.950 

0.02 7,187 1,524 8.165 8.279 

0.68 731 645 · 0.691 0.700 

100.00% 669 427 0.679 0.688 

0.019 0.019 

669 427 0.679 0.688 

To the best of my knowledge, this report accurately reflects all City and RDA pooled investments and is in conformity with all State laws and the City's investment policy. A copy of the policy is 
available at the office of the City Clerk. This investment program here; n/how~ provides sufficient cash flow liquidity to meet next six months' estimated expenditures. 

~C-'~ '1~rbi 
Emma C. Karlen, Director ot rmance 

Reporting period 12/01/2012-12/31/2012 

Run Date: 01/16/2013 - 15:55 

, .z;: 

Portfolio MILP 

AC 
PM (PRF ]M1 ) 7.2.5 

Report Ver. 7.3.1 



CUSIP Investment # Issuer 
Average 
Balance 

LAIF 

SYS82000010 

SYS97090401 

82000010 

97090401 

Money Market Funds 

SYS 

Corporate Notes 

36962G4Q4 

594918AF1 

961214BR3 

36962G4X9 

78008TXA7 

36962G5M2 

961214BW2 

06366RJH9 

822582AU6 

38259PAC6 

88579YAD3 

Federal Agency 

31331GG37 

313372PA6 

3133XYHDO 

31331KAQ3 

31331KAH3 

3133XWE70 

3133XWE70 

313371WB8 

313374RB8 

313373XN7 

313379KQ1 

3135GOCU5 

3134G2YJ5 

Run Date: 01/28/2013 -1 3:21 

12020109 

11050301 

11020801 

12092801 

11010701 

12021001 

12011001 

12100201 

12110601 

12120601 

12120602 

12021401 

09080401 

11021601 

10050701 

11020401 

11020701 

10060101A 

10060101B 

10112401 

11072801 

11052701 

12052901 

11091201 

12021002 

Local Agency Invest. Fd - City 

Local Agency Invest. Fd - MPFA 

Subtotal and Average 62,090,322.58 

Dreyfus Treasury & Agency Fund 

Subtotal and Average 

General Electric Capital Corp 

Microsoft Corp 

Westpac Banking Corp 

General Electric Capital Corp 

Royal Bank of Canada 

General Electric Capital Corp 

Westpac Banking Corp 

Bank of Montreal 

Shell Int'l Finance BV 

Google Inc 

3M Company 

7,086,568.52 

Subtotal and Average 13,790,415.02 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Nat'!. Mortgage Assoc 
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp 

City of Milpitas 
Portfolio Management 

Portfolio Details - Investments 
December 31,2012 

Purchase 
Date 

05/03/2011 

02/08/2011 

09/28/2012 

01/07/2011 

02/10/2012 

01/10/2012 

10102/2012 

11/06/2012 

12/06/2012 

12/06/2012 

02/14/2012 

08/04/2009 

02/16/2011 

05/07/2010 

02/04/2011 

02/07/2011 

06/01/2010 

06/01/2010 

11/24/2010 

07/28/2011 

05/27/2011 

05/29/2012 

09/12/2011 

02/10/2012 

Par Value 

30,400,000.00 

33,000,000.00 

63,400,000.00 

3,449,450.34 

3,449,450.34 

2,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,009,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

14,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,600,000.00 

1,400,000.00 

2,000 ,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

Market Value 

30,434,267.82 

33,037,198.62 

63,471,466.44 

3,449,450.34 

3,449,450.34 

2,019,720.00 

1,004,350.00 

1,014,610.00 

1,016,406.25 

1,017,220.00 

2,054,280.00 

1,009,478.75 

998,570.00 

1,003,593.75 

1,045,203.47 

2,041,080.00 

14,224,512.22 

2,003,600.00 

2,006,540.00 

2,013,420.00 

2,019,960.00 

2,021 ,250.00 

1,652,144.00 

1,445,626.00 

2,027,800.00 

2,020,720.00 

3,045 ,630.00 

2,004,320.00 

2,005,060.00 

1,003,900.00 

Stated 
Book Value Rate 

30,400,000.00 

33,000,000.00 

63,400,000.00 

3,449,450.34 

3,449,450.34 

2,004,914.65 

998 ,508.83 

1,013,410.21 

0.326 

0.326 

0.010 

1.875 

0.875 

1.850 

2.100 

1.450 

2.150 

1.125 

0.800 

0.625 

2.125 

Page 1 

YTM Days to Maturity 
S&P 365 Maturity Date 

0.326 

0.326 

0.326 

AAA 0.010 

0.010 

AA+ 1.520 

AAA 1.080 

AA- 0.416 

AA+ 2.164 

AA- 0.680 

AA+ 2.070 

AA- 1.000 

A+ 0.729 

AA 0.557 

AA 0.660 

258 09/16/2013 

269 09/27/2013 

342 12/09/2013 

371 01/07/2014 

667 10/30/2014 

738 01/09/2015 

997 09125/2015 

1,039 11/06/2015 

1,067 12/04/2015 

1,234 05/19/2016 

999 ,376.44 

1,013,939.87 

2,003,103.61 

1,003,575.17 

1,001 ,993 .06 

1,001 ,973.15 

1,049,929.25 

2,027,348.61 1.375 ~~~ 09/29/2016 

14,118,072.85 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,999 ,716.90 

1,995,906.17 

1,995,371 .05 

1,609,496.66 

1,408,309.58 

2,000 ,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

3,002,431 .84 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,001 ,364.12 

2.150 

1.000 

1.625 

1.125 

1.125 

2.500 

2.500 

1.150 

1.000 

1.250 

0.400 

0.625 

0.500 

1.173 

AA+ 2.150 

AA+ 1.000 

AA+ 1.657 

AA+ 1.320 

AA+ 1.330 

AA+ 2.071 

AA+ 2.071 

AA+ 1.150 

AA+ 1.000 

AA+ 1.200 

AA+ 0.400 

AA+ 0.625 

AA+ 0.420 

767 

34 02/04/2013 

135 05/16/2013 

164 06/14/2013 

391 01/27/2014 

422 02/27/2014 

528 06/13/2014 

528 06/13/2014 

569 07/24/2014 

573 07/28/2014 

604 08/28/2014 

605 08/29/2014 

619 09/12/2014 

626 09/19/2014 

Portfolio MILP 

AC 
PM (PRF _PM2 ) 7.2 .5 

Report Ver. 7.3.1 



CUSIP Investment # Issuer 
Average 
Balance 

Federal Agency 

31331JQ55 

3133EADPO 

3135GOHG1 

3136GOKG5 

3134G3CL2 

313379UC1 

3135GOLN1 

3133EADW5 

3133EAQV3 

3134G3Q45 

313375RN9 

313375RN9 

3133EARB6 

3133EAUH9 

3133EAVQ8 

3136GONY3 

3136GOL58 

11020402 

12021701 

12020801 

12060401 . 

11121601 

12062601 

12062801 

12021702 

12051501 

12102201 

12020901 

12062903 

12062902 

12061401 

12062901 

12062701 

12101801 

Treasury Coupon Securities 

912828MT4 

912828PL8 

912828SZ4 

912828RJ1 

GNMA 

36216NNL3 

36217ENG3 

362174T46 

36217FKE8 

Negotiable CDs -2 

06426NGR7 

38143AH81 

Run Date: 01/16/2013 -15:55 

10031501 

10122801 

12062201 

11101101 

88021601A 

87052601C 

87042001C 

87042001A 

12092601 

12100301 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Nat'l. Mortgage Assoc 

Federal Nat'l. Mortgage Assoc 

Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Nat'l. Mortgage Assoc 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Federal Nat'l. Mortgage Assoc 

Federal Nat'l. Mortgage Assoc 
-----------------

Subtotal and Average 

United States Treasury Note 

United States Treasury Note 

United States Treasury Note 

57,034,833.74 

United States Treas_u_ry::...-N_o_te ____ _ 

Subtotal and Average 

GNMA 

GNMA 

GNMA 

GNMA 

Subtotal and Average 

Bank of China - NY 

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 

8,986,716.55 

33,062.66 

City of Milpitas 
Portfolio Management 

Portfolio Details - Investments 
December 31,2012 

Purchase 
Date 

02/04/2011 

02/17/2012 

02/08/2012 

06/04/2012 

12/16/2011 

06/26/2012 

06/28/2012 

02/17/2012 

05/15/2012 

10/22/2012 

02/09/2012 

06/29/2012 

06/29/2012 

06/14/2012 

06/29/2012 

06/27/2012 

10/18/2012 

03/15/2010 

12/28/2010 

06/22/2012 

10/11/2011 

07/01/1997 

07/01/1997 

07/01/1997 

07/01/1997 

09/26/2012 

10103/2012 

Par Value 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000 ,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

57,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

9,000,000.00 

2,588.74 

5,238.91 

7,283 .12 

17,690.51 

32,801.28 

250,000.00 

250,000.00 

Market Value 

2,030,680.00 

2,012,800.00 

2,002,660.00 

2,006 ,520.00 

2,011,420.00 

2,008,000.00 

2,006,960.00 

2,002,860.00 

2,008,340 .00 

1,001,770.00 

2,027,020.00 

2,027,020.00 

1,010,030.00 

3,025,380.00 

2,015,300.00 

2,016,940.00 

1,003,460.00 

57,487,130.00 

2,005,080.00 

2,010,625.00 

3,004,687.50 

2,038 ,125.00 

9,058,517.50 

2,600.03 

5,257 .98 

7,905.32 

18,026.98 

33,790.31 

251 ,025 .05 

251 ,980.23 

Page 2 

Stated YTM Days to Maturity 
Book Value Rate S&P 365 Maturity Date 

1,980,786.69 

2,001 ,262.48 

1,996,928 .09 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

2,017,578.12 

2,022,055 .60 

1,003,322.69 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

57,034,529.99 

1,999,500.46 

1,993,071.33 

2,998,168.41 

1,996,351 .18 

8,987,091.38 

2,588.74 

5,238.91 

7,283.12 

17,690.51 

32,801 .28 

250,000.00 

250,000.00 

1.150 

0.450 

0.375 

0.625 

1.000 

0.550 

0.500 

0.550 

0.550 

0.520 

1.000 

1.000 

0.750 

0.750 

0.800 

1.050 

1.000 

1.375 

0.750 

AA+ 1.714 

AA+ 0.420 

AA+ 0.445 

AA+ 0.625 

AA+ 1.000 

AA+ 0.550 

AA+ 0.500 

AA+ 0.550 

AAA 0.550 

AA+ 0.520 

AA+ 

AA+ 

AA+ 

AA+ 

AA+ 

AA+ 
. AA+ 

0.720 

0.650 

0.650 

0.750 

0.800 

1.050 

1.000 

0.966 

AA+ 1.503 

AA+ 1.121 

643 10106/2014 

777 02/17 {2'0 15 

804 03/16/2015 

884 06/04/2015 

896 06/16/2015 

. 906 06/26/2015 

912 07/02/~015 
958 08/17/2015 

987 09/15/2015 

1,11601/22/2016 

1,165 03/11/2016 

1,165 03/11/2016 

1,232 05/17/2016 

1,260 06/14/2016 

1,430 12/01/2016 

1,638 06/27/2017 

1,751 10/18/2017 

794 

73 03/15/2013 

348 12/15/2013 

0.375 AA+ 0.400 895 06/15/2015 

1.000 AA+ 1.050 1,368 09/30/2016 

9.500 

8.500 

8.000 

8.000 

0.650 

0.850 

---------
0.950 696 

AA+ 9.615 1,383 10/15/2016 

AA+ 8.588 1,444 12/15/2016 

AA+ 8.075 1,534 03/15/2017 

AA+ 8.076 1,565 04/15/2017 

8.279 1,524 

A 0.650 

A- 0.850 

633 09/26/2014 

640 10103/2014 

Portfolio MILP 

AC 
PM (PRF _PM2) 7.2.5 

.~ 



Average 
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance 

Negotiable CDs -2 

36160XV53 12100501 GE Capital Bank 

05568PZ42 12102601 BMW Bank of North America 
. ... f. 

Subtotal and Average 1,000,000.00 

Total and Average 150,021,919.08 

Run Date: 01/16/2013 -15:55 

City of Milpitas 
Portfolio Management 

Portfolio Details - Investments 
December 31,2012 

Purchase 
Date Par Value Market Value 

10105/2012 250,000.00 250,000.00 

10/26/201.2 250,000.00 250,000.00 

1,000,000.00 1,003,005.28 

147,882,251.62 148,727,872.09 

Stated 
Book Value Rate 

250,000.00 0.750 

250,000.00 0.700 

1,000,000.00 

148,021,945.84 

Page 3 

YTM Days to Maturity 
S&P 365 Maturity Date 

AA+ 0.602 643 10106/2014 

NR 0.700 664 10/27/2014 
-------. ---

0.700 

.. 
0.688 

645 

·427 

Portfolio MILP 

AC 
PM (PRF _PM2) 7.2.5 



CUSIP Investment # Issuer 

Money Market Funds 

SYS1000 1000 Cash in .Bank 

SYS1030 1030 Cash with Fiscal Agent 

Average Balance 

Total Cash and Investments 

Run Date: 01/16/2013 - 15:55 

Average 
Balance 

0.00 

150,021,919.08 

City of Milpitas 
Portfolio Management 
Portfolio Details - Cash 

December 31,2012 

Purchase 
Date Par Value 

587,231.00 

2,449,751 .37 

150,919,233.99 

Stated 
Market Value Book Value Rate 

587,231.00 587,231.00 0.100 

2,449,751.37 2,449,751.37 

151,764,854.46 151,058,928.21 

S&P 

Page 4 

YTM Days to 
365 Maturity 

0.100 

0.000 

0.688 427 

Portfolio MILP 
AC 

PM (PRF _PM2) 7.2 .5 



CUSIP Investment # Issuer 

LAIF (Monthly Summary) 

SYS82000010 82000010 Local Agency Invest. Fd - City 

. ~ubtotal 

Money Market Funds (Monthly Summary) 

SYS1000 1000 Cash in Bank 

SYS 12020109 Dreyfus Treasury & Agency Fund 

SYS1030 1030 Cash with Fiscal Agent 

Subtota! 

Corporate Notes 

38259PAC6 12120602 Google Inc 

822582AU6 12120601 Shell Int'I Finance BV 

Subtotal 

Federal Agency 

Subtotal 

Treasury Coupon Securities 

Subtotal 

GNMA 

36217FKE8 87042001A GNMA 

362174T46 87042001C GNMA 

36217ENG3 87052601C GNMA 

36216NNL3 88021601A GNMA 

Subtotal 

Negotiable CDs -2 

Subtotal 

Total 

Run Date: 01/16/201 3 - 15:55 

City of Milpitas 
Portfolio Management 

Activity By Type 
December 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 

Stated Transaction Purchases 
Rate Date or Deposits 

0.326 5,600,000.00 

.5;600,000:00 

0.100 587,231 .00 

0.010 29.39 

2,449,751 .37 . 

3!0~7,011.76 

2.125 12/06/2012 1,049,930.00 

0.625 12/06/2012 1,002,020.00 

2,051,950.00 

8.000 12/15/2012 0.00 

8.000 12/15/2012 0.00 

8.500 12/15/2012 0.00 

9.500 12/15/2012 0.00 

0.00 

10,688,961.76 

Redemptions 
or Withdrawals 

4,700,000.00 

4,700,000.00 

1,207,433.00 

0.00 

2,449,719.10 

3,657,152.10 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

292.00 

128.90 

105.86 

52.02 

578.78 

8,357,730.88 

Balance 

63,40~,000.00 

3,449,450.34 

14,118,072.85 

57,034,529.99 

8,987,091.38 

32,801.28 

1,000,000.00 

148,021,945.84 

Page 1 

Portfolio MILP 

AC 
PM (PRF _PM3) 7.2.5 

Report Ver. 7.3.1 



City of Milpitas 

Investment Broker Dealer List 

Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. 

Dreyfus Institutional Services 

Mischler Financial Group, Inc. 

Morgan Stanley Smith Barney 

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 

Vining Sparks IBG, L.P. 



*11City of Milpitas, California 

BUDGET CHANGE FORM 

From To 
Type of Change 

Acconnt Amonnt Account Amount 
Check one: 

lID Budget Appropriation 100-3586 $ 1,000 100-162-4237 $1,000 

0 Budget Transfer 

Explain the reason for the bndget change: 

Backgronnd: Milpitas Recreation Services applied for a grant from the Walmar! Foundation to obtain funds for 
additional meals for the Senior Nutrition Program at the Barbara Lee Senior Center. The grant was approved and 
awarded to Recreation Services in the amount of$I,OOO which will feed approximately 215 additional meals to seniors 
through June 2013. 

Fiscal Impact: None. The increase in the Senior Nutrition program budget in the amount of $1 ,000 will be offset by the 
grant revenue. 

Recommendation: Accept the Walmar! Foundation grant in the amount of$I,OOO and increase Recreation Division 
budget by $1,000 for the Senior Nutrition Program. 

lID Check if City Council Approval required. Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 

Requested by: Carmen Valdez, Human Resources & Recreation Department Date: January 24,2013 

Reviewed by: Finance Director: ~C,~e-- Date: Ij><r/;~ 
Approved by: City Manager: Date: 

Date approved by City Council, if required: Confirmed bv: 

FII24786N Form 30-222 (Rev. 1192) 



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS ANNEXING 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS TRACT 10139 – SHEA SOUTH 

MAIN (PROJECT NO. 2718) INTO CITY OF MILPITAS COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 2005-1, ANNEXATION NO. 12 

 
WHEREAS, SORA Milpitas, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, is the owner of 

certain real property commonly known as Tract 10139 – Milpitas Multifamily, LLC (APN No. 086-16-
100), more specifically described in the annexation map attached as Exhibit 1.A. to this Resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 1, 2011, the City Council approved the Tentative Map, Site 

Development Permit, and Conditional Use Permit for Tract 10139 – the Abel and Main Street Apartments 
Project, a residential condominium with 204 units in four stories wrapped around parking garage and 
courtyard, and associated off-site improvements located on 2.76 acres at 1201 South Main Street; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 17, 2005 the City Council created by resolution the City of Milpitas 

Community Facilities District No. 2005-1 (“CFD 2005-1”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community 
Facilities Act of 1982, California Government Code Section 53311 et seq.  Each fiscal year, a special tax 
is levied on all assessor’s parcels of residential property in CFD 2005-1 in an amount determined by the 
Council, as described in the attached Exhibit 1.B. to this Resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act, the City Council also 

established a procedure to allow and provide for the annexation of parcels within the boundaries of CFD 
2005-1 in the future without additional hearings, upon the unanimous approval of the owner or owners of 
each parcel or parcels at the time that parcel or those parcels are annexed, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 53339.7; and 

 
WHEREAS, SORA Milpitas, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, now voluntarily 

seeks to annex its property to CFD 2005-1 and to be subject to the levy of a special tax thereunder. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Milpitas hereby finds, determines, and 
resolves as follows: 
 

1. The City Council has considered the full record before it, which may include but is not 
limited to such things as the staff report, testimony by staff and the public, and other 
materials and evidence submitted or provided to it.  Furthermore, the recitals set forth above 
are found to be true and correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
2. Legally valid and unanimous consent to the annexation of real property identified as 

Assessor’s Parcel No. 086-16-100 into CFD 2005-1 has been given, as set forth in the 
Consent and Election to Annex Real Property To An Existing Community Facilities District, 
attached as Exhibit 1.  All prior proceedings and actions taken by the City Council pursuant 
to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act and this Resolution were and are valid and in 
conformity with state and local law. 

 
3. The City Council hereby declares and determines that the territory comprising Annexation 

No. 12, as described in Exhibit 1.A., is now added to and becomes a part of CFD 2005-1.  
City staff is hereby directed to include the property in the annual assessment.  In no event 
shall the annual per-lot assessment exceed the maximum amount authorized by the engineer’s 
report for the CFD 2005-1 in any given fiscal year.  Exhibit 2 attached hereto is provided to 
show all parcels that have been annexed to the CFD 2005-1. 

 

 1 Resolution No. ____ 

*12



 2 Resolution No. ____ 

4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to record an amendment to the Notice of Special Tax Lien 
within fifteen (15) days of the adoption of this Resolution in the Office of the County 
Recorder.  The City Clerk is further directed to file a certified copy of the map, attached as 
Exhibit 1.A., and Exhibit 2, within fifteen (15) days of the adoption of this Resolution in the 
Office of the County Recorder. 

 
5. The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____________ day of ___________,2013 by the City Council 
by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ ________________________________ 
Mary Lavelle, City Clerk Jose S. Esteves, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney 































 

1 

Subdivider:  SORA Milpitas, LLC     File No.:  100.01.238 
Project Name:  1201 S. Main St.      Private Job Account No.:  2718 
         Improvement Plan No.: 2-1163 
         Tract/Parcel Map No.:  10139 
         Council Approval Date:    
         Completion Period:   
 
 
 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
 

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 
 
 THIS SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), executed this   
day of      , 2013, at Milpitas, California, by and between the CITY OF 
MILPITAS, a municipal corporation of the State of California, (hereafter referred to as “CITY”) and  
 
 SORA MILPITAS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
(hereafter referred to as “SUBDIVIDER”). 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
A. SUBDIVIDER filed an application for a one lot subdivision for certain land in the CITY in 

accordance with a tentative map filed with the City Council of the CITY, marked “South Main 
Street Tentative Map” (the “Tentative Map”).  The one-lot subdivision is referred to as and 
designated Tract No. 10139, Shea South Main or the “Property”.  SUBDIVIDER intends to 
develop a 200-unit apartment development (the “Project”) on the Property. 

 
B. The Planning Commission of the CITY approved the Tentative Map. 
 
C. SUBDIVIDER has filed a final subdivision map for Tract No. 10139, Shea South. Main (the 

“Final Map”), and has requested that the same be approved by the City Council of the CITY. 
 
D. SUBDIVIDER, by the Final Map, has offered for dedication to CITY those certain easements 

delineated thereon. 
 
E. The City Council of the CITY has approved the Final Map and has accepted the offers of 

dedication shown thereon, subject to public improvements as required by this Agreement. 
 
F. SUBDIVIDER has agreed to complete additional public improvements consisting of a portion of 

Sewer 11D and a new siphon each as shown on the Public Improvement Plans and Specifications 
(as defined below), and public improvements on the east side of South Main Street (also as shown 
on the Public Improvement Plans and Specifications) as part of the Public Improvements (as 
defined below) to be constructed pursuant to this Agreement.  In return, the City shall waive the 
Sewer Connection Fee of $281,200.00 and shall vacate a portion of South Abel Street as shown 
on the Final Map. 

 



 

 2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants terms and conditions herein 
contained, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the 
parties do hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. SUBDIVIDER agrees that it will construct at its sole cost and expense, all those certain 

public improvements (the “Public Improvements”) listed in the Improvement Plan No. 
2-1163, consisting of _____ sheets (RJA Plans entitled “Off-site Improvement Plans For 
1201 South Main Street”, dated _____________) and specifications approved by said 
City Council on    ___, 2013 (collectively, the “Public 

Improvement Plans and Specifications”) including setting survey monuments and 
identified by Project/Agency Fund Account No. 2718 (hereby referred to and made a part 
hereof the same as if set forth at length herein), and as set forth in those certain 
Conditions of Approval, Shea Residential Project (SD11-0001, MT11-0002, UP11-0032, 
and DB11-0001) (the “Conditions of Approval”) for the SUBDIVIDER. 

 
2. No Public improvement work shall be undertaken by SUBDIVIDER until all Public 

Improvement Plans and Specifications for such Public Improvements have been 
submitted to the City Engineer and have been approved by him/her in writing nor shall 
any change be made in said Public Improvement plans and Specifications or is the work 
of Public Improvement to be done under them without the prior written approval of 
CITY. 

 
3. SUBDIVIDER agrees that said Public Improvements will be constructed under and 

subject to the inspection of and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 
4. SUBDIVIDER agrees that it will construct said Public Improvements in accordance with 

the requirements set forth in said Public Improvement Plans and Specifications referred 
to above, all applicable local, state, and federal codes, ordinances, resolutions and orders 
of CITY enacted or adopted by said City Council as amended or revised as of the date 
hereof, and governing statutes of the State of California or of the United States of 
America. 

 
5. SUBDIVIDER agrees that it will carry out and shall cause its contractors to carry out 

construction of the Public Improvements in conformity with all applicable laws and 
regulations, including without limitation, all applicable federal and state labor laws and 
standards.  To the extent applicable to SUBDIVIDER and its subcontractors and agents, 
shall comply with California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. and regulations adopted 
pursuant thereto ("Prevailing Wage Laws") and shall be responsible for carrying out the 
requirements of such provisions. 

 
SUBDIVIDER shall, and hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless 
the City from and against any and all claims whether known or unknown, and which 
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, are caused by, arise from, or relate to, or are 
alleged to be caused by, arise from, or relate to, the payment or requirement of payment 
of prevailing wages, the failure to comply with any state or federal labor laws, regulations 
or standards in connection with this Agreement, or any act or omission of the CITY or 
SUBDIVIDER related to this Agreement including but not limited to Prevailing Wage 
Laws, or any act or omission of the CITY or SUBDIVIDER related to this Agreement 
with respect to payment or requirement of payment of prevailing wages, whether or not 
any insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such claims.  It 
is further agreed that CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights against 



 

 3 

SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of this indemnity and hold harmless 
agreement because of the acceptance by CITY or SUBDIVIDER’s deposit with CITY of 
any of the insurance policies described in this Agreement. 

 
6. All said Public Improvements shall be completed and ready for final inspection by the 

City Engineer within 24 months of the date of execution of this Agreement by the CITY 
and SUBDIVIDER, subject to force majeure.  If SUBDIVIDER shall fail to complete the 
work required by this Agreement within same time (subject to force majeure), CITY 
may, at its option, and after giving ten (10) days written notice thereof to SUBDIVIDER, 
complete the same and recover the reasonable cost and expense thereof from 
SUBDIVIDER. 

 
7. Upon the execution of this Agreement, SUBDIVIDER shall file and submit security in 

the form required by Government Code Section 66499.1 attached hereto to CITY as 
obligee in the penal sum of two million four hundred thousand Dollars 
($2,400,000.00), conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of each of the terms, 
covenants, and conditions of this Agreement and conditioned upon the full and faithful 
performance of any and all Public Improvement work required pursuant to the Public 
Improvement Plans and Specifications hereunder. 

 
8. In the event that SUBDIVIDER fails to perform any obligation on its part to be 

performed hereunder, SUBDIVIDER agrees to pay all costs and expenses incurred by 
CITY in securing performance of such obligation, and if suit be brought by CITY to 
enforce this Agreement, SUBDIVIDER, agrees to pay costs of suit and reasonable 
attorney’s fees to be fixed by the Court. 

 
9. Upon the execution of this Agreement, SUBDIVIDER shall file and submit security in 

the form required by Government Code Section 66499.2 attached hereto to CITY, as 
obligee, in the penal sum of two million four hundred thousand Dollars 
($2,400,000.00), inuring to the benefit of any contractor, his subcontractors and to 
persons renting equipment or furnishing labor or materials to them for the cost of labor 
and materials furnished in connection with any and all Public Improvement work 
required pursuant to the Public Improvement Plans and Specifications hereunder. 

 
10. SUBDIVIDER agrees to pay or cause to be paid SUBDIVIDER’S costs for labor or 

materials in connection with the work of Public Improvements hereunder. 
 
11. Any faithful performance security required hereunder shall be reduced to 10% of the 

security’s original value for one year after the date of final completion and initial 
acceptance of said work to fulfill the one-year maintenance guarantee period for said 
Public Improvements. 

 
12. Prior to commencing any Public Improvement work pursuant to this Agreement, 

SUBDIVIDER, agrees to obtain an Encroachment Permit from the Engineering Division 
and at SUBDIVIDER’s expense, provide CITY with a duplicate public general liability 
and automobile liability insurance policy with endorsements showing the CITY as 
additional insured which insures CITY, its officers and employees against liability for 
injuries to persons or property (with minimum coverage of $1,000,000 for each person 
and $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $1,000,000 for property damage for each 
occurrence) in connection with work performed by, for or on behalf of SUBDIVIDER.  
Said Policy shall:  (a) be issued by an insurance company authorized to transact business 



 

 4 

in the State of California; (b) be written on the Standard California Comprehensive 
General Liability Policy Form which includes, but not limited to property damage, and 
bodily injury; (c) be written on an occurrence basis; (d) require thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to CITY of cancellation or coverage reduction; (e) provide that it is full 
primary coverage so that if said CITY, its officers and employees have other insurance 
covered by said policy, said other insurance shall be excess insurance; (f) provide that 
said CITY; its officers and employees shall not be precluded from claim against other 
insured parties thereunder; (g) be maintained in effect until final acceptance of the Public 
Improvements.  If SUBDIVIDER does not comply with the provisions of this paragraph, 
CITY may (at its election and in addition to other legal remedies) take out the necessary 
insurance, and SUBDIVIDER shall forthwith repay CITY the reasonable cost of the 
premium therefor. 

 
13. SUBDIVIDER agrees that any general contractor engaged by the SUBDIVIDER for any 

work of improvement under this Agreement will have: 
 

a) In full force and effect, a Worker’s Compensation Insurance as shown by a 
Certificate of Worker’s Compensation Insurance issued by an admitted insurer.  
Said Certificate shall state that there is in existence a valid policy of Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance in a form approved by the California Insurance 
Commissioner.  The certificate shall show the expiration date of the policy, that 
the full deposit premium on the policy has been paid and that the insurer will 
give CITY at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of the cancellation or 
coverage reduction of the policy. 

 
or 

 
b) In full force and effect, a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure issued by the 

Director of Industrial Relations and certified by him to be current, together with a 
Declaration under penalty of perjury in a form satisfactory to the City Attorney 
that said certificate is in full force and effect and that the SUBDIVIDER or its 
general contractor shall promptly notify the CITY in writing in the event of its 
cancellation or coverage reduction at any time prior to the completion of all work 
of the Public Improvement pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
14. SUBDIVIDER agrees to indemnify and save harmless CITY, City Council, City 

Engineer or any other officer or employee of CITY from any and all costs, expenses, 
claims, liabilities or damages, known or unknown, to persons or property heretofore or 
hereafter arising out of or in any way connected with the act, omission or negligence of 
SUBDIVIDER, its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors or any 
officer, agent or employee thereof in connection with performance of this Agreement.    
The foregoing indemnity shall exclude any such claims, liabilities or damages to the 
extent they result from the willful misconduct of the CITY, its City Council, officers, 
employees, or agents. 

 
15. SUBDIVIDER agrees to comply with all Conditions of Approval for the Public 

Improvements to be constructed pursuant to this Agreement, pay all fees, and reasonable 
costs and expenses incurred by CITY in connection with said Public Improvements 
(including, but not limited to:  office check of maps and improvement plans, field 
checking, staking and inspection of street monuments, construction water, wet taps, 



 

 5 

testing and inspection of improvement).  SUBDIVIDER shall maintain Project/Private 
Job Account No.  2718 for this purpose with additional deposits as required by CITY.   

 
 
A. Fees to be paid upon execution of this Agreement: 
 

a)     Plan-check and Inspection Deposit  
(10% of construction cost)        

 (PJ2718-13-2500)   $240,000.00 

     

b) Right-of-Way Reimbursement Fee  (310-3614-XX50)   Not Applicable 

     

c)      Improvement Reimbursement Fee  (310-3614-XX70) Not Applicable 

     

d)      Other     (XXX-XXX-XX) Not Applicable 

     

   Sub-total $240,000.00 

   

                        B. Fees to be paid at the time of building permit issuance: 
 

a)     Water Connection Fee 
(200U X $1,164/U) 

 (402-3715) $232,800.00 

     

b) Potable Water Meter Fee  (400-3662) $TBD 

     

c) Water System Capacity Impact Fee 
(As of July 2012, to be adjusted by ENR at the time of payment) 

 (402-3718) $71,060.00 

     

d)      Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee-  
(200U X $1,406/U) waived ($281,200.00) 

 (452-3715) $0.00 

     

e)      Sewer Treatment Plant Fee 
(200U X $690/U) 

 (452-3714) $138,000.00 

     

f)      Sewage Capacity Impact Fee 
(As of July 2012, to be adjusted by ENR at the time of payment) 

 (452-3718) $393,839.00 

     

g) Main Sewage Pumping Station Impact Fee 
(As of July 2012, to be adjusted by ENR at the time of payment) 

 (452-3718) $119,727.00 

     

h)      Storm Drain Connection Fee  (340-3711) $46,288.00 

     

i) Parksite Fee 
1. Park Dedication In-Lieu Fee 
2. PUD Park Fee 

  
(320-3712) 
(320-3712) 

 
$2,138,794.00 

 

     

j) Calaveras Blvd. Widening Impact Fee 
(As of July 2012, to be adjusted by ENR at the time of payment) 

 (312-3718) 49,518.00 

     

k) Fair Share Traffic Impact Fee  (312-3718) $116,840.00 

     



 

 6 

l) Permit Automation Fee  
(2.5% of total (items a thru l) 

 (505-3601) $82,672.00 

     

   Sub-total $3,389,538.00 

     

   Total $3,629,538.00 

 

16. Upon completion of the Public Improvements pursuant to this Agreement and before City 
Initial Acceptance of the work thereof, SUBDIVIDER shall provide the City a complete 
original mylar of “Record Drawing” showing all the changes from the original Public 
Improvement Plans and Specifications.  

 
17. Upon completion of the Public Improvements, and before City Council final acceptance 

thereof, SUBDIVIDER shall be billed for and pay all costs identified in Project/Agency 
Fund Account No. 2718 that are required to be paid prior to final acceptance (to the 
extent not previously paid) or shall be promptly refunded any overpayments of such 
costs. 

 
18. Any easement or right-of-way necessary for the completion of any of the Public 

Improvements required hereunder shall be acquired by SUBDIVIDER at its sole cost and 
expense.  In the event that eminent domain proceedings are necessary for the acquisition 
of any such easement or right-of-way, SUBDIVIDER agrees to pay all reasonable 
engineering fees and costs, reasonable legal fees and costs, and other reasonable 
incidental costs sustained by CITY in connection with said eminent domain proceedings 
and any condemnation award and damages (including all reasonable costs awarded in 
said eminent domain proceedings).  SUBDIVIDER further agrees that prior to the 
institution of any eminent domain proceedings and upon ten (10) days written notice 
from CITY, SUBDIVIDER will deposit such sums as are reasonably determined by City 
Council to be necessary to defray said fees, costs, awards, and damages. 

 
19. CITY will accept on behalf of the public, the dedication of the streets, easements, and 

other Public Improvements offered for dedication, provided however, that as a condition 
precedent to said initial acceptance, SUBDIVIDER shall perform the covenants, terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
20. SUBDIVIDER agrees to comply with all requirements set forth on Exhibit “A” (attached 

hereto, hereby referred to and made a part hereof). 
 
21. This Agreement shall be deemed to include any final conditions imposed by CITY upon 

the approval of the Tentative Map and the Final Map related to the Public Improvements. 
 
22. SUBDIVIDER agrees that, upon ten (10) days written notice from CITY, it will promptly 

remedy, restore, repair or replace, at its sole expense and to the satisfaction of City 
Engineer, all defects, damages or imperfections of the Public Improvements due to or 
arising from faulty materials or workmanship appearing within a period of one-year after 
the date of initial acceptance of said Public Improvements.  If SUBDIVIDER shall fail to 
remedy, restore, repair, or replace said defects, damages or imperfections as herein 
required, CITY may at its option, do so and recover the reasonable cost and expense 
thereof from SUBDIVIDER. 

 



 

 7 

23. This Agreement shall bind the heirs, administrators, executors, successors, assigns and 
transferees of SUBDIVIDER for the Term of this Agreement (as defined below).  It is 
agreed and understood that the covenants in this Agreement shall run with the land and 
are for the benefit of the other lands in the CITY, and are made by SUBDIVIDER 
expressly, its heirs, administrators, executors, successors, assigns and transferees and to 
the CITY, its successors and assigns.  The “Term” of this Agreement shall commence on 
the date this Agreement is fully executed by CITY and SUBDIVIDER and shall 
terminate upon final acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City Council of the 
CITY.  

 
24. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to be a waiver, release or 

extension of any provision heretofore required by ordinance, resolution or order of the 
City Council of the CITY. 

 
25. Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement.  All covenants herein contained shall be 

deemed to be conditions.  The singular shall include the plural; the masculine gender 
shall include the feminine and neuter gender.  All comments presented by SUBDIVIDER 
hereunder shall be subject to approval of the City Attorney as to form. 

 
26. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without 

reference to its conflict of laws or choice of law provisions. 
 



 

 8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the day and year 
first above written. 
 
*Signed this    day of     , 2013. 
 
CITY:      SUBDIVIDER: 
 
CITY OF MILPITAS    SORA Milpitas, LLC, 
      a Delaware limited liability company 
 
      By: Shea Properties Management Company, Inc. 
       a Delaware corporation, 
By: _____________________________  Its manager 

Thomas C. Williams, City Manager 
       By: __________________________ 
       Name: __________________________ 
       Title: __________________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM THIS   By: __________________________ 
       Name: __________________________ 
  day of    , 2013   Title: __________________________ 
 
By:      

Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY THIS 
  
  day of    , 2013 
 
By:       

Kathleen E. Phalen, Acting City Engineer 
 
* Date should be same as date on Page 1 of 7. 
 
** It is essential that the signatures be acknowledged before a California Notary Public and attach 

proper acknowledgment. 
 
 



 

 9 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 
All terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement to which this Exhibit “A” is attached. 
 

1.  SUBDIVIDER agrees to complete Water Service Agreements required by the Conditions of 
Approval. 

 

2.  The SUBDIVIDER agrees to complete the construction of all Public Improvements, 
including the setting of all survey monuments, before the CITY issuance of the Occupancy 
Permit/Final Inspection of the last residential building. 

 
3.  The SUBDIVIDER agrees to execute a petition to annex and establish, with respect to the 

property, the Special taxes levied by a Community Facility District (CFD) No. 2005-1 (Public 

Services) for the purpose of maintaining the public services, upon execution of this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 

 10 

Principal:  SORA Milpitas, LLC      Project No. PJ2718 
Project Name:  1201 S. Main St.      Bond No. ________________ 
 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
 

 WHEREAS, SORA Milpitas, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Principal”), has entered into 
that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement, dated ________________, 2013 (“Agreement”) with the City 
of Milpitas (“City”) whereby Principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, 
which said Agreement identified as “Public Improvements” is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said Agreement to furnish a bond for the faithful 
performance of said Agreement: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, we the Principal and       , as surety, are 
held and firmly bound unto the City in the penal sum of two million four hundred thousand Dollars 
($2,400,000.00), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum iwell and truly to be made, we 
bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors and administrators, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
 The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bonded principal, it heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and 
perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in said Agreement and any alteration thereof made as therein 
provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, and in all 
respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, 
agents and employees, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be 
and remain in full force and effect. 
 
 As part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefor, there shall 
be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in 
successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered. 
 
 The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the 
terms of the Agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same 
shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension 
of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Agreement or the work or to the specifications. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety above 
named on     , 2013. 
 
SUBDIVIDER:      SURETY:      
 
BY:       BY:       
  (write name)      (write name) 
 
BY:       BY:       
  (type name and office)     (type name and office) 
 
       Address of Surety:     
              



 

 11 

 
VERIFICATION 

 
 
 
I declare under the penalty of perjury that I have authority to execute this bond on behalf of the above-named 
surety. 
 
 
Executed at     , California, on the    day of    , 2013. 
 
 
 
               
          (Name) 
 
 
               
          (Type Name) 
 
       Address:       
 
               
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me, a  ) 
Notary Public, this    day of  ) 
    , 2013. ) THIS JURAT MUST BE COMPLETED 
      ) BY A NOTARY IF THE VERIFICATION 
      ) IS EXECUTED OUTSIDE OF CALIFORNIA 
      ) 
      ) 
  (Sign) 
 
 
      
  (Type) 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 

NOTE: A Notary acknowledgment must be completed for signatures of both principal and surety.  Use 
correct form.  A power of attorney is not enough. 

 
 
Form Approved: 
 
        
 

 



 

 12 

Principal:  SORA Milpitas, LLC       Project No. PJ2718 
Project Name:  1201 S. Main St.       Bond No. ________________ 
 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 
 

 WHEREAS, SORA Milpitas, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Principal”), has entered into 
that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement, dated ________________, 2013 (“Agreement”) with the City 
of Milpitas (“City”) whereby Principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, 
which said Agreement identified as “Public Improvements” is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the terms of the Agreement, the Principal is required before entering upon the 
performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City to secure the claims to which 
reference is made in Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, said Principal and the undersigned as corporate surety are held firmly bound unto 
the City, and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material suppliers, and other persons employed in the 
performance of the aforesaid Agreement and referred to in Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of 
Division 4 of the Civil Code in the sum of two million four hundred thousand Dollars ($2,400,000.00), for 
materials furnished or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with 
respect to such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount 
hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the face amount 
thereof, costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in 
successfully enforcing this obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the Court, and to be taxed as costs and to be 
included in the judgment therein rendered. 
 
 It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, 
companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of 
Division 4 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought upon this 
bond. 
 
Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it 
shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
 The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the 
terms of said Agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on 
this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension, alteration or addition. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and surety above 
named on     , 2013. 
 
PRINCIPAL:      SURETY:      
 
BY:       BY:       
  (write name)      (write name) 
 
BY:       BY:       
  (type name and office)     (type name and office) 
 
       Address of Surety:     



 

 13 

VERIFICATION 
 
 
 
I declare under the penalty of perjury that I have authority to execute this bond on behalf of the above-named 
surety. 
 
 
Executed at     , California, on the    day of    , 2013. 
 
 
 
               
          (Name) 
 
 
               
          (Type Name) 
 
       Address:       
 
               
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me, a  ) 
Notary Public, this    day of  ) 
    , 2013. ) THIS JURAT MUST BE COMPLETED 
      ) BY A NOTARY IF THE VERIFICATION 
      ) IS EXECUTED OUTSIDE OF CALIFORNIA 
      ) 
      ) 
  (Sign) 
 
 
      
  (Type) 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 

NOTE: A Notary acknowledgment must be completed for signatures of both principal and surety.  Use 
correct form.  A power of attorney is not enough. 

 
 
 
Form Approved: 
 
        
 



 

 14 

Principal:  SORA Milpitas, LLC      Project No. PJ2718 
Project Name:  1201 S. Main St.      Bond No. ________________ 
 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

SURVEY MONUMENTATION BOND 
 

 WHEREAS, the SORA Milpitas, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Principal”) has 
entered into that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement, dated ________________, 2013 
(“Agreement”) with the City of Milpitas (“City”) whereby Principal agrees to install and complete certain 

designated public improvements, which said Agreement identified as “Public Improvements”, including 
setting of survey monuments by an engineer or surveyor prior to a certain date. 
 

WHEREAS, said Agreement (and any City approved plans and specifications in connection 
therewith) is hereby referred to and made a part hereof, with like force an effect as it herein at length set 
forth: 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, we the Principal and       , as 
surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City, and that Engineer or Surveyor, who set said survey 
monuments in the penal sum of            
Dollars ($    ), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which 
sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors and administrators, 
jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 

 The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bonded principal shall well and truly 
keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in said Agreement and any alteration thereof 
on his or their part, to be kept and performed, at the time and in the manner therein specified, and shall 
indemnify and save harmless the City of Milpitas, its officers, agents and employees as therein stipulated, 
then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 

 As part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefor, 
there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s fees, 
incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any 
judgment rendered. 
 

 The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to 
the terms of the Agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its 
obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration 
or addition. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety 
above named on     , 2013. 
 
PRINCIPAL:     SURETY:       
 
BY:       BY:       
  (write name)      (write name) 
 
BY:       BY:       
  (type name and office)     (type name and office) 
 
      Address of Surety: __________________________ 



 

 15 

 
VERIFICATION 

 
 
 
I declare under the penalty of perjury that I have authority to execute this bond on behalf of the above-
named surety. 
 
 
Executed at     , California, on the    day of    , 2013. 
 
 
 
              
          (Name) 
 
 
              
          (Type Name) 
 
       Address:      
 
              
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me, a  ) 
Notary Public, this    day of  ) 
    , 2013. ) THIS JURAT MUST BE COMPLETED 
      ) BY A NOTARY IF THE VERIFICATION 
      ) IS EXECUTED OUTSIDE OF CALIFORNIA 
      ) 
      ) 
  (Sign) 
 
 
      
  (Type) 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 

NOTE: A Notary acknowledgment must be completed for signatures of both principal and surety.  
Use correct form.  A power of attorney is not enough. 

 
 
Form Approved: 
 
        
 
 



 

 16 

Subdivider:  SORA Milpitas, LLC       Project No. PJ2718 
 
Project Name:  1201 S. Main St.     
 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

 

CERTIFICATE RELATING TO WORKER’S COMPENSATION 

INSURANCE PURSUANT TO LABOR CODE SECTION 3800 

 

 
(Subdivision) 

 
 

 I, THE UNDERSIGNED, HEREBY CERTIFY that at all times during the performance of any work of 
improvement under agreement with the City of Milpitas.  (Check one of the following): 
 
 
  Any general contractor engaged by me for said work will have in full force and effect Worker’s 

Compensation Insurance pursuant to the attached certificate of Worker’s Compensation Insurance 
issued by an admitted insurer.  Said Certificate shall state that there is in existence a valid policy 
of Worker’s Compensation Insurance in a form approved by the California Insurance 
Commissioner.  The certificate shall show the expiration date of the policy, that the full deposit 
premium on the policy has been paid and that the insurer will give City at least ten days advance 
notice of the cancellation of the policy (an exact copy or duplicate of the Certificate of Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance certified by the Director of Industrial Relations or the insurer may be 
attached). 

 
  Or has in full force and effect and have attached hereto a Certificate of Consent to Self-insure 

issued by the Director of Industrial Relations or the insurer may be attached). 
 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and executed on      
at      . 
 (Date)     (City) 
 
        By:       
 
               
          Official Title 
 
      On behalf of:        
          Contractor 
 
NOTE: YOUR CERTIFICATE OF WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE MUST BE ATTACHED 

AND MUST MEET THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH ABOVE. 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT IF YOU HAVE ANYONE WORKING FOR OR WITH YOU, YOU MAY BE 
REQUIRED TO HAVE WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE.  FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, 
CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS. 



 

 17 

Subdivider:  SORA Milpitas, LLC       Project No. PJ2718 
 
Project Name:  1201 S. Main St.     
 
 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

CERTIFICATE OF WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE 

 

 

Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 3800, the undersigned Insurer certifies that it is an admitted Worker’s 
Compensation Insurer, that it has issued a valid policy of Worker’s Compensation Insurance in a form approved 
by the California Insurance Commissioner (bearing policy number    ) to    
   in connection with the above project, title and subdivider.  Said policy is now in full force and 
effect and the full deposit premium has been paid.  At least 10 days advance notice of the cancellation of said 
policy will be given to the City of Milpitas.  The expiration date on said policy is     . 
 
 
Dated:       
 
               
  INSURANCE COMPANY  AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Signature) 
 
Address:               
       AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Type Name) 
 
       Address:       
 
               
 
               
 

VERIFICATION 
 
I declare under the penalty of perjury that I am authorized to sign this Certificate on behalf of the above-named 
insurer.  Executed at     , California, on the   day of    , 2013.  ** 
 
 
               
         Authorized Signatory (Sign) 
 
               
          (Type Name) 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, a 
Notary Public, this    day of  
    , 2013. 
 
        
   (Sign) 
 
        
   (Type Name) 



 

 18 

Subdivider:  SORA Milpitas, LLC       Project No. PJ2718 
 
Project Name:  1201 S. Main St.     
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF GENERAL LIABILITY AND AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
The undersigned insurance company certifies to the City of Milpitas, California, that it has issued a general public 
liability insurance policy, policy number       to     
   in connection with a work of improvement generally described 
as Street and underground improvement on       .  The policy names the 
City of Milpitas, its officers and employees (as additional insured) and insures said City, officers and employees 
against liability arising out of activities, including but not limited to, coverage for all work performed by or on 
behalf of permittee, products and completed operations of the permittee; the premises owned, occupied or used by 
the permittee; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the permittee in the following minimum 
amounts and for the following periods: 
 
 
COVERAGE POLICY NUMBER POLICY PERIOD  MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY 
(1) Bodily Injury    $1,000,000 each person ) 
     $1,000,000 each occurrence )  
         ) * 
(2) Property Damage    $1,000,000 each occurrence ) 
     $1,000,000 aggregate ) 
 
This policy provides:  (1) primary coverage for additional insured parties; if said additional insured have other 
insurance against loss covered by this policy, the other insurance shall be excess insurance only; (2) that said 
additional insured parties are not precluded from claim under this policy against other insured parties; and (3) 
each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, 
voided, canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice 
by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City Clerk. 
 
        Address of Signatory: 
Insurance Company 
               
Authorized Signature (Sign) 
               
Authorized Signature (Type) 
 
*  If project involves less than $50,000,  City will accept $300,000/$50,000 
               

VERIFICATION 
I declare under the penalty of perjury that I am authorized to sign this Certificate on behalf of the above-named 
insurer.  Executed at     , California, on the    day of    , 2013.  
** 
               
         Authorized Signatory (Sign) 
 
               
          (Type Name) 



 

 19 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, a 
Notary Public, this    day of  
    , 2013. 
 
               
   (Sign)        (Type Name) 
 
**  If this certificate is executed outside of California, it must be sworn to before a Notary Public. 
 
FORM APPROVED:    , 2013, by        
 
 







*13RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS 
APPROVING NATIONAL METER AND AUTOMATION AS THE SOLE SOURCE FOR BADGER WATER 

METER PRODUCTS AND APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF BADGER WATER METER PRODUCTS FROM 
NATIONAL METER AND AUTOMATION 

WHEREAS, Section I-2-3.13 of the Milpitas Mnnicipal Code authorizes the City Council to approve the 
standardization of supplies or services based on the determination of the Purchasing Agent that the standardization of 
supplies and materials to be used in public works projects will provide a significant cost savings to the City; and 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2007, the City Council approved Badger water meters as the standard brand of water 
meters for the City of Milpitas; and 

WHEREAS, Section I-2-3.09 of the Milpitas Mnnicipal Code authorizes the City Council to award contracts 
without competition when the Purchasing Agent detennines that there is only one source for the required supply or service; 
and 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2007, the City Conncil approved the designation of National Meter and Automation as the 
Sole Source distributer for Badger water meter products, which designation expired after five years on May 15, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, after conducting a good faith review of the currently available sources for Badger water meter 
products, the City's Purchasing Agent has again detennined that National Meter and Automation remains the sole distributor 
of Badger water meter products in California. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Milpitas hereby finds, detennines, and resolves as follows: 

I. The City Conncil has considered the full record before it, which may include but is not limited to such things 
as the staff report, testimony by staff and the public, and other materials and evidence submitted or provided 
to it. Furthennore, the recitals set forth above are fonnd to be true and correct and are incorporated herein 
by reference. 

2. National Meter and Automation is hereby designated as the Sole Source distributor for Badger water meter 
products for the City of Milpitas. 

3. The City Manager is authorized to purchase from National Meter and Automation, as a sole source for the 
procurement, Badger water meter products for an amount not to exceed $70,092.76. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ day of ____ , 2013, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk Jose S. Esteves, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney 

Resolution No. _ 



ATIONAl 
QUOTATION 

DATE: 1/25/2013 

METER AND AUTOMATION, INC. 
2250 Apollo Way #300 
Santa Rosa, CA 95407 

TERMS: Net 30 Days 
SHIP VIA: 

(707) 575-0700 PO#: 
(707) 575-3786 QUOTED BY: Kathy Richards 

Bill To: 

City of Milpitas 
1265 North Milpitas Blvd. 
Milpitas, CA 95035 

Description 

City of Milpitas 
1265 North Milpitas Blvd. 
Milpitas, CA 95035 
Attn: Eliza Nunez 

11/2" Bronze Turbine Meter Model 160 w/ RTR, CF, Data Profiling 

2" Bronze Turbine Meter Model 1200 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling 

glt Bronze Combo Meter Model 8CS w/RTR, CF, D.ata Profiling 

8" Bronze Plate Strainer 

11/2" Bronze Turbine Meter Model 160 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling (Reclaimed) 

5/8'; Bronze Disc Meter Model 25 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling 

1" Bronze Disc Meter Model 70 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling 

11/2" Bronze Disc Meter Model 120 w/RTR, Cf, Data Profiling 

2" Bronze Disc Meter Model 170 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling 

11/2" Bronze Turbine Meter Model 160 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling 

2" Bronze l'urbine Meter Model T200 w/RTR~ CF, Data Profiting 

11/2" Bronze Turbine Meter Model 160 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling (Reclaimed) 

2" Bronze Turbine Meter Model 1200 w/RTR, CF, Data Profiling (Reclaimed) 

Avail: Stock to 4 weeks 

F.O.B.: Santa Rosa, CA 

Remit to: 
National Meter & Automation, Inc. 

PO Box 5429 
Greenwood \lillage, CO 80155·5429 

Santa Clara County 

Prices Subject to review after: Dec. 31, 2013 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Ship To: 

Qty Unit Price 

1 704.20 

1 784.80 

2 6,149.75 

2 1,455.00 

3 755.50 

11 190.65 

52 286.10 

9 451.77 

10 608.90 

7 704.20 

7 784.80 

5 755.50 

5 846.50 

Subtotal 

8.63% Tax 

Freight 

Total 

Amount 

$ 704.20 

$ 784.80 

$ 12,299.50 

$ 2,910.00 

$ 2,266.50 

$ 2,097.15 

$ 14,877.20 

$ 4,065.93 

$ 6,089.00 

$ 4,92~.40 

$ 5,493.60 

$ 3,777.50 

$ 4,232.50 

$ 64,527.28 

$ 5,565.48 

FFA 

$ 70,092.76 



*14City of Milpitas, California 

BUDGET CHANGE FORM 

From To 
Type of Change 

Acconnt Amonnt Acconnt Amonnt 
Check one: 

100-3215 $ 55,482 100-531-4237 $ 55,482 
00 Bndget Appropriation 100-3601 14,838 100-2940 14,838 

D Bndget Transfer 

Explain the reason for the bndget change: 

Backgronnd: Lyon Communities Developer has requested to extend employment of a dedicated full time building 
inspector for Lyon Milpitas Apartments Project to provide continuous and uninterrupted inspection service for the 
remaining duration of construction. This service was p;ovided to the developer since December 1 '" 2011 by the City of 
Milpitas and proved to be beneficial to both sides. It allows City to continue to provide high level of customer service by 
considerably reducing the number of re-inspections, streamlining and maintaining construction schedule and minimizing 
the number of construction revisions. Existing workload does not allow us to provide a dedicated building inspector 
from our current staff to the project and necessitate extending employment of a temporary inspector on a contractual 
basis at the annual cost of $140,640. Previously developer has paid for the full cost of the inspection service for fourteen 
months, which included salary for the dedicated building inspector and administrative fee. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Recommendation: 
1. Approve developer's request to continue employment of a temporary dedicated building inspector. 

2. Approve budget appropriation of $70,320, less the administrative fee, into the Building and Safety Department's 

budget for five months until July 31, 2013. 

[ID Check if City Conncil Approval reqnired. Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 

Requested by: Department Head: Keyvan Irannejad Date: January 24,2013 

Reviewed by: Finance Director: I;;iv I/>G. /. - Date: ~II~ 
Approved by: City Manager: Date: 

Date approved by City Council, if required: Confirmed by: 

FII24786N Form 30-222 (Rev. 1192) 



*15City of Milpitas, California 

BUDGET CHANGE FORM 

From To 
Type of Change 

Acconnt Amonnt Acconnt Amonnt 
Check one: 

[8] Bndget Appropriation 100-3215 $ 36,989 100-531-4112 $ 36,989 

0 
100-3601 9,891 100-2940 9,891 

Bndget Transfer 

Explain the reason for the bndget change: 

Backgronnd: Due to the current peak of work load, The Resmark Companies, is requesting a dedicated full time 
building inspector for construction of Coyote Creek condominiums and townhomes project to provide continuous and 
uninterrupted inspection service for the duration of construction. Such service was provided earlier by the City of 
Milpitas to other major projects and proved to be beneficial to both sides. It allows City to provide high level of quality 
and customer service by considerably reducing the number of re-inspections, streamlining and maintaining construction 
schedule and minimizing the number of construction revisions. Present workload does not allow the department to 
provide a dedicated building inspector from our current staff to the project and necessitate hiring a temporary inspector 
at the annual cost of $140,640. The developer will pay the full cost of the inspection service, which includes salary for 
the dedicated building inspector and administrative fee. 

Fiscal Impact: None. The developer will pay the full cost of the inspection service. 

Recommendation: 
I. Approve and authorize developer's request for the employment of a temporary building inspector. 
2. Approve budget appropriation of$46,880, less the administrative fee, into the Building and Safety Department's 

budget for remaining four months of 20 12-13 fiscal year. 

I&l Check if City Council Approval required. Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 

Requested by: Keyvan Irannejad, Bnilding and Safety Department Date: January 24, 2013 

Reviewed by: Finance Director: t;\ c-- . 'KrJ-" Date: I/)<rh~ 
Approved by: City Manager: Date: 

Date approved by City Council, if required: Confirmed by: 

FII24786N Form 30-222 (Rev. 1192) 



*16PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MILPITAS AND RMC Water and Environment, Inc. 

THIS AGREEMENT for consulting services is made by and between the City of Milpitas ("City") 
and RMC Water and Environment, Inc ("Consultant") as of February 5, 2013. . 

AGREEMENT 

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall provide to City the services described in the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A at the time and 
place and in the manner specified therein. In the event of a conflict in or inconsistency between the terms 
of this Agreement and Exhibit A, the Agreement shall prevail. 

1.1 Term of Services. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date first noted above 
and shall end on December 31, 2013, the date of completion specified in Exhibit A, and 
Consultant shall complete all the work described in Exhibit A prior to that date, unless the 
term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as provided for in Section 8. 
The time provided to Consultant to complete the services required by this Agreement shall 
not affect the City's right to terminate the Agreement, as provided for in Section 8. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this 
Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent 
practitioner of the profession in which Consultant is engaged in the geographical area in 
which Consultant practices its profession. Consultant shall prepare all work products 
required by this Agreement in a substantial, first-class manner and shall conform to the 
standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant's profession. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
services pursuant to this Agreement. Exhibit A shall name any specific personnel who shall 
be performing services. In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any time during the 
term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of any such persons, Consultant shall, 
immediately upon receiving notice from City of such desire of City, reassign such person or 
persons. 

1.4 Time. Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance 
provided in Section 1.1 above and to complete Consultant's obligations hereunder. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. City hereby agrees to pay Consultant a guaranteed maximum price 
not to exceed $ 88,000.00 for all services to be performed and reimbursable costs incurred under this 
Agreement. City shall pay Consultant for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in 
the manner set forth herein. The payments specified below shall be the only payments from City to 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 1 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

Consultant for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall submit all invoices to City in 
the manner specified herein. Except as specifically authorized by City, Consultant shall not bill City for 
duplicate services performed by more than one person. 

Consultant and City acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by City to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing the services required hereunder, 
including salaries and benefits of employees and subcontractors of Consultant. Hourly rates for personnel 
performing services shall be as shown in Exhibit B. Consequently, the parties further agree that 
compensation hereunder is intended to include the costs of contributions to any pensions and/or annuities 
to which Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors may be eligible. City therefore has no 
responsibility for such contributions beyond compensation required under this Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the 
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs 
incurred during the billing period. Invoices shall contain the following information: 

• Serial identification of bills; 
• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• A Task Summary containing the original contract amount, the amount of prior 

billings, the total due this period, the balance available under the Agreement, and 
the percentage of completion, if applicable; 

• At City's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time 
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing 
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and 
each reimbursable expense; 

• The total number of hours of work performed under the Agreement by Consultant 
and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services 
hereunder, as well as a separate notice when the total number of hours of work by 
Consultant and any individual employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant 
reaches or exceeds 800 hours, which shall include an estimate of the time 
necessary to complete the work described in Exhibit A; 

• The Consultant's signature. 

2.2 Monthly Payment. City shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, for 
services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. City 
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the 
requirements above and is otherwise acceptable to the City to pay Consultant. In the 
event that an invoice is not acceptable to the City, said invoice shall be returned to 
Consultant within thirty (30) days of the City's receipt of the invoice with a detailed 
explanation of the deficiency. City's obligation to pay a returned invoice shall not arise 
earlier than thirty (30) days after resubmission of the corrected invoice. 

2.3 Total Payment. City shall pay for the services to be rendered by Consultant pursuant to 
this Agreement. City shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 2 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

incurred by Consultant in rendering services pursuant to this Agreement. City shall make 
no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement. 

In no event shall Consultant submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum 
amount of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement, 
unless the Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly 
executed change order or amendment. In the event that Consultant identifies additional 
work outside the scope of services specified in Exhibit A that may be required to complete 
the work required under this Agreement, Consultant shall immediately notify the City and 
shall provide a written not-to-exceed price for performing this additional work. 

2.4 Hourly Fees. Fees for work performed by Consultant on an hourly basis shall not exceed 
the amounts shown on Exhibit B. 

2.5 Reimbursable Expenses. There are no provisions for reimbursable expenses under this 
Agreement. 

2.6 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of employment taxes 
incurred under this Agreement and any other applicable federal or state taxes. 

2.7 Payment upon Termination. In the event that the City or Consultant terminates this 
Agreement pursuant to Section 8, the City shall compensate the Consultant for all 
outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily completed as 
of the date of written notice of termination. Consultant shall maintain adequate logs and 
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date. The City shall have no obligation 
to compensate Consultant for work not verified by logs or timesheets. 

2.8 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any 
services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a 
written Notice to Proceed from the City. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the services 
required by this Agreement. City shall make available to Consultant only the facilities and equipment listed 
in this section, and only under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

City shall furnish physical facilities such as desks, filing cabinets, and conference space, as may be 
reasonably necessary for Consultant's use while consulting with City employees and reviewing records and 
the information in possession of the City. The location, quantity, and time of furnishing those facilities shall 
be in the sole discretion of City. In no event shall City be obligated to furnish any facility that may involve 
incurring any direct expense, including but not limited to computer, cellular telephone, long-distance 
telephone, or other communication charges, vehicles, and reproduction facilities. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 3 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO,: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

If the performance of the work specified in Exhibit A requires destructive testing or other work within the 
City's public right-of-way, Consultant, or Consultant's subconsultant, shall obtain an encroachment permit 
from the City, 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant shall procure "occurrence coverage" insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 
damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by 
the Consultant and its agents, representatives, employees, and subcontractors, Consultant shall provide 
proof satisfactory to City of such insurance that meets the requirements of this section and under forms of 
insurance satisfactory in all respects to the City, Consultant shall maintain the insurance policies required 
by this section throughout the term of this Agreement and shall produce said pOlicies to the City upon 
demand, The cost of such insurance shall be included in the Consultant's price, Consultant shall not allow 
any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until Consultant has obtained all insurance 
required herein for the subcontractor(s) and provided evidence thereof to City, Verification of the required 
insurance shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution, 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain 
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any 
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant. The Statutory Workers' 
Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000,00) per accident. In the alternative, 
Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to meet those requirements, but only if 
the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code, Determination of whether a self-insurance program meets the standards of the 
Labor Code shall be solely in the discretion of the City Attorney, The insurer, if insurance 
is provided, or the Consultant, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall waive all 
rights of subrogation against the City and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 
for loss arising from work performed under this Agreement. 

An endorsement shall state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by 
either party, reduced in coverage or in limits, except after thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City, 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 General requirements. Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
commercial general and automobile liability insurance for the term of this 
Agreement in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000,00) 
per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work 
contemplated by this Agreement. If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an 
Automobile Liability form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be 
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be at least 
twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall include but shall not be 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 4 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and personal injury, 
including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from 
activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of owned and non
owned automobiles. 

4.2.2 Minimum scope of coverage. Commercial general coverage shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form 
CG 0001 (ed. 11/88) or Insurance Services Office form number GL 0002 (ed, 1/73) 
covering comprehensive General Liability and Insurance Services Office form 
number GL 0404 covering Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability, 
Automobile coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office 
Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (ed. 12/90) Code 1 ("any auto"). No 
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.3 Additional requirements. Each of the following shall be included in the 
insurance coverage or added as an endorsement to the policy: 

a, City and its officers, employees, agents, contractors, consultants, and 
volunteers shall be covered as insureds with respect to each of the 
following: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of 
Consultant, including the insured's general supervision of Consultant; 
products and completed operations of Consultant; premises owned, 
occupied, or used by Consultant; and automobiles owned, leased, or used 
by the Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on 
the scope of protection afforded to City or its officers, employees, agents, 
contractors, consultants, or volunteers. 

b. The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis, and not 
on a claims-made basis. 

c, An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance with 
respect to the City and its officers, officials, employees, contractors, 
consultants, and volunteers, and that no insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the City shall be called upon to contribute to a loss under 
the coverage, 

d, Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting provisions of the 
policy shall not affect coverage provided to CITY and its officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers. 

e. An endorsement shall state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, 
or canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits, except after 
thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, has been given to the City. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 5 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. If Consultant shall be performing licensed professional 
services, Consultant shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional 
liability insurance for licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in 
an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) covering the licensed 
professionals' errors and omissions. 

4.3.1 Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed $150,000 per claim. 

4.3.2 An endorsement shall state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, 
canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits, except after thirty (30) 
days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given 
to the City .. 

4.3.3 The policy must contain a cross liability clause. 

4.3.4 The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability coverages are 
written on a claims-made form: 

a. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement. 

b. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be 
provided for at least three years after completion of the Agreement or the 
work, unless waived in writing by the City. 

c. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced with another 
claims-made policy form with a retroactive date that precedes the date of 
this Agreement, Consultant must provide extended reporting coverage for 
a minimum of five years after completion of the Agreement or the work. 
The City shall have the right to exercise, at the Consultant's sole cost and 
expense, any extended reporting provisions of the policy, if the Consultant 
cancels or does not renew the coverage. 

d. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted to the City 
prior to the commencement of any work under this Agreement. 

4.4 Requirements for All Policies. 

4.4.1 Acceptability of insurers. All insurance required by this section is to be placed 
with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less than A. 

4.4.2 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, 
ConSUltant shall furnish City with certificates of insurance and with original 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 6 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

endorsements effecting coverage required herein. The certificates and 
endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized 
by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The City reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time. 

4.4.3 Subcontractors. Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its 
policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein. 

4.4.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Consultant shall disclose to and 
obtain the approval of City for the self-insured retentions and deductibles before 
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement. 

During the period covered by this Agreement, only upon the prior express written 
authorization of the City, Consultant may increase such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions with respect to City, its officers, employees, agents, contractors, 
consultants, and volunteers. The City may condition approval of an increase in 
deductible or self-insured retention levels with a requirement that Consultant 
procure a bond, guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to the City. 

4.4.5 Notice of Reduction in Coverage. In the event that any coverage required by 
this section is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other manner, 
Consultant shall provide written notice to City at Consultant's earliest possible 
opportunity and in no case later than five days after Consultant is notified of the 
change in coverage. 

4.5 Remedies. In addition to any other remedies City may have if Consultant fails to provide 
or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time 
herein required, City may, at its sole option exercise any of the following remedies, which 
are alternatives to other remedies City may have and are not the exclusive remedy for 
Consultant's breach: 

• Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums for such 
insurance from any sums due under the Agreement; 

• Order Consultant to stop work under this Agreement or withhold any payment that 
becomes due to Consultant hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, 
until Consultant demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof; and/or 

• Declare Consultant in material breach of the Agreement and terminate the Agreement. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 7 



PROJECT NAME RMC CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

4.6 Waiver. The Risk Manager of the City has the authority to waive or vary any provision of 
Sections 4.2 through 4.5. Any such waiver or variation shall not be effective unless made 
in writing. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City, and hold harmless the City and its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, contractors, consultants, and volunteers from and against any and all 
losses, liability, claims, suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, 
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or 
ordinance, to the extent caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions 
of Consultant or its employees, subcontractors, or agents, by acts for which they could be held strictly 
liable, or by the quality or character of their work. The foregoing obligation of Consultant shall not apply 
when (1) the injury, loss of life, damage to property, or violation of law arises wholly from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the City or its officers, employees, agents, contractors, consultants, or volunteers and 
(2) the actions of Consultant or its employees, subcontractor, or agents have contributed in no part to the 
injury, loss of life, damage to property, or violation of law. It is understood that the duty of Consultant to 
indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil 
Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does 
not relieve Consultant from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This 
indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not 
such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Consultant 
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

In the event that Consultant or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant providing services 
under this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of City, Consultant shall. 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or employer contributions 
for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of 
City. 

Section 6. 

6.1 

STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City. City shall have the 
right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Subparagraph 1.3. 
Otherwise, City shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant 
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other 
City, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant 
and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and 
all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, including 
but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 8 



PROJECT NAME RMC CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

6.2 

Section 7. 

7.1 

7.2 

7.3 

7.4 

7.5 

(PERS) as an employee of City and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for 
employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 

Consultant No Agent. Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no 
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an 
agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 
to bind City to any obligation whatsoever. 

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and any subcontractors shall comply with 
all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder. 

Other Governmental Regulations. To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by 
fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, ConSUltant and any subcontractors 
shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which City is bound by the terms of 
such fiscal assistance program. 

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and 
its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications, 
and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to practice their respective 
professions. ConSUltant represents and warrants to City that ConSUltant and its 
employees, agents, any subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect 
at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are 
legally required to practice their respective professions and to perform this Agreement. In 
addition to the foregoing, Consultant and any subcontractors shall obtain and maintain 
during the term of this Agreement valid business license from City. 

Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. ConSUltant shall not discriminate, on the 
basis of a person's race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or 
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant 
in, recipient of, or applicant for any services or programs provided by Consultant under this 
Agreement. Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
policies, rules, and requirements related to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in 
employment, contracting, and the provision of any services that are the subject of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the satisfaction of any positive obligations required 
of ConSUltant thereby. 

Consultant shall include the provisions of this Subsection in any subcontract approved by 
the City or this Agreement. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 9 



PROJECT NAME RMC CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

Section 8. 

8.1 

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

Termination. City may terminate this Agreement at any time and without cause upon 
written notification to Consultant. 

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for services 
performed prior to the effective date of termination as provided in Section 2. City, 
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to City 
any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio tapes, and other 
materials provided to Consultant or prepared by or for Consultant or the City in connection 
with this Agreement. . 

8.2 Extension. City may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, extend the end date of this 
Agreement beyond that provided for in Subsection 1.1. Any such extension shall require a 
written amendment to this Agreement, as provided for herein. Consultant understands and 
agrees that, if City grants such an extension, City shall have no obligation to provide 
Consultant with compensation beyond the maximum amount provided for in this 
Agreement. Similarly, unless authorized by the City, City shall have no obligation to 
reimburse Consultant for any otherwise reimbursable expenses incurred during the 
extension period. 

8.3 Amendments. The parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
parties. 

8.4 Assignment and Subcontracting. City and Consultant recognize and agree that this 
Agreement contemplates personal performance by Consultant and is based upon a 
determination of Consultant's unique personal competence, experience, and specialized 
personal knowledge. Moreover, a substantial inducement to City for entering into this 
Agreement was and is the professional reputation and competence of Consultant. 
Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the City. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the performance 
contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors listed in the 
Consultant's proposal, without prior written approval of the City. 

8.5 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between City and Consultant shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

8.6 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms 
of this Agreement, City's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, any or all of the 
following: 

8.6.1 Immediate cancellation of the Agreement; 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 10 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

8.6.2 Retention of the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and 
any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement prior to 
cancellation; and 

8.6.3 Retention of a different consultant at Consultant's cost to complete the work 
described in Exhibit A not finished by Consultant. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Consultant's Performance. All reports, data, maps, 
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, 
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that 
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters 
covered hereunder shall be the property of the City. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver 
those documents to the City at any time upon demand of the City. It is understood and 
agreed that the documents and other materials, including but not limited to those described 
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are 
not necessarily suitable for any future or other use. Failure by ConSUltant to deliver these 
documents to the City within the time period specified by the City shall be a material 
breach of this Agreement. City and ConSUltant agree that, until final approval by City, all 
data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are preliminary drafts not kept by 
the City in the ordinary course of business and will not be disclosed to third parties without 
prior written consent of both parties. 

9.2 Consultant's Books and Records. ConSUltant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books 
of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged 
to the City under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period 
required by law, from the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that Section 9.2 of this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, 
and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of 
the City. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds 
expended under this Agreement exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the 
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the 
request of City or as part of any audit of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final 
payment under the Agreement. 

Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for 
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the proviSion of this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in addition to any other relief to which 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 11 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose. 

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this 
Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 
state courts of California in the County of Santa Clara or in the United States District Court 
for the Northern District of California. 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of performance or any breach of a specific 
provision of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the parties. 

10.6 Use of .Recycled Products. Consultant shall prepare and submit all reports, written 
studies and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at equal or 
less cost than virgin paper. 

10.7 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 
the corporate limits of City or whose business, regardless of location, would place 
Consultant in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act, 
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any City official in the work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 

Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous twelve (12) 
months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. If Consultant were an 
employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve months, 
Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of this 
Agreement. Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of 
Government Code §1090 et.seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not be 
entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including 
reimbursement of expenses, and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any 
sums paid to the Consultant. Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 12 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if 
applicable, may be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California. 

Consultant certifies that it has not paid any direct or contingent fee, contribution, donation 
or consideration of any kind to any firm, organization, or person (other than a bona fide 
employee of Consultant) in connection with procuring this Agreement, nor has Consultant 
agreed to employ or retain any firm, organization, or person in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement as a condition for obtaining this Agreement. 

10.8 Solicitation. Consultant agrees not to solicit business at any meeting, focus group, or 
interview related to this Agreement, either orally or through any written materials. 

10.9 Contract Administration. This Agreement shall be administered by Kathleen Phalen who 
is authorized to act for, and on behalf of, City. All correspondence shall be directed to or 
through the Contract Administrator or his or her designee. 

10.10 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 
Steve Bui 
RMC Water and Environment, Inc 
2290 N. First St, Suite 212 
San Jose, CA 95131 

Any written notice to City shall be sent to: 
Kathleen Phalen, Acting Public Works Director/City Engineer 
City of Milpitas 
455 East Calaveras Boulevard 
Milpitas, California 95035 

10.11 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the City, the first page of a 
technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction 
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for 
the report/design preparation. 

10.12 Integration. This Agreement, including the exhibits, represents the entire and integrated 
agreement between City and Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. 

10.13 Exhibits. All exhibits referenced in this Agreement are incorporated by reference herein. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 13 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO,: Utility Engineering Support 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

Thomas C, Williams, City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

/fiAlcc ~r2L 
Kathleen Phalen, Acting PW Director/City Engineer 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Michael J, Ogaz, City Attorney 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

CONSULTANT 

Steve Bui, Principal 

Taxpayer Identification Number 

City of Milpitas Business License Number 

Page 14 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO.: Utility Engineering Support 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

The City of Milpitas desires Consultant support to backfill for City staff vacancies in the Utility Engineering 
Section. The Consultant Engineer shall be registered in the State of California and have familiarity with 
various utility engineering programs, especially the potable and recycled water distribution systems and the 
wastewater collection system. The work hours are flexible and shall average 15-16 hours per week. 

Task 1 - Utility Engineering Support Services 

Consultant shall provide professional engineering support services for the Utility Engineering Programs. 
Duties shall include: 

• Review documents, such water quality sampling data, customer complaint reports, wholesale water 
purchase invoices and data, developer tie-in reports, 

• Research maps, records, and regulatory requirements 
• Coordinate City responses on draft documents, such as plans, specifications, performance criteria, 

maps 
• Attend coordination meetings 
• Prepare documents, such as maps, charts, memos, meeting minutes, laboratory quotations, 

reports, water sampling schedules 
• Coordinate regulatory sampling 
• Assist Milpitas staff as needed 

All work shall commence on November 1, 2012 and shall be completed by December 31, 2013. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC Page 15 



PROJECT NAME RMC 

PROJECT NO,: Utility Engineering Support 

Senior Project Project Manager II 
Manager II 

Hourly $193,50 $180,00 
Rate 

Hours Cost Hours Cost 
Task 1 10 $1,935 455 

Totals 10 $1,935 455 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Milpitas and RMC 

$81,900 

$81,900 

EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 

Project Engineer I Senior Admin 

$144,00 $85,50 

Hours Cost Hours Cost 
20 $2,880 15 $1,283 

20 $2,880 15 $1,283 

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

DATE: N/A 

Labor Expenses Total 
Cost 

$88,000 $0 $88,000 

$88,000 $0 $88,000 

Page 16 



                                            
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO 1 TO THE CONTRACT 
WITH TERRACARE ASSOCIATES FOR 

PARKS MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
 
 This Amendment is entered into this 5th day of February 2013, by and 
between the City of Mi lpi tas, a municipal corporat ion of the State of Cal i fornia 
(hereafter referred to as "CITY") and TerraCare Associates ,  (hereafter referred 
to as "CONTRACTOR").  
 
 
RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the part ies entered into an Contract for City Park maintenance 
services as approved by the Milpi tas City Counci l  on June 6, 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, the part ies desire to amend the Contract to al low contractor do 
perform maintenance services for two addit ional newly constructed City 
Parks.    

 
NOW THEREFORE, in considerat ion of the mutual covenants and 
condit ions herein contained, the part ies agree to amend the Contract as 
fol lows: 

 
 

Exhibit “A” 
Scope of Work 

 
The fol lowing two newly constructed parks shal l  be included as part of the 
Contractor ’s maintenance responsibi l i t ies and services as specif ied under the 
or iginal Contract of June 6, 2012.  
 
The Contractor shal l  provide the same level of service as specif ied under the 
or iginal Contract for the two new parks included in this Amendment: 
 

1) Alviso Adobe Park located at 2087 Alviso Ct.  
 
2) Cerano Park located at  791 Murphy Ranch Road 

 
 

Exhibit “B” 
Fees 

 
1)  Alviso Adobe Park, including restroom faci l i ty:  $3,355 per month. 
 
2) Cerano Park, including restroom faci l i ty:   $4,100 per month. 
 
3) Pricing is per the attached quote from Terracare. 
 
 Total Amendment Price:    $89,460.00 annually 
 
 

Terracare  RFP 1197 Amd No. 1 1 of  2 

*17



Terracare  RFP 1197 Amd No. 1 1 of  2 

1. Service to the two new parks shal l  begin on March 1, 2013. 
 
2. The dol lar value of the ini t ial  f i rst  two years of the contract is $1,326,155. 

The contract shal l  be increased by $29,820 from $1,326,155 to $1,355,975 
for the remaining four months of FY 12/13. The second ini t ial  year of the 
contract,  and shal l  increase by $89,460 to $1,415, 615 and for contract 
years 3 through 5 the pr ice shal l  be increased by the same $89,460 from 
$1,369,638 to $1,459,098. 

 
3. Al l  other provisions of the Contract shal l  remain in ful l  force and effect.  
 
This Amendment is executed as of the date wri t ten on page one. 
 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
CITY OF MILPITAS     TerraCare Associates  
 
 
_____________________________   ___________________________ 
Thomas C. Wil l iams, City Manager   Name and Tit le  
 
Approved As       Approved As 
To Form:        To Content:  
         
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
 
Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney    Steve Erickson, City Project Manager 



PROPOSAL 

To: City of Milpitas 
455 E. Calaveras Blvd. 
Milpitas, CA 95035-5411 

Project: Alviso Adobe Park 
including restroom facility 

The undersigned proposes to furnish all labor equipment, and materials to perform the 
following work: 

Park Maintenance per the existing contract documents and 
specifications of the original agreement of June 6, 2012. 

For the sum of: $3355.00 per month 

Terracare Associates, 

Date: _ __________ _ 

?---o By: A·'· -
/ Kris Dasso, Branch Manager 

Accepted: _ ________ _ 

Effective Date: _______ _ Date: January 24, 2013 

921 Arnold Drive Martinez, CA 94553 
P 925.374.0060 F. 925374 0065 

www.terracareassociates.com 



PROPOSAL 

To: City of Milpitas 
455 E. Calaveras Blvd. 
Milpitas, CA 95035-5411 

Project: Cerano Park 
including restroom facility 

The undersigned proposes to furnish all labor equipment, and materials to perfoffi1 the 
following work: 

Park Maintenance per the existing contract documents and 
specifications of the original agreement of June 6, 2012. 

For the sum of: $4100.00 per month 

Accepted: _______ __ _ 

Date: ___________ _ 

Effective Date: _______ _ 

Terracare Associates, 

BY:~.-tJ 
/' Kris Dasso, Branch Manager 

Date: January 24, 2013 

921 Arnold Drive Martinez, CA 94553 
P. 925.374.0060 F. 925.374.0065 

www.terracareassociates.com 



 

All correspondence to: 
 

3120 Pierce Street 
Richmond ▪ CA, 94804 

(510) 527-1078 
1-800-869-6677 

Fax (510) 526-7289 
ubsco.com 

▄ JANITORIAL DIVISION   ▄ SUPPLY DIVISION ▄ POWER SWEEPING DIVISION 

 
January 14, 2013 
 
 
City of Milpitas 
455 E. Calaveras Boulevard 
Milpitas, CA 95035 
 
Attention:  Steve Erickson 
 
We are pleased to submit our proposal for janitorial services to be performed at various locations in 
Milpitas, California. 
 
 Provide service as per existing specifications. 
 

Location Frequency  Cost per month   
Community Center- 457 East Calaveras 
Boulevard 7 X WK  $              5,823.00  
Police Department, 1275 North Milpitas 
Boulevard 7 X WK  $              6,828.00  
Public Works Department, 1265 North Milpitas 
Boulevard 5 X WK  $              3,645.00  
Fire Department Trailer, 777 South Main Street 2 X WK  $                 313.00  
Jose Higuera Abobe Bldg., N. Park Victoria 
Drive & Wessex Place 5 X WK  $                 394.00  
Senior Center, 40 North Milpitas Boulevard 7 X WK  $              7,484.00  

 
       Subtotal: $24,487 per month 
 
All other terms and conditions of the agreement remain unchanged.  
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call Ron Martinucci or me at 408/995-5111.   
 
Universal Building Services 
 
Dario DeVincenzi 
 
Dario DeVincenzi 
Operations Manager  
 
Upon acceptance, please return one executed copy of this agreement indicating the effective date, at 
which time service will begin.  
 
Accepted by        Date     
 
Effective Date           
 
DD: kc 

*18



 
AMENDMENT NO 4 TO THE CONTRACT 

 
WITH UNIVERSAL BUILDING SERVICES FOR 

 
CITY BUILDING JANITORIAL SERVICES 

 
 
 This Amendment is entered into this 5th day of February 2013, by and 
between the City of Mi lpi tas, a municipal corporat ion of the State of Cal i fornia 
(hereafter referred to as "CITY") and Universal Building Services ,  (hereafter 
referred to as "CONTRACTOR"). 
 
RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the part ies entered into a Contract with the City on September 
21, 2010 to provide janitor ial  services for selected City bui ldings which 
include City Hal l ,  Sports Center,  1st f loor Fire Administrat ion Bui lding, 
Pol ice Substat ion and Raceway, and the Library Parking Garage; and 

 
WHEREAS, the part ies desire to amend the Contract to al low contractor do 
perform addit ional janitor ial  services for the Community Center,  Senior 
Center,  Fire Department Modular Bui ldings, Jose Higuera Bui lding, Publ ic 
Works Bui ldings, and the Pol ice Department main bui lding. .    

 
NOW THEREFORE, in considerat ion of the mutual covenants and 
condit ions herein contained, the part ies agree to amend the Contract as 
fol lows: 
 
Provide janitor ial  services at the fol lowing locat ion in conformance with the 
Contract specif icat ion for the period March 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013 

 

 

Location Frequency  Cost per month   
Community  Center-  457 East  Calaveras 
Boulevard 7 X WK  $              5 ,823.00  
Police Department,  1275 North Milpitas 
Boulevard 7 X WK  $              6 ,828.00  
Public Works Department,  1265 North 
Milpitas Boulevard 5 X WK  $              3 ,645.00  
Fire Department Trailer ,  777 South Main 
Street  2 X WK  $                 313.00  

Jose Higuera Abobe Bldg. ,  N. Park Victoria 
Drive & Wessex Place 5 X WK  $                 394.00  

Senior Center ,  40 North Milpitas Boulevard 7 X WK  $              7 ,484.00  

        Subtotal:  $24,487 per month 
 
 
1. The dol lar value of the Contract shal l  be increased by $97,948 from 

$196,889.00 to $294,837 for the last four months of the f iscal year. 
 
2. Al l  other provisions of the Contract shal l  remain in ful l  force and effect.  
 
 

 1 of  2 
 



 1 of  2 

This Amendment is executed as of the date wri t ten on page one. 
 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
CITY OF MILPITAS     Universal Bui lding Services 
 
 
_____________________________   ___________________________ 
Thomas C. Wil l iams, City Manager   Name and Tit le  
 
Approved As       Approved As 
To Form:        To Content:  
         
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
 
Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney    Steve Erickson, City Project Manager 



*19

_______________ u --i 

City of Milpitas, California 

BUDGET CHANGE FORM 

From To 

Type of Change 
Account Amount Account Amount 

Check one: 

[8] Budget Appropriation 100-3586 $ 809 100-168-4237 $ 525 

0 
100-168-4221 284 

Budget Transfer 

Explain the reason for the budget cbange: 

Background: 
The Milpitas Recreation Services Division and the Milpitas Community Concert Band would like to commission an 
original music piece to be played at the Band's 20"' Anniversary Gala Concert on June 7, 2013. The Milpitas 
Community Concert Band Conductor has approached Jason McChristian, local composer to compose an original 
musical work for the Milpitas Community Concert Band. The piece is required to be 3 Y, minutes in duration and will be 
at a cost of$525.00, 

The Milpitas Recreation Services Division applied for a grant from the Milpitas Parks and Recreation Foundation, a 
local 50ICc)3, to pay for the cost of contracting an original piece of music with Jason McChristian for the Milpitas 
Community Concert Band's 20th Anniversary Gala Concert, The grant also included a request for funds to replace 
damaged band instruments, The grant was approved and awarded to Recreation Services in the amount of$809, 

Fiscal Impact: 
None, The increase of Recreation Division budget in the amount of$809 will be offset by the grant revenue, 

Recommendation: 
1) Authorize the City Manager to execute contract with Jason McChristian in an amount not to exceed $525 

2) Accept the Milpitas Parks and Recreation Foundation grant in the amount of $809,00 and increase Recreation 
Division budget in the amount of $809,00 for the Milpitas Community Concert Band Program, 

Iiil Check if City Council Approval required. Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 

Requested by: Carmen Valdez, Human Resources & Recreatiou Department Date: January 24,2013 

Reviewed by: Fiuance Director: W--C~ Date: 1.).'O/;" 
I 

Approved by: City Manager: Date: 

Date approved by City Council, if required: Confirmed bv: 


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes - January 15, 2013
	City Council Calendar
	Item 01 - CAFR
	Item 03 - Reimbursement Policy
	Item 05 - Odor Report
	Item 06 - Mayor's Planning Commission Appointments
	PC_Demetress Morris.pdf
	PC_Steve Tao.pdf
	PC_Vanlan Truong.pdf

	Item 07 - Mayor's Commission Appointments
	CAC - Maglalang
	EDC - B. Michael Howard
	EDC - Khoi Minh Ha
	EDC - Sai Chakrawarthy Manapragada
	EDC - Van Lan T Truong
	EDC - Victor Fronda Nepl
	RSRAC - Eddie Inamdar
	SCC - Peter Chang
	VC - Ferdinand Tumacder Luis Jr

	Item 08 - General Fund Expenditures
	Item 09_ - Investment Portfolio -Dec 31 2012
	Item 11 - Senior Nutrition Program Grant
	Item 12 - CFD 2005-1 Resolution
	CFD resolution PJ 2718
	Exhibit 1 (CFD 2005-1)- SORA Milpitas LLC
	Exhibit 1.A. (CFD 2005-1)- SORA Milpitas LLC
	Exhibit 1.B. (CFD 2005-1)- SORA Milpitas LLC
	Exhibit 2 (CFD 2005-1)- SORA Milpitas LLC

	Item 13 - National Meter Resolution and Quote
	Item 14 - Lyon Budget Change Form
	Item 15 - Resmark Company Budget Change Form
	Item 16 - RMC Agreement
	Item 17 - TerraCare Amendment
	Item 18 - UBS Amendment No. 4
	Item 19 - Parks Recreation & Foundation Grant



